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*

As a franchisee you will perform residential and commercial bathroom and kitchen remodeling, cabinet
refacing, safety and mobility modifications and other interior remodeling, and perform related services and
sell related products. You will focus primarily on interior remodeling but will also provide exterior
remodeling and restoration projects as needed.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® franchise
ranges from $235,075 to $507,231. This includes $121,365 to $177,190, plus $240 per 1,000 population
for additional territory, that must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate. If you choose to also purchase the
option to acquire an additional territory, you must also pay to franchisor or affiliate 10% of the initial
franchise fee for that territory, equaling $4,800 to $8,400, plus $24 per 1,000 population for additional
territory. If you are acquiring an existing franchised business, you must also pay franchisor or affiliate a
$5,000 resale training fee and $3,750 initial sales education fee.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must
receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient to you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Carly Kennett, 4547 Lake Shore Drive,
Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710, 254/523-9575.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.
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There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 28, 2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about an outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit D.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes
the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit C includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
DREAMMAKER BATH &
KITCHEN business in my
area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been in involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a
DREAMMAKER BATH &
KITCHEN franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibit D lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about
their experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees
even if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require
you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your
franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive
than similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions.
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to
continue to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your
landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit E.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See
the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About 7This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

l. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration, and/or litigation
only in Texas. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to
accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate,
arbitrate, or litigate with the franchisor in Texas than in your own state.

2. Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse
liable for all financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your
spouse has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both
your and your spouse’s martial and personal assets, perhaps including your house,
at risk if your franchise fails.

3. Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or
advertising fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make
the payments may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your
investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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MICHIGAN NOTICE

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(a)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

&)

(2

(h)

A prohibition on the right of a Franchisee to join an association of Franchisees.

A requirement that a Franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel that
deprives a Franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a
Franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

A provision that permits a Franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term
except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the Franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice
thereof and a reasonable opportunity, that in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such
failure.

A provision that permits a Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating
the Franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of
the Franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials
that have no value to the Franchisor and inventory, supplies equipment, fixtures, and furnishings
not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation.
This subsection applies only if: (i) The term of the franchise is less than five years and (ii) the
Franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct
substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype,
advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the
franchise or the Franchisee does not receive at least six months advance notice of Franchisor’s
intent not to renew the franchise.

A provision that permits the Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available
to other Franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the Franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

A provision that permits a Franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise,
except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a Franchisor from exercising a right of
first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the Franchisor’s then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(i1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the Franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(i)  The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with
all lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the Franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
Franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the
proposed transfer.

A provision that requires the Franchisee to resell to the Franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the Franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to
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Franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the Franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the Franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

(1) A provision that permits the Franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the Franchisee unless provision has been
made for providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR
ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL. Any questions regarding this notice should be
directed to: Michigan Department of Attorney General, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Section,
525 W. Ottawa Street, G. Mennen Williams building, 1st Floor, Lansing, Michigan 48913 (517) 373-7117
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENT, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

2 G

For ease of reference in this disclosure document, the franchisor is referred to as “we,” “us” or “our,” and
sometimes “DreamMaker” and the person who is considering the franchise is referred to as “you” or “your.”
The business that is operated under the Franchise Agreement is referred to as the “franchise” or the
“franchised business” and the right to operate granted by the Franchise Agreement is sometimes referred to
as the “license” or “franchise.” If you are a legal entity, certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and
related agreements apply to your shareholders, officers, directors, members or partners individually. These
provisions are noted.

This disclosure document outlines and summarizes some contractual obligations of both the franchisor and
the franchisee which are found in the Franchise Agreement and other agreements. For ease of reference and
understanding, these obligations may be paraphrased or described in general terms in this document. Such
outlines or summaries do not supersede, replace or modify the actual text of the obligation contained in the
relevant agreement.

The Franchisor, and any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates

The franchisor is Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. We were incorporated in the State of Texas on
October 7, 1975, under the name Gnu Services Corporation. We changed our name to Worldwide
Refinishing Systems, Inc. on December 15, 1988. We maintain our principal place of business at 4547 Lake
Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710. We do business under our corporate name and have done
business under the name DREAMMAKER BATH AND KITCHEN® since June 15, 1999. We have no
predecessor or parent company. We have no affiliated companies. We do not engage in any other business
activity. Our agents for service of process are listed on Exhibit E.

From 1975 to 1995, we offered franchises which refinished, repaired and replaced porcelain, laminate,
wood, ceramic tile, cultured marble, fiberglass and other surfaces. Since 1996, we have offered franchises
of the type described in this disclosure document. We offer these franchises as a “Start-Up Franchise” or
you have the option to rebrand your existing business to a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® business
(a “Rebranded Franchise”). We do not own or operate any franchises. We have not offered franchises in
any other line of business.

Description of the Franchise

You will perform residential and commercial bathroom, kitchen, and interior remodeling, cabinet refacing,
safety and mobility modifications, and perform related services and sell related products. You will focus
primarily on interior remodeling but will also provide exterior remodeling and restoration projects as
needed. You will operate the franchised business under our service mark DREAMMAKER BATH &
KITCHEN® and the additional principal service marks, trademarks, trade names, logos, emblems, slogans
or indicia of origin which are or may be designated by us in the future (the “Marks”) for use in accordance
with the methods and processes developed by us in connection with the franchise (the “System”) within a
specified geographical area (the “Territory”). Our standard form of Franchise Agreement is attached to this
disclosure document as Exhibit B.

Market and Competition

There are other nationally recognized trade names in the remodeling industry. The franchise offers services
to the general public, including residential and commercial customers, and the services are offered in a
developed market. You will compete with local and national remodeling businesses when you open for
business or sometime in the future as the remodeling businesses expand.

Industry Specific Regulations

Your locality may have licensing requirements for performing remodeling services. You must comply with
all Federal, state and local regulations concerning the franchise, including all laws and regulations
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concerning the proper handling of blood borne pathogens, chemicals and hazardous wastes. You must
obtain any permits or contractor’s licenses required in your locality. Your territory may require that your
franchise be bonded. These laws vary from place to place and they could affect the operation of your
franchised business.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

President and CSO: Douglas A. Dwyer

Mr. Dwyer has served as our President since December 1997 and as our Chief Stewarding Officer since
January 2005 in Waco, Texas. Mr. Dwyer also founded the 501(c)(3) charitable organization, Be Faithful,
Inc., and has served as a Director since December 2016. Be Faithful, Inc. maintains its principal business
address in Waco, Texas.

CAO and CSO-TD2: Gayla S. Dwyer

Mrs. Dwyer has served as our Chief Advisory Officer and Chief Support Officer to Doug & DreamMaker
formally since September 2023 in Waco, Texas. Mrs. Dwyer has been associated with DreamMaker Bath
& Kitchen since April 2008.

Secretary and COO: Amy Fore Mosley

Ms. Mosley has served as our Secretary since March 2009 and Chief Operating Officer since January 2023
in Waco, Texas. Ms. Mosley previously served as our Vice President from March 2012 to January 2023
and our Vice President of Franchise Support and Administration from January 2009 to March 2012.

Director of Franchise Operations: Dale E. Ressler

Mr. Ressler has been our Director of Franchise Operations, in Bainbridge, Pennsylvania, since January
2023. Mr. Ressler previously served as our Senior Franchise Coach from January 2018 to January 2023.
He owned the DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen franchise in Elizabethtown, Pennsylvania, from November
2006 to December 2021, prior to selling his business to a new owner.

Director of Business Operations: Carly Kennett

Ms. Kennett has been our Director of Business Operations, in Dallas, Texas, since January 2023. Ms.
Kennett previously served as our Corporate Accountant and Contract Administrator from April 2019 to
January 2023 and our Staff Accountant from October 2016 to April 2019.

Director of Marketing: Joaquin Erazo

Mr. Erazo has served as our Director of Marketing since June 2023, in Fredericksburg, Virginia. Mr. Erazo
previously served as our Marketing Strategist from October 2022 to June 2023. Prior to joining
DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen staff, he served as a contracted Marketing Strategist for DreamMaker through
his company, Marketing Wing, LLC from July 2015 until October 2022 in Ashburn, Virginia.

Director of Franchise Development: Daniel Leahr

Mr. Leahr has been our Director of Franchise Development since January 2024, in Loganville, Georgia.
Mr. Leahr previously served as the Vice President of Business Development for Actiontec Electronics Inc.
in Santa Clara, California from June 2002 to November 2021.

Director of Technology: Greg Cory

Mr. Cory has served our Director of Technology since April 2024 by contract through the company CTO
Nation, LLC, in Atlanta, Georgia. He has served as the Managing Director for CTO Nation, LLC since
November of 2014. Mr. Cory previously served as the Chief Product Officer for PRGX Global, Inc. in
Atlanta, Georgia from April 2018 to March 2022.
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ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

Initial Franchise Fee

When you sign the franchise agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you receive this Disclosure
Document, you will pay us an initial franchise fee. The initial franchisee fee is $48,000 for a Territory with
a population of 200,000 (which is the minimum Territory you may purchase for more rural and less densely
populated areas) plus $240 per additional 1,000 population, or $84,000 for a Territory with a population of
350,000 (which is the minimum Territory you may purchase for more densely populated and urban areas)
plus $240 per additional 1,000 population. Because all franchisees who purchase a Territory with a
population of at least 350,000 will qualify for the Population Discount, the actual initial franchise fee for a
Territory for a population of 350,000 is $75,600. The initial franchise fee for a territory with a population
of more than 300,000 is eligible for the Population Discount, described below. The initial franchise fee is
nonrefundable. Financing for the initial franchise fee may be available as noted in Item 10.

Franchise Development Package

Before you begin the operation of the franchise, you must pay us $22,495 for our franchise development
package, which includes initial sales training and contains many of the items you will need to equip your
franchise in accordance with our standards and specifications. All orders of the package must be placed
prior to the first anniversary of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement or those funds will be
forfeited. The purchase price is nonrefundable. We do not finance the franchise development package.

Initial Advertising and Promotional Deposit

When executing the Franchise Agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you receive this Disclosure
Document, you will pay us an amount between $36,000 and $60,000, to be determined in our discretion,
which we will hold as a deposit. At least $12,000 of the deposit amount, or such other greater amount we
determine (the “Franchisor’s Draw”), will be spent by us on advertising and promotional activities
connected with your franchised business. The remainder of the deposit will be returned to you as you incur
expenditures related to approved advertising and promotional activities. The lower range of the deposit
amount applies to Rebranded Franchises who have employed a marketing coordinator, while the higher
range applies to Start-Up Franchises. We will provide you with a list of approved advertising and
promotional activities on which this amount can be spent and, once you submit to us proof that you have
incurred such related expenses, we will return to you the related expenditure amount, up to the deposit
amount, less the Franchisor’s Draw. You must hire one part-time employee (a minimum of 16 hours per
week) to serve as the marketing coordinator for the franchised business. The marketing coordinator’s wages
during the first nine months of employment are subject to reimbursement from the deposit. Your marketing
coordinator must be hired and begin employment no later than 30 days after your completion of Simulation
Training. You may submit for our approval additional types of advertising and promotional activities;
however, you must receive our written approval in order to request that the amount be drawn from your
deposit.

If you do not submit proof of approved advertising and promotional expenditures at least up to the amount
of the remainder of your deposit within 24 months from the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement the
balance will be forfeited. The deposit is refundable before the completion of Simulation Training if the
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Franchise Agreement terminates for any reason, less any expenditure already incurred in connection with
your franchised business. Beginning as of completion of Simulation Training, however, the deposit is only
refundable as described above.

Initial Accounting Services Fee

When you sign the Franchise Agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you receive this Disclosure
Document, you will pay us an amount between $3,275 and $7,500 to be determined in our discretion, which
will pay for services from our designated bookkeeping and accounting services provider for a period of 12
months following the sale of your first DreamMaker project. The lower range of the deposit amount applies
to Rebranded Franchises, while the higher range applies to Start-Up Franchises. This payment is
nonrefundable.

Design Center Deposit

When executing the Franchise Agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you receive this Disclosure
Document, you will pay us $5,000 which we will hold as a deposit.

1) $2,500 will be returned to you upon execution of a commercial lease through our designated
representative and in accordance with this Franchise Agreement; and

2) The remaining $2,500 will be returned to you within thirty days of completion of the following:

a) Obtaining an approved design for your Design Center. To ensure approval of the design
for your Design Center, the design must be completed by our preferred designer;

b) Submission of an estimate for your design center buildout using our required estimating
software with sufficient detail, as we reasonably require, and you review your submissions
with your franchise coach to our satisfaction; and

¢) Operating from an approved design center, opened in compliance with the Franchise
Agreement, within 12 months of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement.

Except as noted above, the deposit is otherwise nonrefundable.

Software Support Fee

When you sign the Franchise Agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you receive this Disclosure
Document, you will pay us a software support fee of $4,495 for training, development, and other support
services related to your use of our required accounting software (the “Financial System”) and customer
relationship management software (“Customized Management Software”). The software support fee is
fully earned upon payment and is nonrefundable.

Initial Education Fee

When executing the Franchise Agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you receive this Disclosure
Document, you will pay us $2,100 for an Initial Education Fee. The $2,100 will be returned to you upon
your attendance, in its entirety, of the first network training event (i.e. January Workshop or Reunion) that
occurs after the execution of the Franchise Agreement. If you fail to attend the first network training event,
this fee is nonrefundable.

Discount Programs

Our discount programs are described below:
Cash Discount

If you pay us the entire initial franchise fee in cash before the expiration of 60 days from the effective date
of your Franchise Agreement, we will discount the initial franchise fee by 5%.
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Population Discount

If you purchase a territory containing a population of 300,000 or more we will discount the initial franchise
fee by 10% to 25%, depending on the population of the territory, as shown in the chart as follows:

Percentage Discount Population
10% 300,000 - 399,999
20% 400,000 — 499,999
25% 500,000 and over

The Population Discount is based on the population of the territory you purchase at the time you sign the
Franchise Agreement and not on the combined population of the territory you purchase, and any territory
included in an option.

Roll-In Discount for Existing Business

If you have an existing business with annual gross sales of $100,000, which is similar to the franchise and
you agree to merge the business with the franchised business, we will discount the initial franchise fee by
1% for every $30,000 in annual Gross Sales you agree to “roll-in” to the franchise, up to a maximum
discount of 50%.

HIRE Discount for Employees of Franchisees

We have a discount program to reward qualified employees of our franchisees who have been recommended
by their employer, have been employed by our franchisee for at least two years, and who otherwise qualify
to be our franchisee, calculated as follows:

Percentage Discount Years of Consecutive Employment
10% 2
15% 3
20% 4
30% 5
40% 6
50% 7

Franchises granted by us under the HIRE Program will generally contain a population of 200,000. The
HIRE Discount applies only to the first 200,000 of population and does not apply to any additional initial
franchise fee. If you wish to acquire a territory containing a population of more than 200,000, you must pay
the additional initial franchise fee at our usual rates except for territories of more than 350,000 of population
in which you may qualify for the Population Discount (see discount rates above).

VetFran Discount

We are a member of the International Franchise Association and we participate in the International
Franchise Association’s VetFran Program. If you are an honorably discharged veteran who meets our
qualifications for purchasing a franchise, we will discount the initial franchise fee by 20%. To qualify for
the VetFran Discount, you must provide us with a copy of your Certificate of Release or Discharge from
Active Duty (DD-214 form). The VetFran Discount, however, cannot be used to purchase an Option for
Additional Territory, as described below and cannot be used in addition to the First Responder discount
described below.

First Responder Discount
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We offer a “First Responder” discount. If you are or have been a police officer, firefighter, or
paramedic/emergency medical technician (EMT) who meets our qualifications for purchasing a franchise,
we will discount the initial franchise fee by 20%. To qualify for the First Responder discount, you must
have been gainfully employed as First Responder for a minimum of five years and any required certificates
or licenses must be in good standing with the appropriate associations. The First Responder Discount,
however, cannot be used to purchase an Option for Additional Territory, as described below and cannot be
used in addition to the VetFran Discount described above.

NARI Membership Discount

We are a member of the National Association of the Remodeling Industry (NARI). If you are an active
NARI member at the time you receive this Disclosure Document and you meet our qualifications for
purchasing a franchise, it is our current practice to discount the initial franchise fee by $5,000. We may
change this practice at any time.

Combination and Application of Discounts

The VetFran discount or the First Responder discount may be used with any one of the other discounts,
described above, except the NARI Membership Discount. If you qualify for the VetFran discount or the
First Responder discount, the initial franchise fee will be discounted by 20% and the second discount will
be applied to further reduce the discounted balance. The NARI Membership Discount cannot be used with
the VetFran discount or the First Responder discount. You may not use both the VetFran discount and the
First Responder discount together.

You may use the Cash Discount and either the Territory Discount or the Roll-In Discount. You cannot use
both the Roll-In Discount and the Territory Discount. If you qualify for both the Roll-In Discount and the
Cash Discount, these discounts will be calculated as shown in the following example: You agree to “roll-
in” $1,500,000 in annual Gross Sales from an existing business you own, and you also agree to pay the
initial franchise fee in cash. On an initial franchise fee of $100,000, you first receive a 50% Roll-In Discount
on the initial franchise fee, reducing the initial franchise fee to $50,000. You will then receive a 5% Cash
Discount on the discounted initial franchise fee of $50,000, reducing the initial franchise fee to $47,500.

You cannot use the HIRE Discount with any other discount except the Cash Discount.

If you qualify for the VetFran, First Responder, or HIRE discounts, the qualifying individual must have and
maintain during the term of the Franchise Agreement a 51% majority interest in the beneficial ownership
and voting interest of the franchisee if the franchisee is a corporation, partnership or other entity (not a
natural person).

The above examples are for illustration only. Any questions about application or combination of discounts,
including questions about the order in which discounts may be applied, will be resolved by us in our sole
discretion.

Option for Additional Territory

You may, if qualified, purchase a one-year (18 months in the case of a Start-Up) option on additional
territory by paying us a fee of 10% of the initial franchise fee for the territory you wish to buy when you
purchase a franchise.

You must sign an Option to Purchase Agreement (attached as Exhibit F-6 to this disclosure document). At
any time within the one-year (or 18 months for Start-Ups) period beginning from the effective date of your
Franchise Agreement you may purchase the additional territory by paying us the balance of the initial
franchise fee. The 10% deposit will be applied to the purchase price. We do not refund your deposit if you
decide to not purchase the additional territory. You may also acquire an additional territory during the term
of the Franchise Agreement by entering into another Franchise Agreement for the additional territory or, at
our option, an amendment to your existing Franchise Agreement, for that particular territory if available.
When you purchase additional territory, whether or not through the Option to Purchase Agreement we may

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® 6
Franchise Disclosure Document | 2025



require that you sign a general release releasing us from all claims you may have except claims which,
under state law, may not be released.

Additional Training Costs

You must complete our Foundations Prep Training, complete Foundations Core Training and complete our
Simulation Training before you begin operating the franchise.

You may send three people (including you) through Foundations Core Training at no additional cost. If you
wish to send additional employees through Foundations Core Training, before training begins, for each
employee, you must pay us $2,000, which will be refunded if the additional employees do not attend
training.

Brand Protection Fund

We have the right to require you to participate in our Brand Protection Fund (“BPF”) and make an initial
contribution of $5,000 to the BPF when you sign the Franchise Agreement or at such later time as we may
require. In the event we impose this fee, the initial contribution is subject to reimbursement from the Initial
Advertising and Promotional Deposit. Additionally, we reserve the right to require a monthly contribution
in an amount we designate, not to exceed 2% of Gross Sales, to be paid to the BPF. The Brand Protection
Fund contribution is nonrefundable and uniform for all new franchisees.

Fees and Costs Specific to the Purchase of an Existing Franchised Business

You may acquire an existing franchised business on terms negotiated between you and our franchisee,
subject to the transfer provisions of our franchisee’s agreement with us. You must pay us a Resale Training
Fee of $5,000 if you purchase an existing franchised business, which is due and payable before closing on
the purchase of the business. If you acquire an existing franchised business, you must also pay the Initial
Sales Education Fee of $3,750 and require your Operating Principal to participate in this sales-related
training program. We also may require you to pay the Initial Accounting Services Fee (ranging from $3,275
to $7,500) as described above. These payments are nonrefundable. The Resale Training Fee and Initial
Sales Education Fee are uniform for all franchisees purchasing an existing franchised business. We will
determine the amount of the Initial Accounting Services Fee, if any, based on our assessment of your
bookkeeping experience and capabilities.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty Fee Standard: Wednesday of | You must pay the Royalty Fee by
7% to 3% each week automatic bank draft. Some banks
Roll-in: or other financial institutions charge

a fee for electronic transfers, which
can range from $3 to $20 per
transfer. These electronic transfer

4% to 3% of the “rolled-in”
Gross Sales (see Notes 2 and

3) fees are often negotiable.
Minimum Beginning on the first Wednesday of | If you are “rolling-in” an existing
Royalty Fee anniversary of the date we each week business, the Minimum Royalty Fee
execute the Franchise begins four months after we execute
Agreement through the end the Franchise Agreement or when
of the second anniversary you complete Simulation Training,
year, you must pay a whichever occurs first, and will be a
Royalty Fee of $250 per certain percentage (3%-4%,
week plus an additional depending on annual Gross Sales
DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® 7
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
$125 per week for each rolled in; see Note 2) of the Gross
additional 100,000 in Sales “rolled-in”. This percentage
population over the will apply for 16 weeks. Thereafter,
minimum population of you will pay the greater of the
200,000. The population in percentage amount or $250.00 until
your territory is subject to the expiration of 24 months from
increase each January. the effective date of the Franchise
Agreement (depending on the
Beginning the week amount you “roll—'in”), at which
following the third time you will begin paying the
anniversary of the date we greate.r Qf the percentage amount or
execute the Franchise the Mlnlmum Franchlse Royalty
Agreement; you must pay a Fee described in the Franch1§e
Royalty Fee of $500 per Agreement. If you are renewing
week plus an additional your license, the Minimum Royalty
$250 per week for each Fee begins with the first wgek of the
additional 100,000 in term of the renewal Franchise
population over the Agreement. (See Notes 2 and Note
minimum population of 5.)
200,000. The population in
your territory is subject to
increase each January. (See
Note 5.)
Marketing, 2% of Gross Sales. Wednesday of | All MAP Fee contributions go into
Advertising, However, if you have an each week a MAP Fund that we administer as
and Promotion | existing business which you explained in Item 11. (See Note 1.)
Fee (“MAP “roll-in” to the franchise, we
Fee”) will discount the MAP Fee
to 1% of the “rolled-in”
amount for a certain period
of time.
(See Notes 2 and 3.)
Minimum MAP | 1% of Gross Sales “rolled in” | Wednesday of | The Minimum MAP Fee applies
Fee each week only if you “roll-in” an existing
business. (See Note 2.)
Adpvertising If a local or regional Determined A local or regional Advertising
Cooperative Cooperative is formed fora | by members Cooperative may be established by
geographic area that of the a group of franchisees, with our
includes your territory, you | Cooperative permission, for a specific

will determine the annual
contribution in cooperation
with the other members of
the Cooperative. We specify
that the maximum annual
contribution to a
Cooperative cannot exceed

geographic area. The members of
the Cooperative establish their own
procedures and contributions as
explained in Item 11. If we own a
unit that is a member of a
Cooperative, it has the same vote as
any other member of the
Cooperative and makes the same
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Type of Fee!

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

2% of your Gross Sales.
(See Note 3.)

contribution. If we do not own a
unit, we do not vote.

Required The initial advertising and When you are | You must spend the required
Advertising promotional deposit will billed/as amount on local marketing and
Spending cover the advertising spend | incurred promotion of the services and
requirement through the products available through the
second anniversary year of Franchise in accordance with our
operation. During the third standards and specifications. This
year, you must spend at least requirement is in addition to any
5% of your annual Gross MAP Fee or any contribution to a
Sales, and during the fourth Cooperative.
and each additional year,
you must spend at least 3%
of your annual Gross Sales.
Additional Ranges between $350 to Before The training provided may be
Voluntary or $1,000 per person per day. training business or technical, classroom or
Mandatory If training is conducted on- workshop-based in nature, which
Training site at your location, you will affect the daily cost of the
must also reimburse us for training.
our actual costs. If we or our designee travels to your
location to provide the training, you
must also reimburse us for actual
costs, including travel, lodging, and
dining costs.
Reunion Usually $400 to $595 per Currently, We charge you a per-person
Registration Fee | person, with discounts for drafted on registration fee to attend Reunion
early registration. For non- April 1% (annual convention). This amount is
participants, there is a before automatically drafted from your
separate charge for the Reunion account and is nonrefundable upon
Awards Banquet, usually payment.
$75 for children under 12
and $125 for persons over
12. These fees may increase
in the future.
Continuing $350 The 15" of If you are current in payments, you
Education Fee each month or | may qualify for reimbursement of
such other certain training-related expenses.
time as we (See Note 4.)
designate.

Monthly
Software
Maintenance
and Support Fee

Currently, $515

The 1% of each
month or such
other time as
we designate.

Beginning three months after the
Effective Date of the Franchise
Agreement, you must pay us, via
automatic bank draft, a monthly
Software Maintenance and Support
Fee (or beginning with the first
month of the term of your renewal
Franchise Agreement for renewing
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Type of Fee!

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

franchisees). Monthly fee shall be
subject to an increase of 3% each
January. We also may increase
monthly fees, and/or modify the
services that are provided for these
fees based on development and
enhancement of various elements of
our software and required third
party software. Any payment not
made within ten days after the
payment is due will bear interest at
the rate of 1%2% per month.

Construction
Design Review
Fee

$5,000

On demand

Construction plans for your
franchised location must be
approved before construction
begins; you must pay us a $5,000
construction design review fee and
our then-current charge for travel
(currently the charge is $3,000) if
you do not get our written approval
of your plans before construction
begins. (See Note 6.)

Transfer Fee

$1,500 for transfer to a
controlled entity

Upon transfer

If you sign the franchise agreement
as an individual, and later assign to
an entity that you control, you will
pay us a $1,500 transfer fee

Transfer Fee

10% of selling price for the
business or $20,000,
whichever is greater

Upon transfer

If you sell the franchised business,
or if there is a change in ownership,
you will pay us a transfer fee equal
to the greater of 10% of the sales
price or $20,000.

Warranty
Escrow Upon
Transfer

Up to 10% of sales price

Upon transfer

If you sell your franchised business,
we may hold up to 10% of the
purchase price in an escrow fund for
a period of one year. If a warranty
or service agreement claim is made,
we will charge the escrow fund our
then-current hourly service fee (a
minimum of $80 per hour) for
labor, plus the actual cost of
materials and supplies, a handling
fee equal to 10% of the cost of
materials and supplies, plus a $200
handling fee for each claim. At the
end of the one-year period, we will
release any remaining escrowed
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks

funds to you minus a handling fee
of $250.

Late Report or $25 per late Report On demand The Late Report Fee applies to

Amended $50 per amended Report Royalty Reports received from you

Report Fee more than five days after the due
date. The Amended Report Fee
applies to Royalty Reports which
require amending after submission
due to inaccuracy or error.

Administrative | $500 per violation or On demand If you are in default of your

Enforcement enforcement action and the obligations under the Franchise

Fee greater of $250 or 1% of Agreement or the Brand Standards,

Gross Revenue we can charge an administrative fee

and may increase your Royalty Fee
by 1% of Gross Revenue or $250,
whichever is greater, during any
period of your noncompliance.

Software $1,000 per occurrence On demand Applies only if you fail to purchase,

Administrative install, or enter into license or user

Enforcement agreements related to any software

Fee or required technology you must
use in connection with your
franchise.

Dishonored $75 On demand If your financial institution returns a

Check or ACH check or ACH draft for insufficient

Draft funds, you must pay us this fee for
each item returned.

Interest 12% on unpaid balances or | On demand Payable on all overdue amounts.

the maximum interest rate
permitted by law, whichever
1s less
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Type of Fee! Amount Due Date Remarks
Failure to Our actual cost On demand If you fail to maintain the required
Maintain insurance coverage on your
Insurance franchise, we may acquire and pay
for the insurance coverage and
charge you.
Audit Cost of audit plus expenses | When you are | Payable only if we find an

if underpayment is 3% or
more

billed

understatement of Gross Sales of
3% or more by audit.

Renewal Fee

$10,000

On renewal

If you elect to renew your Franchise
Agreement, you must pay the
Renewal Fee and meet the
requirements for renewal.

Amendment Fee

Our actual out-of-pocket
costs, including legal costs,
with a minimum fee of
$1,500

When you are
billed

You must pay us a processing fee
for modifications to your Franchise
Agreement that are made at your
request. When you request an
amendment to your Franchise
Agreement or related agreements,
we may require that you sign a
general release releasing us from all
claims you may have except claims
which, under state law, may not be
released.

Unapproved Our actual out-of-pocket On demand If you want to purchase items under
Vendors costs of inspection, review, specification from an unapproved
or testing, whether or not we vendor, you must make a written
approve the item. request. If we are not familiar with
the vendor or if we believe it
necessary, we may request a sample
of the item for inspection, review,
or testing before either granting or
withholding our approval.
Liquidated According to a formula On demand If you violate the covenant against
Damages based on your two-year competition or other confidentiality
Royalty Fee history or the provisions or the co-branding
length of time you violated provisions and we are unable to
the co-branding provision obtain equitable relief, we may
demand liquidated damages. (See
Note 7.)
Tax Varies according to tax When you are | You must pay us an amount equal
Reimbursement billed to any sales tax, gross receipts tax,

income tax, or other taxes or
assessments imposed on us with
respect to any payments due to us
under the Franchise Agreement.
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Type of Fee!

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Holdover
Amounts

Royalty Fee and MAP Fee
payments will equal 150%
of the rates described in

your Franchise Agreement

Weekly

If you continue to operate the
franchised business after the
expiration of the initial term before
completing the requirements to
renew, the Royalty Fee and MAP
Fee will automatically increase at
the initiation of any holdover
period.

Indemnification

Varies according to loss

On demand

If we must engage an attorney to
enforce our rights under the
Franchise Agreement and we
prevail, you must reimburse us for
all reasonable attorneys’ fees, court
costs and expenses expended or
incurred in enforcing our rights. If
we are sued because of something
you do or fail to do, you must
indemnify us and/or reimburse us
for all costs, including reasonable
attorney’s fees (which may include
outside counsel fees and in-house
legal costs charged at rates
comparable to outside attorneys),
court costs and expenses we incur.

Brand
Protection Fund

Initial contribution $5,000

On demand

A brand protection fund may be
established. If such a fund is
established, you must pay us $5,000
for an initial contribution to the
fund. The initial contribution to the
fund is subject to reimbursement
from the Initial Advertising and
Promotional Deposit. Additionally,
if the fund is established, we may
require monthly contributions, not
to exceed 2% of Gross Sales. This
contribution is not refundable.

Note 1. All fees are imposed by us and are payable to us. All fees are non-refundable and we may require
that all fees, including late fees and interest charges, be paid by automatic bank draft. For the calendar year
2025, MAP Fees will be capped at $50,000 for new franchisees but may be capped at a different amount

for franchisees who entered into Franchise Agreements before the date of this disclosure document.

Note 2. During the term of the Agreement, beginning the first full week after the eight-month anniversary
of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement, you must begin to report Gross Sales and pay us a weekly
Royalty Fee based on your annual aggregate Gross Sales, as indicated in the chart below. The Gross Sales
calculation will be based on reports due to us during the period beginning on January 1% and ending on
December 31% of each calendar year. As reports are due on a weekly basis, the first report of each year may

include Gross Sales from the previous year.
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Annual Aggregate Gross Sales Royalty Fee Percentage
$0 — $749,999 7%
$750,000 — $1,499,999 6%
$1,500,000 — $2,499,999 5%
$2,500,000 — $3,999,999 4%
$4,000,000 — over 3%

If you have an existing business which is similar to the franchise and you agree to merge the existing
business with the franchise, we will discount the Royalty Fee according to the rates in the following chart
on the “rolled-in” Gross Sales and discount the MAP Fee to 1% of the “rolled-in” Gross Sales for a
certain period of time based on the amount of Gross Sales you “roll-in”:

Annual Gross Sales Rolled-In Royalty Fee Percentage
$0 — $499,999 4%
$500,000 — $999,999 3.5%
$1,000,000 — $1,500,000> 3%

You will still be required to pay us an additional Royalty Fee and MAP Fee at the rate stated in the chart
above in this Note 2, on the combined sales volume if you exceed, in any given year, the annual Gross Sales
“rolled-in”. The discounted fees on the “rolled-in” Gross Sales apply for the time periods shown below:

Amount Rolled-In Years
Up to $100,000 0
$100,001 and over 2

For additional information for an existing business with $100,001 or more of Gross Sales that you merge
or “roll-in” with the franchise, see Exhibit F-3 of this disclosure document.

Note 3. Gross Sales means all revenues of the franchised business, being all revenues from services
performed from, through, by or on account of the operation of the franchise and/or revenues from the sale
of products, less the amount of sales tax or similar receipts which, by law, are chargeable to customers, if
such taxes are separately stated when the customer is charged and if such taxes are paid to the appropriate
taxing authority. Gross Sales does not include any bona fide refunds, rebates or discounts granted in the
ordinary course of business. Gross Sales includes all sales, whether cash or credit, including, credit card
and debit card transactions and payments using a check, via wire transfer, or any other form of electronic
or digital payment, with payment received at the time the debit, charge, check, or payment is made. If a
transaction that was included in a prior period’s report of Gross Sales is subsequently determined to be
uncollectible, that amount will be allowed as a credit against the Gross Sales reported to us for the period
in which the determination is made. Gross Sales does not include income generated by your operation of
any competitive business identified on Exhibit B-1 of the Franchise Agreement (“Competitive Business”)
if (i) the operation of the Competitive Business does not interfere with your operation of the franchised
business; (ii) you do not utilize our Marks, System and Confidential Information in the operation of the
Competitive Business; (iii) the Competitive Business does not directly compete with the franchise by
offering the same services and/or products as the franchise; and (iv) you maintain separate books and
records for each of the franchise and the Competitive Business. If you keep separate sales accounts and
costs of sales accounts within an existing bookkeeping system, we will consider the separate books and
records requirement to have been met. You must agree to make the books and records for your Competitive
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Business available to us upon reasonable prior written notice so that we may verify your compliance with
the requirement concerning separate books and records.

If you have an existing business with work that was started prior to execution of the Franchise Agreement,
then, beginning with the Monday following the completion of Simulation for the jobs which you have
already received a deposit or design fee but no construction has started, you must report all Gross Sales
received from this date on. For jobs where construction started before this date you do not have to report
Gross Sales received from that job.

Note 4. Beginning six months after the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement, and continuing
throughout the franchise term, you must pay us a Continuing Education Fee of $350 per month via
automatic bank draft. If you meet certain requirements, it is our current policy to rebate you for attending
certain specified training meetings. For the first meeting, we will rebate $2,100, the amount of the Initial
Education Fee paid to us; for each additional meeting, we will reimburse you $2,100. Total rebate, for any
year, will not exceed the sum of your Continuing Education Fee payments or $4,200. To qualify for rebate,
you must be in compliance under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, current in all payments due,
including the Continuing Education Fee, and you must attend the training meeting in its entirety. Currently,
January Training Workshop and Reunion are the only meetings that qualify for this payment. Your rebate
payment will be processed and sent to you in the time and manner we determine. The $350 monthly fee is
not refundable, will not be kept in a separate account or fund and will not be separately accounted for. We
may modify or discontinue this policy at any time. If you are not current in payments owed to us, but have
attended or completed a qualified event, we reserve the right to apply each $2,100 payment you are entitled
to receive towards your overdue amount in lieu of remitting cash to you.

Note 5. We may increase the Minimum Royalty Fee each January by an amount equal to the increase, if
any, in “The Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers, U.S. City Average, All Items” published by
the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, or any successor or substitute index appropriately adjusted. It shall
never be increased more than once per calendar year and it will never be increased by more than $50 per
week in any calendar year period. The population in your territory is subject to increase January 1% of each
year by an amount equal to the estimated population increase prepared by the U.S. Census Bureau or any
substitute source. If you are renewing your Franchise Agreement, the Minimum Royalty Fee begins with
the first week of the term of the renewal Franchise Agreement and is the greater of the Minimum Royalty
Fee in the renewal Franchise Agreement or the Minimum Royalty Fee in your existing Franchise
Agreement.

Note 6. Construction designs and plans must be approved by us before construction begins. If you do not
get our written approval of your designs and plans before construction begins you must pay us a $5,000
construction design review fee and our then-current charge for travel fee (currently the charge is $3,000).
Our approval must be in writing and applies to all designs, plans and modifications to designs and plans.
Upon review, any required modifications must be made and paid for by you.

Note 7. If you violate the covenant against competition or other confidentiality provisions, we may, at our
option, demand liquidated damages equal to 104 times the sum of largest weekly Royalty Fee and largest
weekly MAP Fee paid by you to us during the term of this Franchise Agreement. The Existing Business
Addendum, Exhibit F-3 to this disclosure document, provides for liquidated damages according to a
formula based on the amount of time you violate co-branding provisions if we do not or cannot obtain
equitable relief.
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ITEM 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Amount To Whom
Type of Expenditure l\g;ﬂ:::gn:f When Due Payment is to
Low High y be Made
Initial Franchise Fee (see $48,000 plus $75,600 plus  |Lump sum |When you sign the Us
Note 2) $240 per 1,000 |$240 per 1,000 Franchise Agreement
additional additional
population over |population over
the minimum  |the minimum
Software Support Fee (see $4,495 $4,495 Lump sum |When you sign the Us
Note 3) Franchise Agreement
Vehicle (see Note 4) $0 $11,000 As As incurred Independent
arranged Vendors
Equipment, Supplies & $30,205 $34,205 As As incurred Independent
Inventory (see Note 5) arranged Vendors and Us
Insurance (see Note 6) $7,500 $12,000 As As incurred Independent
arranged Carriers
Initial Advertising & $36,000 $60,000 Lump sum |When you sign the Us
Promotional Deposit (see Franchise Agreement
Note 7)
Initial Education Fee (see $2,100 $2,100 Lump sum |When you sign the Us
Note 8) Franchise Agreement
Training, Travel, Lodging & |$4,000 $8,000 As As incurred Independent
Food (see Notes 9 and 13) arranged Vendors
Deposits, Permits & Licenses |$0 $2,000 As As incurred Independent
(see Note 10) arranged Vendors
Real Estate (see Note 11) $71,500 $179,081 As As incurred Third party
arranged suppliers
Professional Fees (see Note  |$8,275 $12,500 As As incurred Third party
12) arranged suppliers and
Us
Additional Funds — 9 to 12 $18,000 $101,250 As needed |As incurred Various Payees
mo. (includes estimated
personal living expenses for 6
to 12 mo.) (see Note 14)
Refundable Design Center $5,000 $5,000 Lump sum |When you sign the Us
Deposit (see Note 15) Franchise Agreement
Totals (see Note 16) $235,075 to $507,231 plus any additional franchise fee

Note 1. For all items in the table above other than those that you pay to us at signing of the Franchise
Agreement you must arrange up front the required amounts in a bank account or have a dedicated line of
credit. We will require evidence to our satisfaction that these arrangements have been made. If you purchase
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an existing franchised business, you will not pay an initial franchise fee but will pay us a $5,000 Resale
Training Fee and a $3,750 Initial Sales Education Fee.

Note 2. The minimum initial franchise fee to be paid to us is $48,000 for a Territory containing a population
of 200,000, which is the minimum Territory you may purchase for more rural and less densely populated
areas; or an initial franchise fee of $75,600 (which includes the Population Discount) for a Territory
containing a population of 350,000, which is the minimum Territory you may purchase for more densely
populated and urban areas. You may purchase a Territory of up to a 1,000,000 in population where the
Initial Franchise Fee is calculated as $240 per 1,000 population. You must pay to us an initial franchise fee
of $48,000. However, there are certain situations in which you might qualify for a discount on the initial
franchise fee as described in Item 5. You must pay the initial franchise fee in full when you sign the
Franchise Agreement. We may agree to finance a portion of the initial franchise fee, depending upon your
credit-worthiness, the collateral which you have available to secure the loan and our then-current lending
policies, as explained in Item 10. Monthly loan payments depend upon the amount financed. The initial
franchise fee is not refundable except as described in Item 5. A territory will generally contain a population
ranging from 200,000 to 1,000,000. A larger territory may be allowed under certain exceptional
circumstances to be determined at our discretion. See Item 10 for more information about financing.

The numbers in the chart do not reflect the 20% veteran’s or first responder’s discount. If you qualify for
our veteran’s or first responder’s discount, as described in Item 5, your estimated initial investment ranges
from $225,475 to $492,111.

Note 3. Upon signing the Franchise Agreement, you must pay us a software license fee of $4,495. We may
increase these fees, and/or modify the services that are provided by us or our designee for these fees, but
we will notify you of any changes applicable to you. We may remit a portion of this fee to a service provider
and retain a portion of the fee to cover our costs and development.

Note 4. At least one full-size cargo van, truck-enclosed trailer combination or truck-camper-top
combination (vehicle) is required. Minimum acceptable enclosed trailer size is 6’ x 10” with a minimum
height of 6°6”. Trailers must meet quality standards comparable to Wells Cargo® brand. A camper top
cannot have windows, must be professional in appearance and satisfactory in appearance to us.

Each vehicle must not be more than four years old at the time of acquisition, in excellent condition, white
in color (including truck-enclosed trailer combination) and have the required graphics decal/wrap package,
including Marks professionally applied before the vehicle is put into service. We do not sell or lease
vehicles. An existing vehicle can be converted for use in the franchised business or you may choose to
acquire a vehicle; either must meet our specifications. One graphics wrap set featuring our Marks for a
standard van is included in your franchise development package. You must purchase a graphics wrap set
for each additional vehicle from our preferred vendor. The low figure assumes you currently own a full-
size cargo van or truck that meets our qualifications. The high figure assumes that you are purchasing or
leasing a cargo van or truck that is four years old or newer, and financing a $25,000 total purchase price
over three years. The high figure represents a 20% down payment, plus taxes, title and registration, and
nine months’ finance payments of $664 each. The estimated cost range reflects the cost of acquiring a
vehicle only that meets our standards, not including the graphics wrap package. You may customize your
vehicle wrap to include additional approved information for an additional charge.

Note 5. If you already own an existing business similar to the franchise, you will own much of the necessary
equipment, supplies and inventory, including computer hardware and software, to begin the operation of
your franchise. The low estimate shown here assumes that you already own an existing business similar to
the franchise with many of these necessary items. However, you must get approval for items such as
computer hardware and software because all of these items must meet our specifications. The high estimate
shown here assumes you do not own an existing business, and includes office and field equipment, software
and printer, etc., including inventory and supplies needed to equip your franchise in accordance with our
standards. Both estimates include printed material (i.e., business cards, stationery, brochures, marketing
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materials, etc.), certain software packages, the franchise development package that must be purchased from
us for $22,495, and initial sales training.

Note 6. You must purchase the insurance coverage described in Item 8. If you do not, we can purchase it
for you and bill you for our costs. Insurance costs will vary depending on such factors as the number of
vehicles to be insured, your driving record (or your employees’ driving records), the insurer you choose,
your location and other factors bearing on risk expense practices which apply to your locality.

Note 7. You will need to advertise locally in the start-up phase of your franchise to help establish name
recognition in your locality, as well as generate customer leads. You are also required to hire a part-time
marketing coordinator (minimum of 16 hours per week). You may receive reimbursements up to $12,000
from your Initial Advertising and Promotional Deposit during the first year of operation for the marketing
coordinator’s wage. This deposit amount will be paid to us and returned to you as described in Item 5 and
Item 11.

Note 8. The fee will be returned to you upon your attendance, in its entirety, of the first network training
event (i.e. January Workshop or Reunion) that occurs after the execution of your Franchise Agreement.

Note 9. You should allow at least the minimum amount stated above for travel, lodging, food and other
miscellaneous living expenses incurred during Initial Training. Your actual costs will vary, depending on
the distance traveled, method of travel, and your personal preferences. The low estimate shown above
assumes we will train no additional people. The high estimate includes an additional amount of training
fees and costs in the event you wish us to train additional employees. Both estimates include the required
visit to a franchise during the Simulation Training.

Note 10. You are responsible for obtaining any permits or contractor’s licenses as well as any other business
licenses required by state or local law. You should consult your attorney or your local city, county and state
authorities about the specific legal requirements for payment of sales tax and business licenses and related
types of expenses.

Note 11. Within 12 months of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement, you must begin operating
from a commercial location that meets our then-current site selection criteria for a design center as set forth
in the Manual. The low figure assumes you have an existing business and will be converting an existing
retail showroom to a DreamMaker Design Center. The high figure reflects our estimated cost of mortgage
or lease payments and utilities over a seven-month period, and the cost of buildout, displays and furnishings.
No other related costs are included. Your costs will vary, and you must make your own individual estimate
of expenses for real estate based on costs in your local market.

Note 12. This estimate is for fees that will be charged by your attorney to review the Franchise Agreement
and other documents, to advise you and to incorporate a business entity on your behalf, as well as those
charged by your accountant and/or financial advisor. These are estimates and your actual fees may vary
significantly depending on the specific work you request, the advisors you select and the rates for
professional fees in your area. The low estimate assumes the business is a Rebranded Franchise and the
high estimates assumes the business is a Start-Up Franchise. Both estimates include the initial accounting
services fee that you will pay to us and which we will use to pay our designated bookkeeping and accounting
service providers.

Note 13. We charge you a per-person registration fee to attend Reunion. We determine the registration fee
in the fall of each year for the following year’s Reunion. The registration fee is usually $400 to $595 per
person, with discounts for early registration and for subsequent attendees. For non-participants, there is a
separate charge for the Banquet, usually $75 for children under 12 and $125 for those over 12. These fees
may increase in the future. We will automatically draft the Reunion registration fee. Currently, we draft the
registration fee on April 1% before Reunion. This fee is nonrefundable because your attendance is required.
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Note 14. We recommend that you have additional funds available during the start-up phase of your
franchise. These amounts are our estimates of the amount needed to cover your expenses before opening
and for a six to 12-month period from the date you open for business, and include funds needed to pay the
Software Maintenance and Support Fee, additional required software costs, and Continuing Education Fee.
These figures are only estimates, and we cannot assure you that you will not have additional expenses
starting your franchise. Your actual costs will vary according to your approach to the franchise; your
management skills, experience and business acumen; local economic conditions; the local market for the
franchise’s services; the prevailing wage rate in your market; competition and the rate of growth of your
franchise. We recommend that you obtain independent estimates from third-party vendors of the costs
which would apply to your establishment and operation of a franchise or discuss the economic experience
of opening and operating a franchise with our current and past franchisees. Included in additional funds is
an estimate of personal living expenses estimated at $3,000 to $6,000 per month and the estimated salary
of a part-time office manager (minimum 20 hours a week) and up to a full-time office manager dedicated
solely to your franchise operation. You must hire an office manager and the office manager must commence
employment with you prior to the commencement of Simulation Training. This is based on our experience
and information from franchisees who have estimated this for themselves. This is only an estimate. The
estimated initial investment and other estimates in this disclosure document do not take into account your
debt, all ongoing working capital requirements, accounts receivable financing or other costs. We do not
furnish nor do we authorize our salespersons or anyone else to furnish estimates as to those amounts. We
recommend that you review these figures carefully with your business advisors.

Note 15. The deposit will be returned to you in two stages: 1) $2,500 upon execution of a commercial lease
through our designated representative; and 2) The remaining $2,500 will be returned to you upon
completion of the following: a) obtaining an approved design for your Design Center (to ensure approval
of the design for your Design Center, the design must be completed by our preferred designer); b)
submission of an estimate for your design center buildout using our required estimating software and you
review your submission with your franchise coach; and c) operating from an approved design center within
12 months of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement..

Note 16. All of the fees listed as payable to us are non-refundable, except as described in Item 5. We relied
on our experience to compile these estimates. The actual amount of additional funds you will need depends
on a variety of factors, such as whether you extend credit terms to customers or the time of year you start
your business. Financing for all or some of the above costs may be available.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

You must maintain the highest standards of quality and workmanship in order to provide the highest quality
of service to your customers. We may specify particular performance standards in our Manuals, via our
intranet system, or otherwise in writing. We can, and expect to, modify our standards as we deem necessary.
We will notify you of any changes to the standards or the Manuals.

Before you attend Simulation Training, you must purchase insurance coverage. Such policy or policies shall
be written by an insurance company with an A.M. Best rating of not less than A-VII in accordance with
standards and specifications set forth in the Operations Manual or otherwise specified in writing by us. You
must keep an insurance policy in force during the term of your Franchise Agreement. If you fail to do so,
we may, but are not required to, obtain the necessary insurance for you and keep the same in force and
effect, and you shall pay us, on demand, all premiums charged for the policies of such insurance. You must
obtain, in the amounts shown below: 1) comprehensive general liability insurance, and you must name us
as a Grantor of Franchise additional insured on this policy of insurance and ask your carrier to give us an
Additional Insured Grantor of Franchise endorsement form CG2029 (or an endorsement form with
comparable language acceptable to us) as evidence of this coverage before you attend Simulation Training;
2) commercial auto liability; should be written for “any auto” Symbol 1 or a combination of Symbols 8 and
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9 so that coverage is provided for all owned (or scheduled) and hired and non-owned autos and you must
ask your carrier to give us a certificate of insurance as evidence of this coverage before any vehicle is put
into use; and 3) other insurance required by us or your state or locality. The amounts and types of insurance
required may increase in the future. Currently, we require you to maintain the following minimum insurance
coverage:

Type of Coverage Minimum Limits

Comprehensive General Liability $1,000,000 occurrence / $2,000,000
aggregate

Commercial Auto Liability $1,000,000 combined single limit

Umbrella Policy: Must Extend over Auto, Employers and
General Liability

Up to $2,000,000 in annual gross sales $1,000,000

$2,000,000 - $5,000,000 in annual gross sales | $2,000,000

Over $5,000,000 in annual gross sales $3,000,000

We also require you to obtain Workers’ Compensation with statutory limits, including Employer’s Liability
of $500,000/$500,000/$500,000, but recommend the statutory limits of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000.
Alternate Employer’s endorsement in our favor, and any other insurance that may be required in the state
in which your franchised location operates. If your franchise location operates in a monopolistic state (i.e.,
Wyoming, North Dakota, West Virginia, Washington, and Ohio), you must also obtain Stop Gap coverage
on the Workers’ Compensation policy or General Liability policy. Minimum limits are as follows: no less
than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury by accident; $500,000 policy limit by disease; and $500,000
per employee for bodily injury by disease or higher coverage as required by law in your state. Owner only
operator with no employees may opt out of Workers’ Compensation according to applicable state
guidelines.

We also require you to obtain Data Breach/Cyber Liability insurance with minimum limits of $50,000.

At our request, you must use the services of our designated tenant representative to assist you with site
selection and negotiating a letter of intent for the Design Center premises. Our tenant representative may
receive a commission as a result of your signing a lease.

You must engage the services of a certified public accountant to assist you in setting up your books and
records, including our required chart of accounts and customed QuickBooks template, and for preparing
annual compiled financial statements. You also must use our designated vendor to provide bookkeeping
services and payroll services, as outlined in the Manuals. You must use QuickBooks Online Advanced by
Intuit which you must purchase through a third party. You must sync your accounting files with Qvinci.
We may require you to provide us with audited financial statements, using an independent certified public
accountant designated by or satisfactory to us, to adopt a fiscal year consistent with ours, to cooperate with
our auditors and to comply with such additional requirements as may be reasonably necessary in order to
enable us to meet our obligations under GAAP and to comply with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 2003) (“FIN 46R”) and any amendments or
supplements to it.

We will license you one or more telephone numbers and domain names. While we currently pay the charge
for the first phone number, which does not include payment related to telephone service charges and fees,
if you request additional phone numbers, you will be responsible for all related costs. We may require you
to obtain telephone service from our designated providers to the extent permitted by law and must enter
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into whatever form of agreement our chosen vendor requires and contract for such vendor’s services as we
require.

You must purchase or lease your vehicle, equipment, uniforms, computer hardware and software, office
supplies, furniture, displays, samples and trademarked items under our specifications. You must also
purchase certain customized software templates, software, and initial and ongoing training and support
services from our current financial technology and software vendors. Our specifications include standards
for performance and appearance. If we change specifications or standards, you will be notified. Technology
requirements are described in the Appendices of the Technology Agreement.

Other than as stated in this Item, we are not currently an approved vendor for any products but we and our
affiliates may be approved vendors for products and services in the future. We may in the future be the
designated supplier for certain products, including additional computer software, hardware and internet or
intranet services. Any products sold by us or our affiliates to you will be sold at the price and on the terms
we specify. The cost of items purchased in accordance with specification represents approximately 16% to
18% of your total purchases in connection with the establishment of your franchise and approximately 8%
to 10% of your on-going purchases in connection with operation of your franchise. We will notify you of
approved vendors. You may purchase many of the items under specification from an approved vendor.

We do not provide material benefits to you based on your use of our approved vendors except as stated in
this Item. We may negotiate purchase arrangements, which may include discounted pricing, special terms,
rebates or other incentives with vendors for the benefit of our franchisees and in some cases we may
participate in programs negotiated by an unaffiliated company who may receive a rebate or fee based on
franchisees’ purchases. Some of these purchase arrangements may not apply to you, and some purchase
arrangements or discounts may vary (depending on the location of your territory). If you request we will
notify you of these purchase arrangements. Should you decide to purchase certain products from one of our
recommended vendors, we may be paid a commission or service fee by the supplier. Some purchase terms
are only available if you purchase from our approved vendors.

We or our former affiliates may receive a commission from the brokerage of a capital lease or other
equipment finance, should you require financial assistance from third parties.

We do not currently participate in any purchasing or distribution cooperatives. Our vendor approval
criterion is available upon written request. If you want to lease or purchase items under specification from
an unapproved vendor, you must make a written request. We typically respond to these requests within 30
days. If we are not familiar with the vendor or if we believe it necessary, we may request a sample of the
item for inspection, review and/or testing. We may charge you our actual costs of reviewing and/or testing
the item and any other related costs before giving our decision, which will usually be given within 10 days
after we receive the test results and complete the review. If we withhold our approval of a vendor or item,
you will be notified of the reason. If a tested item does not meet our standards, we may withhold approval
but you are still responsible for paying the costs of testing and review.

Currently, we sell our franchise development package to franchisees and therefore derive revenue from
such sales. We will also derive revenue from any products or items you purchase from us.

If you purchase certain products from our preferred vendor list, we may receive a rebate ranging from 1%
to 6% of the amount paid to vendor.

During our fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, we derived $70,450.24 in commission revenue from
preferred vendor programs, which comprised 2.08% of our total revenues of $3,379,163 for that same
period. We derived $64,485.00 from the purchase of development packages or other products purchased
directly from us, which comprised 1.91% of our total revenue.
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None of our officers owns an ownership interest in a supplier that we require you to purchase from.
Occasionally, our officers may own non-material interests in publicly-held companies that may be suppliers
to our franchise system.

ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you
find more detailed information about your obligation in these agreements and in other items of this
disclosure document.

Disclosure

Obligation Section In Agreement Document Item
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease 4.G.,5.S.,6.A., and 6.F. 11
b. | Pre-opening purchase/leases 4F.,4G,5C,5D,5F., |7,8& 11
5.P., and 6.B.

Site development and other pre-opening 5.C. and 5.D. 7,8& 11

c. | requirements

d. | Initial and ongoing training 4.A. and 5.J. 11

e. | Opening 6.A. 11

f. Fees 1.B.,3,11.B., and 15.K. 5,6,7& 11
Compliance with standards and 5.A.,5B.,7.C.,and 10 11

g. | policies/operating manual

h. | Trademarks and proprietary information 5.P.,7.A.,and 10 13& 14

1. Restrictions on products/services offered 4.D.,5.A.,5.P.,and 5.Q. 8& 16
Warranty and customer service 5.K. 11

J- requirements

k. | Territorial development and sales quotas 2.C.and 3.F. 12

1 Ongoing product/service purchases 4.E. 5.P., and 5.Q. 8

m. | Maintenance, appearance, and remodeling 5.C.,6.D., and 6.E. 11
requirements

n. | Insurance 5.G. 6&8

0. | Advertising 3.1.and 5.1 11

p.- | Indemnification 9 6,9,13& 14

g. | Owner’s participation/management/staffing | 5.A. and 5.B. 11 & 15

r. Records and reports 3K,3L,3M,5H.,and | 6

5.L.

s. | Inspections and audits 5.L. and 5.M. 6&11

t. Transfer 11 17

u. | Renewal! 1.B. 17

v. | Post-Termination obligations 13 17

w. | Non-competition covenants 10 17

x. | Dispute resolution 14 17
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s . Disclosure
Obligation Section In Agreement Document Item
y. | Liquidated Damages® 10.D. and 12. D. 6
z. | Guarantee of Franchisee Obligations Undertaking and Guaranty | 14, 15

Note 1. The Renewal Addendum, attached as Exhibit F-7 to this disclosure document, also speaks to the
terms of your renewal rights.

Note 2. If you violate the covenant against competition or other confidentiality provisions and we are
unable to, or choose not to, obtain equitable relief, we may demand liquidated damages according to a
formula based on your two-year Royalty Fee history. The Existing Business Addendum, Exhibit F-3 to this
disclosure document to this disclosure document calculates liquidated damages according to a formula
based on the amount of time you violate co-branding provisions if we are unable to, or choose not to, obtain
equitable relief.

ITEM 10
FINANCING

We may agree to finance a portion of the initial franchise fee for qualified prospective franchisees under
specified terms and conditions. The amount we agree to finance will depend on your qualifications. The
maximum amount we will finance is 70% of your initial franchise fee. We also limit the amount we will
finance to a specified amount (currently, an amount that is less than 50% of the total equity, debt and other
financial support of your business); and you must represent to us, in writing and in a form we specify,
confirming the dollar amount of your total equity, debt and other financial support. (See Exhibit F-5 to the
Franchise Agreement, Financial Information Sheet). The representation must remain true through the life
of your franchise. We may elect not to approve a transfer, including a transfer to a corporation or other
entity wholly owned by you, if you do not either maintain the same investment in your business or pay any
loans payable to us and/or our Affiliates in full.

Our decision to finance may be based, in part, on your credit-worthiness, the collateral that you have
available to secure the financing and our then-current financing policies. If we agree to finance a portion of
the initial franchise fee, you must sign a promissory note when you sign the Franchise Agreement. You
must sign a security agreement, which provides us with a security interest in the personal property owned
by your franchised business and any similar business that you own. You must pay us the down payment
when you sign the Franchise Agreement and pay the balance in monthly installments. We currently charge
an interest rate based on your credit score as follows:

Credit Score Annual Interest Rate
Under 600 11%
600 - 649 10.5%
650 - 699 10%

700 or more 9.5%

To qualify for the interest rates noted above you must meet our credit standards and be otherwise eligible
for financing. An example of our form of promissory note is attached as Exhibit F-2 to this disclosure
document.

You must make note payments to us by automatic bank draft. Some banks and other financial institutions
charge a fee for electronic transfers that can range from $3 to $20 per transfer but these electronic transfer
fees are often negotiable. Monthly payments will begin approximately three months after you complete
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Foundations Core Training. The length of the repayment term is negotiable but typically does not exceed
five years, and cannot exceed seven years, after you complete Foundations Core Training. We require a
security interest in the franchise, including its assets, against which we may file any liens permissible by
law. You may prepay the note at any time without penalty. If you default, we may declare the entire
remaining amount due. If you do not pay us the entire balance, and any accrued, unpaid interest, you may
be responsible for the court costs and attorneys’ fees we incur in collecting the debt from you, and we may
terminate your Franchise Agreement.

You must waive your rights to certain notices of a collection action in our form of promissory note, security
agreement and guaranty but there are no waivers of defense in our form of promissory note, security
agreement or guaranty. If you are a legal entity, your shareholders, members, partners and/or owners must
personally guarantee the debt and agree to pay the entire debt and all collection costs.

We may sell, assign or discount any promissory note or other obligation arising out of the Franchise
Agreement to a third party. If we sell or assign your promissory note, it will not affect our obligation to
provide the services to you that are described in the Franchise Agreement but the third party may be immune
under the law to any defenses to payment you may have against us.

We may periodically agree with third party lenders to make financing available to our qualified franchisees
and we may, in our sole discretion, refer you to a third-party lender for financing. We have no control over
whether financing will be offered to you by any third-party lender. The lender is not obligated to provide
financing to you or to any other franchisee that the lender finds does not meet its credit requirements and
loan criteria. If we refer you to a third-party lender for financing, we may agree to take a short-term
promissory note until your financing is arranged. An example of our form of short-term promissory note is
attached as Exhibit F-2 to this disclosure document. You must use the proceeds from the lender to pay any
promissory note to us. We do not currently derive income from referrals or placement of financing with
any third party lender. However, we may require payment from you or other persons for the placement of
financing in the future. If we charge for placing financing in the future, we expect to use the payments to
offset our expenses in doing so. Currently, we have no arrangements with third party lenders. We do not
guarantee your obligations to third parties.

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. is not required to provide you with any
assistance.

Before you open your business, we will:

1. Designate your Territory. You will select your business site within your territory subject to our
approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld. (Franchise Agreement, § 2.A.1)

2. Provide you with written specifications and guidelines for opening inventory and supplies, part of
which must be purchased in accordance with specification from approved vendors, as explained in more
detail in Items 7 and 8 (Franchise Agreement, § 4.D. and § 5.Q.).

3. Loan you our confidential Manuals, which contain mandatory and suggested specifications,
standards and procedures. See Manuals below. (Franchise Agreement, § 10.A.)

4, Provide you with recommendations on advertising and promotional materials for use in the pre-
opening promotion of your franchise. (Franchise Agreement, § 4.B.)

5. Provide initial training for three people at no additional cost. See Training below. (Franchise
Agreement, § 4.A.)
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During the operation of your business, we will:

1. If you comply with the contractual reporting requirements to furnish necessary information about
the franchised business, periodically analyze your sales, promotional efforts and financial status and offer
suggestions for improvement and provide on-going advice and assistance as we consider necessary and
appropriate. (Franchise Agreement, § 4.A.)

2. Develop and administer promotional programs and advertising campaigns intended to promote the
products and services provided by our franchisees or advance the business interests of our franchisees.
(Franchise Agreement, § 4.B.). You may develop promotional materials or advertising materials for your
own use, at your own cost. We must approve your promotional materials and advertising materials before
you use them in your franchise. We will usually give you our approval or disapproval within 10 business
days after our receipt of your proposed materials. (Franchise Agreement, § 5.1.)

3. Provide additional or “refresher” training programs, seminars, regional meetings and related
activities regarding the operation of your franchise as we may choose to conduct. Some of these courses
may be mandatory, but most of them will be optional. You must attend and complete all programs we
designate as mandatory. Currently, it is mandatory to attend January Workshop and Reunion. These courses
may be conducted at our headquarters or at any other location we select. You must pay your personal
expenses for training, including travel, living and other miscellaneous expenses. (Franchise Agreement, §
4.A))

4, Update the Manuals as we deem appropriate. (Franchise Agreement, § 10.A.)

5. Indemnify you against and reimburse you for your actual damages if you are held liable in any
proceeding arising out of (a) your authorized use of any of the Marks if you have notified us of the claim;
or (b) our intentionally wrongful actions if you have fully complied with the terms of the Franchise
Agreement. (Franchise Agreement, § 7.D. and § 9.B.)

6. Establish maximum or minimum pricing, as we deem appropriate, and to the extent permissible by
law. (Franchise Agreement, § 5.T).

Advertising and Promotion

All advertising and marketing must follow brand identity standards as described in the marketing manual.

All advertising and promotional materials, signs and other items we designate must bear the Marks (see
Item 13) in the form, color, location and manner we specify. Your advertising and promotion must meet
our standards as described in the Manuals or otherwise in writing. You may prepare and use your own
advertising or promotional materials at your own expense, but if we have not prepared your advertising or
promotional materials, you must get our written approval before you use them.

MAP Fund

We support certain promotional programs and advertising campaigns through a national marketing,
advertising and promotion fund (the “MAP Fund”). We place advertising for the DREAMMAKER BATH
& KITCHEN® system through national electronic media. However, we are not obligated to spend any
amount on advertising in your area or territory. In the past, we have used an outside advertising agency to
create and place advertising and we create some advertising in-house. Neither we nor our former affiliates
receive any payments from the MAP Fund, except for reasonable advertising, marketing and administrative
costs and overhead and except for payments made to us or our designee to help attract and service National
Account Customers that need products and services of the type provided by our franchisees. We use the
MAP Fund to cover our cost of preparing and producing video, audio, Internet and printed advertising
materials; administering national and regional advertising programs including direct mail, point of sale and
other media advertising; employing advertising and public relations agencies; supporting public relations
activities; conducting, analyzing, and other activities related to market research, customer surveys, and
satisfaction reports; trademark availability and usage searches, and trademark, copyright, and other
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intellectual property filings with state or federal government agencies; travel-related, registration, and other
associated costs with respect to attendance at industry (including franchise) tradeshows, conventions, and
events; advertising and marketing activities; and other promotions or activities intended to advance the
business prospects of our franchisees. We may also use the MAP Fund to support national account
programs.

We do not use the MAP Fund to sell additional franchises, but we may include in all advertising prepared
from MAP Fund contributions (including Internet advertising) information concerning franchise
opportunities, and a portion of MAP Fund contributions may be used to create and maintain one or more
interior pages on our website devoted to advertising franchise opportunities and identifying and screening
inquiries and applications submitted by franchise candidates.

You will pay us a fee, to be contributed to our MAP Fund (“MAP Fee”). The MAP Fee is 2% of Gross
Sales. If you have an existing business that you will “roll-in” to the franchise, we will discount the MAP
Fee to 1% of the “rolled in” amount for a certain period of time. For 2025, MAP Fees for new franchisees
will be capped at $50,000. MAP Fees for other franchisees may be calculated at a different rate and may be
subject to a different cap. Company-owned units, if any, are not contractually required to pay a MAP Fee,
but we anticipate that any company-owned units operating under the DREAMMAKER Marks will pay a
MAP Fee, or contribute to the MAP Fund, on approximately the same basis as franchisees. Although the
MAP Fund is intended to be perpetual, we may terminate the MAP Fund at any time, in our sole discretion.
We will not terminate the MAP Fund, however, until all MAP Fund monies have been spent for advertising
or promotional purposes or returned to the contributors, without interest, on the basis of their respective
contributions. An annual unaudited accounting of the MAP Fund is available to you upon written request.
If all MAP Fees are not spent in the fiscal year in which they are received, they remain in the MAP Fund
for future use.

The following percentages correspond to how MAP Fund monies were spent during our fiscal year ending
December 31, 2024:

Type Expense Percent of Expenses
Production 32.92%
Media Placement 49.45%
Administrative Expenses 5.16%

Trade Association Dues 0.55%
Marketing Technology 11.92%
Development

Total 100%

Advertising Cooperatives

You must participate in a local or regional advertising cooperative if located in your territory. We may
approve or require the establishment of local cooperative advertising associations consisting of all
franchises and our company-owned units, if any, within a designated geographical area (a “Cooperative”)
designated by us and we have the right to require cooperatives to be changed, dissolved or merged. Each
local Cooperative must adopt its own written governing documents, a copy of which must be given to us.
If a Cooperative has been established for your territory, a copy of the Cooperative’s governing document
is available upon request. Each Cooperative may determine its own voting procedures. Our company-owned
units, if any, using the Marks would contribute on the same basis and are entitled to vote on the same basis
as you and other franchisees in the area. If we do not own a unit, we do not vote. The annual required
contribution to a Cooperative may not exceed 2% of Gross Sales unless a larger contribution has been
approved by the affirmative vote of two thirds of the Cooperative members. Each Cooperative must make
an annual accounting of its receipts and expenditures available to you and to us upon request.
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Initial Advertising and Promotion

When executing the Franchise Agreement, which will be at least 14 days after you have received this
Disclosure Document, you will pay us an amount between $36,000 and $60,000, to be determined in our
discretion, which we will hold as a deposit. The Franchisor’s Draw will be spent by us on advertising and
promotional activities connected with your franchised business. The remainder of the deposit will be
returned to you as you incur expenditures related to approved advertising and promotional activities. The
lower range of the deposit amount applies to Rebranded Franchises, while the higher range applies to Start-
Up Franchises. We will provide you with a list of approved advertising and promotional activities on which
this amount can be spent and, once you submit to us proof that you have incurred such related expenses,
we will return to you the related expenditure amount, up to the deposit amount, less the Franchisor’s Draw.
Additionally, you must hire a part-time marketing coordinator (minimum 16 hours per week) no later than
30 days prior to completion of Simulation Training. Included in this deposit is up to $12,000 in
reimbursable wages for a part-time marketing coordinator during the first nine months of employment. You
may submit for our approval additional types of advertising and promotional activities; however, you must
receive our written approval in order to request that the amount be drawn from your deposit.

If you do not submit proof of approved advertising and promotional expenditures at least up to the amount
of the remainder of your deposit within 24 months of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement, the
balance will be forfeited. The deposit is refundable before the completion of Simulation if the Franchise
Agreement terminates for any reason, less any expenditure we have incurred in connection with your
franchised business. Beginning as of the completion of Simulation Training, however, the deposit is only
refundable as described above.

Local Advertising

The initial advertising and promotional deposit will cover the first and second year’s advertising spend
requirement. During the third year, you must spend at least 5% of your annual Gross Sales, and during the
fourth and each additional year, you must spend at least 3% of your annual Gross Sales on local marketing
and promotion of the services and products available through the Franchise in the manner we specify. This
requirement is in addition to any MAP Fee or any contribution to a Cooperative.

Advertising Council

We have a Franchise Advisory Council (“FAC”) with a subcommittee (the Marketing, Advertising and
Promotion Committee or “MAP Committee”) that advises us on advertising policies. The FAC and the
MAP Committee consist of Amy Fore Mosley, our Corporate Secretary and Chief Operating Officer, and
certain franchisees that we choose from time to time. The MAP Committee serves in an advisory capacity
only and has no operational or decision-making power. We have the right to form, change, or dissolve the
MAP Committee at any time.

Brand Protection Fund

We have the right to require you to participate in our Brand Protection Fund (“BPF”’), and to make an initial
contribution of $5,000 to the BPF when you sign the Franchise Agreement or at such later time as we may
require, which is subject to reimbursement from the Initial Advertising and Promotional Deposit. We also
reserve the right to require you to contribute monthly to the BPF in an amount we designate, not to exceed
2% of Gross Sales. All Brand Protection Fund monies will be used for the proper completion of jobs
performed by our franchisees and former franchisees, which we believe helps to mitigate damage to the
brand caused by shoddy, incomplete, or never performed work and enhances the DREAMMAKER brand
and reputation, and as reimbursement of administrative costs. We may administer the BPF directly or may
arrange for administration through a separate entity that we and/or our franchisees control, according to
governing documents that we create. If a separate entity is formed, we may require you to become a member
of the entity and to abide by its governing documents. We anticipate that all franchisees will contribute to
the BPF monthly. We may periodically contribute or loan money to the BPF, although we are not
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contractually obligated to do so. The BPF need not be audited. An annual statement of BPF contributions
and expenditures will be made available to franchisees upon reasonable written request.

Computer System

You must use the computer hardware and software specified below in the operation of the franchise. We
will have the right to independently access all information and financial data, including, without limitation,
Gross Sales reports, recorded by the system for polling, audit, and sales verification. There are no
contractual limitations to our right to access or use the information and data recorded by your system.

Hardware

You must use computer hardware with adequate memory, speed and storage to run our required software.
Appendix A to our Technology Agreement (see Exhibit B-4 to this disclosure document) contains a list of
our current requirements. You may acquire your computer hardware from any source. You must have at
least one computer, that meets our current requirements, in service by the end of Foundations Core Training.
We estimate each computer, including peripheral equipment, will cost approximately $3,000, but this
amount will vary, depending on the vendor and the specific features you select to include in addition to our
current requirements. This amount may increase in the future and we cannot estimate the amount of any
increase.

You must enter into an arrangement with a qualified vendor to provide IT support and maintenance;
however, we may waive this requirement if you demonstrate, to our satisfaction, that you have adequate in-
house IT expertise and resources. We do not provide support for hardware or third-party software.

You must pay for all maintenance of your computer(s) at your own expense. We do not require you to sign
any hardware maintenance or support contracts with us or any third-party suppliers. We do not guarantee,
warranty, maintain or support any computer hardware in any manner. You should determine for yourself
whether or not any third-party supplier from whom you purchase any component of your computer system
is obligated to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates to any component of your
computer system, and determine the additional cost for the services. We will periodically advise you in
writing of any required upgrades to your computer hardware and we will give you a reasonable period of
time in which to comply with any required upgrades.

Operating System and Third-Party Software

We estimate the cost of software to be approximately $10,000, but this amount will vary, depending on the
vendor and the specific features and software you select to include in addition to any we require. This
amount may increase in the future and we cannot estimate the amount of any increase. We will have
independent access to the information that will be generated by or stored in your computer system, and
there are no contractual limitations on our right to access this information. In addition, you must use our
required software applications, as described below.

Software and Systems

You must follow our policies and procedures and execute all agreements that we require for your
participation in an intranet system, electronic communications, data storage/retrieval system, website or
software.

You must use our software and must sign the Technology Agreement (Exhibit B-4 to the Franchise
Agreement) and pay a Software Support Fee (currently $4,495) and a monthly Software Maintenance and
Support Fee (currently $515). The amount of such fees will be the then current amount charged for annual
renewal and there are no contractual limits on the amount of the fees or your requirements to upgrade or
maintain this software. Payments not made within 10 days after such payment is due will be charged a late
fee. In the case of any overdue amounts, whether or not related to software or technology fees, we reserve
the right to disable your access or terminate your right to use and access the software. Our required software
includes financial related software such as a QuickBooks template that allows formatting of financial
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information to coordinate with our systems and industry-specific job costing capability (“Financial
System”) and software which provides and combines contact management, sales and lead tracking
management, job estimating and proposal generation, and which produces take-off lists for production and
interfaces with our required accounting software (“Customized Management Software”). You must
purchase our designated accounting software from our designated provider. Additionally, you must engage
third party providers as specified by us to assist with set up of the template and the cost of the work specified
by us is included within the fees paid. There is no software that can be substituted for the QuickBooks
template. You must sign a release to authorize these providers to provide us certain financial information
to enable set up to be completed to our satisfaction. You will be required to grant us remote access to the
information entered into and stored by your financial software at all times We will not be liable for any
claims that arise in connection with this remote access.

This technology includes a chart of accounts compatible with QuickBooks® Online Advanced or another
currently-supported release, and various spreadsheet templates to provide cost data, reporting functions,
and customer tracking. We or our designees will have independent access to the data and information input
and compiled through your use of our required software and there are no contractual limits on our rights to
access or use this information and data.

We may periodically develop other technology, products and upgrades that we may require you to use. We
may charge you a use fee for any new technology enhancements that may take into account our
development, administration and other costs.

You do not have to buy or use an electronic cash register.
Manuals

We will loan you our confidential Manuals, which contain mandatory and suggested specifications,
standards and procedures. The Manuals are confidential and remain our property. We may provide the
confidential Manuals to you in any manner we choose, including by hard copy, or in electronic form,
including through our company intranet, DreamConnect or learning management system, DreamMaker
Learning Center. We will modify the confidential Manuals periodically but the modifications will not
materially alter your status and rights under the Franchise Agreement. Our Manuals also include what we
have entitled our “Process Flow and Sales and Production System” documents, currently consisting of 147
pages, which illustrate the sales and production cycle.

The table of contents from our Foundations Prep Manual is as follows:

Topic No. of Pages
Code of Values 2
Vision and Mission Statement 1
Foundations Core Training 4
Week 1 1
-Operations 23
Week 2 1
-Operations 6
-Marketing 3
Week 3 1
-Operations 8
-Marketing 7
Week 4 1
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Topic No. of Pages
-Operations 4
-Marketing 13
Week 5 1
-Operations 2
-Marketing 9
Appendix 20
Vendor List 12
Total Pages 119

The table of contents from our Foundations Core Training Workbook is as follows:
Topic No. of Pages
Opening/Introduction 3
Discovering the Design Your Life Separate Workbook
Preparing to Learn and Retain 5
Values, Mission, Vision 44
Financial System 17
Marketing (PPT 71 slides) 39
Operating Model Overview 10
Total Pages 189

The table of contents from our Marketing Manual is as follows:
Topic No. of Pages
Opening / Table of Contents 2
Building a Brand 14
Market Research 18
Business Profile 17
The Five Pillars & Non-Negotiables 40
Reference Guide 17
Total Pages 108

The table of contents from our Location Manual is as follows:
Topic No. of Pages
Design Center Overview 2
Timeline for Opening a DreamMaker Design Center 1
Location Selection and Approval 6
Design Process 3
Display Areas 4
Selection Center 1
Office Space 1
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Topic No. of Pages
Appendix 38
Total Pages 56
TRAINING PROGRAM
FOUNDATIONS CORE TRAINING PROGRAM
Hours Of I(I)(::l;h(e)_f
Subject Class.r(.)om Job Location;
Training Training
Opening/Introductions .50 0 via webinar
Preparing to Learn and Retain 75 0 via webinar
Discovering the Design For Your Life 3.00 0 via webinar
Code of Values and Review 1.00 0 via webinar
bxpectaton of Frnchisees | 0 via webinar
uality Assurance Stat Sheet: The . .
gream}i\/laker standard 73 0 via webinar
DreamMaker Financial Overview inc.luding L0 0 via webinar
Out of the Box Technology Introduction
Simulation Schedule and Expectations 1.0 0 via webinar
DreamMaker Brand Overview 75 0 via webinar
DreamMaker Client Overview 1.0 0 via webinar
DreamMaker Non-Negotiables 1.0 0 via webinar
Presentation of Personal Vision / Mission . .
Statement 5 0 via webinar
Operating Model Overview, Building
Passion and Conviction for Selling and 2.00 0 via webinar
DreamMaker’s Marketing Position
Seminar Presentation 1.00 0 via webinar
Wrap-up .50 0 via webinar
Total 17 0

Note 1. The Foundations Core Training Program is currently being delivered via webinar; however, the
Franchisor reserves the right to modify the method of instruction to in-person training held at their
Headquarters in Waco, TX or at another designated location.

Initial and Additional Training

Our initial training consists of our “Foundations Prep Training” and “Foundations Core Training”
programs, which we will provide for up to three people at no additional cost, (jointly, “Foundations
Training”). Foundations Prep Training generally lasts 16-18 weeks and is provided via phone calls,
webinars, and self-study, with the completion of pre-opening checklist tasks. Prior to the commencement
of Foundations Core Training, you must have signed a lease for an approved DreamMaker location; have
all required funding available; and have passed the contractor licensing exam, if applicable. Foundations
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Core Training is currently delivered via webinar and generally is 17 hours spread over 6 business days. We
reserve the right to modify the method of instruction to in-person training at our headquarters in Waco,
Texas, or such other locations as we designate at various times during the year, depending upon the number
of new franchisees entering our System. You (if the Franchisee is an individual) or your designated
Operating Principal (if the Franchisee is a business entity) must attend and successfully complete training
to our satisfaction. You must pay all of your travel and living expenses while attending training, as well as
all of the travel and living expenses for any additional employees you send. The subjects covered,
instructional materials, hours of classroom and/or hands-on training, and instructors for classroom and
hands-on training are periodically subject to change. See our current training program listed above.

Our instructors include: 1) our President, Douglas Dwyer, who has 29 years’ experience in the kitchen and
bath remodeling industry and 36 years’ experience with us; 2) our Chief Operating Officer, Amy Fore
Mosley, who has 23 years’ of experience in the kitchen and bath remodeling industry and 23 years’
experience with us; 3) our Director of Franchise Operations, Dale Ressler, who has 46 years’ experience in
the kitchen, bath, and general remodeling industry and has been associated with us for 9 years; 4) our
Director of Marketing, Joaquin Erazo, who has 27 years’ experience in the kitchen, bath, and general
remodeling industry and has been associated with us for 10 years; 5) our Digital Brand Manager, Taylor
Christie, who has six years of experience with us and six years’ experience in the kitchen and bath
remodeling industry; 6) one of our franchise coaches, Jesse Morado, who has six years of experience with
us and 35 years in the kitchen, bath, and general remodeling industry; 7) our Consumer Marketing Manager,
Brittany Newland, who has three years of experience with us and three years’ experience in the kitchen and
bath remodeling industry; and 8) our Training Coordinator and one of our franchise coaches, Renee Crews,
who has five years of experience in the kitchen and bath remodeling industry and has been associated with
us for five years.

As part of our initial training requirement, you must successfully complete our “Simulation Training” which
will typically begin no later than eight months from the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement. Our
Simulation Training is currently 10 weeks and includes, but is not limited to, self-study exercises related to
our software and financial system, additional sales training and role play, shadowing employees at an
existing franchise location, and marketing assignments tailored to your local market. During the Simulation
Training we may elect to require that you visit, at your expense, our preferred cabinet vendor, and complete
required design courses, at your own expense, prior to becoming fully-operational. We may change the
method of instruction. You may be required to visit or attend training either virtually or in-person at the
location we designate. You must comply with our current method of instruction available at the time of
your Simulation Training.

As part of your initial training requirement, we have contracted with a third-party through which you must
successfully complete an eight-week sales and sales management training program, consisting of one two-
hour class per week. Training will be held at a third-party location closest to you, or by webinar. We only
require that your Operating Principal attend this training, however, you may choose to send additional
individuals to this program. The tuition for each additional individual is $3,750 per person. You must begin
this eight-week sales and sales management training program during the Simulation Training.

Currently, we require that you attend, at your expense, the annual training or conference event specified by
us and referred to as “Reunion” and “January Workshop” every year, as well as any other training we
designate as mandatory. We may also require you to attend and complete a “refresher” training course or
advanced training course if we determine that you are not current on all aspects of the System or are
otherwise in need of training. We reserve the right to conduct Reunion, the refresher training course, and
the advanced training courses either virtually or in-person at the location we designate.

Franchise Location and Opening

Our franchisees customarily open for business within the first full week after Simulation Training, but
typically no later than 30 days after completing Simulation Training. You must complete our initial training
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program and complete the buildout of your retail design center before opening your Franchised Business.
The factors that affect this are the training schedule, your ability to obtain necessary financing, any local
requirements for permits or licenses, completion of the buildout of your retail design center, and your ability
to complete our training agenda.

Before you sign the Franchise Agreement, we will mutually agree upon a site selection area in which your
space must be located. You are responsible for locating a space by utilizing the services of our designated
tenant representative and we must approve the space. By the end of the fifth month after the Effective Date
of the Franchise Agreement you must have acquired space for your retail design center that meets our then-
current minimum criteria. In addition, you must acquire warehouse space, which may be at a different
location. You must obtain our written approval before you sign a lease for the location and before you
purchase exterior signage. If you occupy space according to a commercial lease, the lease must contain
terms that we specify. (See Lease Rider attached as Exhibit F-8 to the Franchise Agreement). If you fail to
timely locate a space that we approve, we may terminate the franchise agreement after providing you notice
of the default and opportunity to cure.

Furthermore, we require that within 12 months after the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement, you
have completed buildout of your fully operational retail design center. Before you open a retail design
center, we will provide you with designs and specifications for a typical retail design center location,
including equipment, fixtures and signs, upon our receipt of your written request. These designs must be
modified at your expense by our designated designer to fit your particular retail location in accordance with
our then-current standards. If you do not obtain our written approval of the design for your specific design
center in advance we may charge you a $5,000 fee and an additional travel fee at our then current rate,
which is currently $3,000, for review of your design. If modifications are required as a result of that review,
you are responsible for making those modifications within 90 days. You are responsible for compliance
with local ordinances, building codes and permits and must construct and equip the retail design center
according to our standards and specifications outlined in the Manuals. You will purchase a franchise
development package from us that includes some items that you need to equip your Franchised Business.
We will also provide you with written specifications for equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory, and
supplies that we require. We do not provide these items directly to you and we do not deliver or install these
items.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets
that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

As described in this Item, you will be granted certain rights in a specific geographic territory but, because
we reserve certain rights in your territory, your rights in the territory are not absolute. Your territory will
generally have a minimum population of 200,000 for more rural or less densely populated areas, a minimum
population of 350,000 for more densely populated and urban areas, and a maximum population that is
generally no more than 1,000,000. We generally do not award territories with a population of more than
1,000,000, but we may award them in exceptional circumstances to be determined at our discretion. The
population in your territory is generally determined from estimates prepared by the U.S. Census Bureau
(see www.census.gov), but we may use a substitute or successor source of population information. You
will maintain rights to your specified territory even if the population in your territory increases. You select
your business site within your territory, subject to our approval. You must operate the franchise from the
approved site. If you wish to relocate, you may do so if we approve in writing. The Franchised Business
must be operated from a retail design center location that meets our minimum requirements.

While we will not operate or grant franchises in your territory while your Franchise Agreement is in effect,
we reserve for ourselves all other rights within and outside of your territory, which includes, without
limitation: (1) the right to sell or distribute products and services through alternate channels of distribution,
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including without limitation, via the internet, mail order, catalogues, and phone; (2) the right to engage in
any business activities, including the grant of franchises, under any trademarks (including the Marks)
outside of your territory, regardless of the proximity to your territory; and (3) the right to engage in any
business activities, including the grant of franchises, under any trademarks except the Marks, both inside
and outside of your territory.

We periodically enter into agreements with national or regional clients that we consider to be national
account customers (“National Account Customers”). Such National Account Customers may be located or
may request services to be performed in your territory. In some cases, for certain National Account
Customers, we or our designee may set the maximum price which you may charge for defined services
and/or products. You have the option not to participate in any national account program. If you refuse, or
if we think you are not qualified, interested or available to perform services for any customer located within
the territory, if you request assistance in the performance of services, if a customer, in writing, specifically
requests services within the territory from a different franchisee, or if a National Account Customer submits
a request for service within the territory which cannot be referred to you under that customer’s contract or
under the standards and procedures of any national account program we reserve the right to appoint a
corporate employee, another franchisee, or a third party to perform the services or to assist you in
performing the subject services.

You cannot provide products/services, advertise for or attempt to solicit customers for any products or
services, including using Internet, telemarketing or other direct marketing without our prior written consent.
We may describe in the Manuals or otherwise in writing the conditions under which we would grant our
consent to your advertisement, solicitation, servicing or selling outside of your territory. Upon our demand
you must discontinue using all advertising and telephone numbers and all territory specific email addresses,
domain names and comparable electronic identities which are active in the area outside your territory and
direct the telephone company and/or service provider servicing you to transfer to us or a person or company
we designate all of the telephone numbers registered to you there and all territory specific email addresses,
domain names and comparable electronic identities

We are not required to pay you as a result of us exercising in your territory any of our rights described in
this Item.

We do not generally grant any right of first refusal to obtain additional territory. You may, if qualified,
purchase a one-year option (18 months in the case of a start-up business) on additional territory by paying
us a fee of 10% of the initial franchise fee for the territory you wish to buy. You must enter into an Option
to Purchase Agreement (substantially in the form of Exhibit F-6 to this disclosure document). At any time
within the one-year period (18 months in the case of a start-up business), you may purchase the additional
territory by paying us the balance of the initial franchise fee. The 10% deposit will be applied to the purchase
price. We do not refund your deposit if you decide to not purchase the additional territory. You may also
acquire additional territory during the term of the Franchise Agreement by entering into another franchise
agreement for that particular territory.

The population in your Territory is subject to increase each January by an amount equal to the estimated
population increase prepared by the U.S. Census Bureau or any substitute or successor source designated
by us. We may terminate your Franchise Agreement if you do not pay us the Minimum Royalty Fee, if
applicable.

You may not provide services and products outside your designated geographic territory unless there is no
other DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® franchisee located in that territory. You may not advertise
or solicit customers outside your territory without our prior written consent.
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ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

We own the following Marks that are registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and
Trademark Office (“USPTO”), and all required affidavits and renewals have been filed:

Description Reglsg?lt:zger Registration Date
Making Your Remodeling Dreams Come True
(standard characters) 2483465 08/28/2001
DreamMaker (standard characters) 3052922 01/31/2006
Enhancing Lives. Improving Homes (standard
characters) 3731087 12/29/2009
DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen (vehicle wrap
stylized design)
3736017 1/12/2010
For the Time of Your Life (standard characters) 3847770 09/14/2010
Independence By Design (standard characters) 3818177 07/13/2010
DreamMaker (standard characters) 3847724 09/14/2010
Man With Stars Design
. R
IRAEE RN SRSONE Wb e on P
R 3847737 09/14/2010
» . * .' " -
DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen (standard
characters) 97762746 06/04/2024
s & ".:.‘.'* "'”'
= 97762752 06/04/2024
DreamMaker
Bath & Kitchen

There are no currently effective determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the
trademark administrator of any state or any court, no pending infringement, opposition or cancellation
proceedings and no pending litigation involving any of the Marks that may significantly affect the
ownership or use of any Mark listed in the table above. No agreements limit our right to use or license the
use of our Marks. We are aware of a residential remodeling company which may have superior rights to

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® 35
Franchise Disclosure Document | 2025



the DREAMMAKER name in Oakland and Macomb Counties, Michigan, but are not aware of any other
superior rights or infringing uses that could affect your use of the DREAMMAKER mark in any state.

We provide residential remodeling and renovation services to seniors and individuals with disabilities under
a program we have named “INDEPENDENCE BY DESIGN.” We are aware of two companies who may
claim superior rights the mark based on prior use in the Washington D.C. area and the States of Maryland
and Virginia. Franchisees in these areas may be required to adopt a different mark under which to offer the
program and its associated services. Other than these instances, we do not have actual knowledge of any
infringing uses that could materially affect your use of our Marks. You must notify us immediately when
you learn about an infringement of or challenge to your use of our Marks. We will take the action we think
appropriate but are not obligated to protect your rights to use the Marks. We have the right to control the
defense of any claim using attorneys we choose and you must cooperate in that defense. You may participate
in the defense and settlement at your own expense but our decisions will be final and binding. We will
indemnify you or reimburse you for your liability and reasonable costs if there is a challenge to your
authorized use of our Marks, provided you notify us immediately after you learned of the challenge and
cooperate with us in defending the challenge as required.

You must follow our rules when you use the Marks and you may only use the Marks for the operation of
your franchise in your territory. You must execute any documents we require to protect the Marks or to
maintain their continued validity and enforceability. You may not directly or indirectly contest the validity
of our Marks, our ownership of the Marks or our right to use or license our Marks, trade secrets, confidential
information or business techniques that are part of our business. You cannot use the Marks as part of a
corporate or other legal name and you must comply with our instructions in filing and maintaining trade
name or fictitious name registrations. We can require you to use new or substituted Marks, or to discontinue
use of any Mark, at your expense. If you propose to use a Mark in an area where a third party has acquired
common law rights, we may permit or require you to operate the Franchised Business under a different
trademark.

You may not use any of the Marks or any part or derivative of the Marks, nor any of our Copyrighted Works
on the Internet, except as permitted by us in writing. Neither may you use the Marks or any recognizable
portion of the Marks, or terms that may suggest an affiliation with us for use or display as all or part of an
e-mail address, Internet domain name, uniform resource locator (URL), hypertext reference (HREF), or
meta-tag, or in connection with any Internet home page, web site, or any other Internet-related activity
without our express written consent, and then only in a manner and in accordance with the procedures,
standards, and specifications that we establish. This prohibition also includes the use or registration of the
Marks, or any derivative of the Marks, as a part of any user name, account name, or in any other way that
may suggest an affiliation with us or the franchise system, on any gaming, blogging, user review, video
sharing, or social networking website (such as FACEBOOK, INSTAGRAM, or X (formerly known as
Twitter)), whether or not such social media platform is used for commercial gain, or as a part of any
unauthorized email address. You also may not display on any website (including commercial, gaming,
blogging, user review, video sharing, and social networking websites) our Copyrighted Works, which
include, but are in no way limited to, the design portion of the Marks and collateral merchandise identified
by the Marks.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

There are no patents or patents pending that are material to the franchise. There are no registered copyrights
material to the franchise, however we claim copyright ownership in our Manuals, software and certain
confidential and proprietary information (“Copyrighted Works”).

You must treat the Manuals and all Confidential Information as confidential. You must also promptly tell
us when you learn about unauthorized use of the Copyrighted Works. We are not obligated to take any
action to protect or defend use of the Copyrighted Works but will respond as we believe appropriate and
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will control any action we decide to bring or defend. We are not required to participate in your defense or
indemnify you for your use infringing of any Copyrighted Works. We do not actually know of any
infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the Copyrighted Works and there are no agreements
that limit our rights to use our Copyrighted Works or to allow others to use them.

“Confidential Information” includes all trade secrets, materials, information, data, knowledge, techniques
and know-how designated or treated by us as confidential and includes any and all Manuals, computer
software or programs including company intranet/DreamConnect, company learning management
system/DreamMaker Learning Center, training materials, operational videos, marketing programs,
franchise rosters, franchisee lists, and any other materials designated or treated by us as confidential. You
may not, at any time during or after the term of the Franchise Agreement, disclose, copy or use any
Confidential Information except as specifically authorized by us.

If we ask, you must have your personnel who receive or will have access to Confidential Information sign
covenants not to divulge the Confidential Information or use it for their own benefit. If you are a corporation
or other business entity, your shareholders, members and/or owners must also abide by these covenants and
sign an Undertaking and Guaranty. If we ask, your employees who have access to your password and log-
in name for our Intranet must sign a confidentiality agreement agreeing to not disclose this information.

If you develop any new product, concept, advertising technique, process or improvement in the operation
or promotion of your franchise, you must promptly notify us and provide us with all necessary information
free of charge. If we decide to adopt and integrate your idea into the System, you acknowledge that
ownership of such new product, concept, technique, process, or improvement will rest solely on us and you
agree, to sign any documents necessary granting us such ownership rights.

Y ou must acknowledge that we may provide the information to other franchisees for use in their franchises.

There currently are no effective adverse determinations of the United States Copyright Office or any court,
nor are there any pending infringements, opposition or cancellation proceedings or material litigation,
involving the copyright materials that are relevant to their use by our franchisees.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN
THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

If you are an individual, you must directly perform or supervise the operation of the franchise unless we
consent otherwise. If we agree that you need not personally perform or supervise operation of the franchise,
an individual who has successfully completed our training program (a “General Manager””) must directly
supervise the franchise. If we ask, the General Manager must sign a written agreement to maintain
confidentiality of the Confidential Information and abide by all of the covenants not to compete.

If you are a corporation or other legal entity, direct, on-site supervision must be done by a designated
shareholder and/or owner who has successfully completed our training program unless we consent
otherwise (the “Operating Principal”). If we ask, the Operating Principal must sign a written statement to
maintain confidentiality of the Confidential Information and abide by all of the covenants not to compete.
If we agree that an Operating Principal need not personally perform or supervise the operation of the
franchise, a general manager must directly supervise the franchise. The General Manager need not have an
ownership interest in the franchise. If you are a corporation or other legal entity, your principal shareholders,
members and/or owners must sign an Undertaking and Guaranty agreeing to be bound personally by the
obligations and covenants under the Franchise Agreement. If, at any time, ownership changes, that
individual will also need to sign the Undertaking and Guaranty and Confidentiality Agreement.
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ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You must offer and sell only the goods and services which conform to our standards and specifications.
You must offer the goods and/or services that we designate as required for all franchisees and you may
elect to offer other products and/or services if we approve them in advance. You must perform residential
and commercial bathroom and kitchen remodeling, cabinet refacing, safety and mobility modifications, and
other interior remodeling, and perform related services and sell related products. You will focus primarily
on interior remodeling but will also provide exterior remodeling and restoration projects as needed. We
may add or modify the list of authorized services and/or products that we require franchisees to offer.

We may require that you purchase certain products, materials, and equipment from our designated vendors.
We may also develop or establish proprietary or private label products and services which we may require
you to offer and sell through the franchised business. There are no limits on our right to make such changes.
If we make any changes we will notify you. We have the right to establish maximum, minimum or other
retail pricing requirements to the extent permitted by law.

You must comply with all applicable laws and regulations and obtain all appropriate governmental
approvals for the franchised business including obtaining a contractor’s license if required by your locality.
To ensure that the highest degree of quality and service is maintained, you must operate in conformity with
the methods, standards and specifications in the Manuals and as we may otherwise require in writing from
time to time. You must not deviate from our standards and specifications without our prior written consent.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read
these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

Section in
Provision franchise or Summary
other agreement
a. Length of the 1.A. Initial term is 10 years.
franchise term
b. Renewal or extension 1.B. and 1.C. Your Franchise Agreement can be renewed for
of the term additional 10-year terms by executing the then-current

form of franchise agreement and meeting the other
requirements for renewal. If you continue to operate
after expiration of the initial or a renewal term we
may, at our sole election, treat the Franchise
Agreement as expired or as continued on a month-to
month basis; provided, the Franchise Agreement will
only be continued if you get a written notice of
continuation from us.

c. Requirements for 1.B. You cannot be in default under your current Franchise
franchisee to renew Agreement, you must give us prior written notice, you
or extend must not have been in default under your Franchise

Agreement beyond the applicable cure period during
the 12 months prior to your written notice, you must
sign a general release, you must renovate the

franchised business to reflect our then-current image
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Provision

Section in
franchise or
other agreement

Summary

requirements, you must pay us a renewal fee of
$10,000, you must comply with our then-current
qualifications and training requirements, and you must
agree to sign the most current version of our renewal
addendum' and our franchise agreement which may
have terms, conditions and fees that could be
materially different as compared with your original
Franchise Agreement.

Termination by
franchisee

None

No contractual right to terminate, but you have
whatever termination rights exist at common law
(subject to state law).

Termination by
franchisor without
cause

None

Not applicable.

Termination by
franchisor with cause

12

We can terminate your Franchise Agreement only if
you default.

“Cause” defined —
curable defaults

12.B.

You have 15 days (subject to local state law) to cure
your: failure to pay amounts due to us, whether due to
us under the Franchise Agreement, a promissory note,
or otherwise; failure to submit required financial
information; failure to observe our standards; failure
to obtain our consent when required; failure of your
representative to transfer your franchised business
after your death, disability or incapacity; engaging in a
Competitive Business without our consent; failure to
comply with covenants in Franchise Agreement; your
refusal to allow our inspection of your franchise or its
books and records; failure to maintain your books and
records; failure to begin operating the franchised
business from the franchised location within 12
months of the Effective Date of the Franchise
Agreement or failure to identify and acquire a
commercial space to serve as the franchised location
within five months of the Effective Date of the
Franchise Agreement; excessive customer complaints;
or failure to maintain the required insurance.

h.

“Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

12.A.

You made material misrepresentations to us in the
application for the franchise; you are insolvent; you
abandon or otherwise cease to operate the franchised
business; you are convicted of a felony; you divulge
our Confidential Information; you knowingly maintain
false books or records for the franchise; you use our
Marks in an unauthorized manner; your operation of
the franchised business creates a threat to public
health or safety; you default under any promissory
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Provision

Section in
franchise or
other agreement

Summary

note with us (excluding any default for nonpayment);
your failure to provide the financial statements
required, within the time required by the Franchise
Agreement; or, whether or not cured, you fail three or
more times within any 12 consecutive months to
comply with any obligation of the Franchise
Agreement, or you fail two or more times within any
six month period to comply with the same obligation
of the Franchise Agreement.

franchisor approval
of transfer

i. Franchisee’s 13 Upon termination, or non-renewal, you must: cease
obligations on use of our System; comply with all post-termination
termination/non- covenants, including non-competition and
renewal confidentiality covenants; cease use of our Marks;

cease use and assign (or assist in assignment of) all
telephone numbers; transfer business and customers to
us; return all materials to us; continue to address
warranty claims; and pay all sums owed whether to us
or a third party supplier.

j- Assignment of 11.A. We may assign your Franchise Agreement to any third
contract by party whom we believe is capable of performing our
franchisor obligations and who agrees to assume our obligations.

k. “Transfer” by 11.B. Includes transfer of your franchised business or
franchisee — defined ownership change.

1. Franchisor approval 11.B. We have the right to approve all transfers but will not
of transfer by unreasonably withhold approval.
franchisee

m. Conditions for 11.B. and 11.D. | You are not in default; the new franchisee qualifies

(including that the new franchisee is in no part owned
through, and the new franchisee does not provide, an
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) and that the
new franchisee is in no part owned by a private equity
firm or fund); training for new franchisee is arranged;
you sign a release; the transfer fee is paid; current
franchise agreement is signed by new franchisee (at
our option, new franchisee must sign new agreement
and no discounts, including reduced fees for roll-ins,
or other terms of existing franchised business transfer
to the new franchisee); new franchisee agrees to be
bound by all customer obligations of transferor,
including all warranty work and service plans and
warranty escrow established; if transfer is to your
corporation or other entity owned by you, you
maintain the same level of investment in your business
or pay all loans payable to us and our affiliates in full;
you personally guaranty the obligations under the
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Section in
Provision franchise or Summary
other agreement

Franchise Agreement; and a qualified individual is
designated as the Operating Principal.

n. Franchisor’s right of 11.B.10 We can match any offer to buy your franchise.
first refusal to
acquire franchisee’s
business

0. Franchisor’s option No provision Not applicable.
to purchase
franchisee’s business

p.- Death or disability of 11.C. Your personal representative must assign your
franchisee Franchise Agreement to an individual or business

entity that has been approved by us within 180 days.

g- Non-competition 5.A.and 10.C.1 | You cannot be involved in a Competitive Business
covenants during the other than a Competitive Business approved by us that
term of the franchise you own on the day you sign the Franchise

Agreement.

r.  Non-competition 10.C.2 No Competitive Business in your territory for two
covenants after the years other than a Competitive Business approved by
franchise is us that you own on the day you sign the Franchise
terminated or expires Agreement.

s. Modification of the 15.A. No modification of the Franchise Agreement except
agreement by written agreement of both parties.

t. Integration/merger 15.A. Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are
clause binding (subject to applicable federal and state law).

Any representations or promises outside of the
disclosure document and Franchise Agreement may
not be enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution by 14 All disputes must be mediated.
arbitration or
mediation
v. Choice of forum 14.C. Most disputes must be filed in a federal or state court

located in Waco, McLennan County, Texas (subject to
applicable federal and state law). See the State
Specific Addenda attached to this disclosure document
for state law information.

w. Choice of law 14.B. Disputes shall be governed under the laws of the State
of Texas, without regard to its conflict of law rules
(subject to applicable federal and state law). See the
State Specific Addenda attached to this disclosure
document for state law information.

"' The Renewal Addendum, Exhibit F-7 to this disclosure document, also provides that if you are renewing
your Franchise Agreement, the Minimum Royalty Fee begins with the first week of the term of the renewal
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Franchise Agreement and is the greater of the Minimum Royalty Fee in the renewal Franchise Agreement
or the Minimum Royalty Fee in your existing Franchise Agreement.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not use any public figure to promote the franchise.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular location or under particular circumstances.

The following graph reflects average Gross Sales achieved by our franchisees in calendar years 2011, 2012,
2013, 2014,2015,2016,2017,2018,2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024. In calculating these averages,
we included Gross Sales information only for the franchisees that had been in operation for the full calendar
year, and excluded information about franchisees that began operating after January 1% or ceased operating
before December 3 1* of the respective year.

Average Retail Sales
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As reflected in the chart below, average Gross Sales for our franchisees increased from $495,524 in 2011,
to $1,467,192 in 2024, representing 196.09% growth. Median Gross Sales for our franchisees increased
from $455,310in 2011, to $1,187,887 in 2024, representing 160.90% growth.

Note 1. For purposes of this Item 19, “Gross Sales” is defined as cash received during the given time period.
There are no deductions other than any refunds or credits given to a client.
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Note 2. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 43 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2011. Of these 43 franchisees, 17 franchisees (40%) met or surpassed
the stated average amount, and 22 (51%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 43
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2011 were $1,605,687 and $11,727, respectively.

Note 3. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 38 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2012. Of these 38 franchisees, 14 franchisees (37%) met or surpassed
the stated average amount, and 19 (50%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 38
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2012 were $2,156,458 and $54,977, respectively.

Note 4. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 34 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2013. Of these 34 franchisees, 14 franchisees (41%) met or surpassed
the stated average amount, and 17 (50%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 34
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2013 were $2,360,821 and $77,124, respectively.

Note 5. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 34 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2014. Of these 34 franchisees, 15 franchisees (44%) met or surpassed
the stated average amount, and 17 (50%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 34
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2014 were $3,178,756 and $30,902, respectively.

Note 6. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 33 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2015. One of the 33 franchisees changed ownership in December
2015, but continuously operated for the full calendar year 2015. Of these 33 franchisees, 14 franchisees
(42%) met or surpassed the stated average amount, and 17 (52%) met or surpassed the stated median
amount. Of these 33 franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2015 were $3,150,590 and $0,
respectively.

Note 7. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 31 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2016. Of these 31 franchisees, 15 franchisees (48%) met or surpassed
the stated average amount, and 16 (52%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 31
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2016 were $3,828,318 and $29,121, respectively.

Note 8. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 35 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2017. One of the 35 franchisees changed ownership in July 2017,
but continuously operated for the full calendar year 2017. Of these 35 franchisees, 14 franchisees (40%)
met or surpassed the stated average amount, and 18 (51%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of
these 35 franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2017 were $3,831,484 and $44,500, respectively.

Note 9. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 33 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2018. Of those 33 franchisees, 12 franchisees (36.4%) met or
surpassed the stated amount, and 17 (51.5%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 33
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2018 were $4,324,709 and $500, respectively.

Note 10. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 30 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2019. Of these 30 franchisees, 13 franchisees (43.3%) met or
surpassed the stated amount, and 15 (50%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 30
franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2019 were $4,450,529 and $91,419, respectively.

Note 11. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 33 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2020. One of the 33 franchisees changed ownership in March 2020,
but continuously operated for the full calendar year 2020. Of these 33 franchisees, 13 franchisees (39.4%)
met or surpassed the stated amount, and 17 (51.5%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these
33 franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2020 were $3,616,261 and $500, respectively. Of the
33 franchise locations in business for the entire calendar year 2020, 12 (36%) had at least five weeks of
zero sales reported from a period of March 1, 2020 — June 30, 2020.
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Note 12. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 34 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2021. One of the 34 franchisees changed ownership in December
2021, but continuously operated for the full calendar year 2021. Of these 34 franchisees, 12 franchisees
(35.3%) met or surpassed the stated amount, and 17 (50.0%) met or surpassed the stated median amount.
Of these 34 franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2021 were $6,296,384 and $110,821,
respectively.

Note 13. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 39 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2022. We have not included the Gross Sales information for one
additional franchisee who operated for the full calendar year 2022 because that information was not made
available to us for reporting. Of these 39 franchisees, 12 franchisees (30.8%) met or surpassed the stated
amount, and 20 (51.28%) met or surpassed the stated median amount. Of these 39 franchisees, the highest
and lowest Gross Sales in 2022 were $7,050,066 and $61,824, respectively.

Note 14. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 38 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2023. We have not included the Gross Sales information for one
additional franchisee who signed a franchise agreement in December 2022, but did not begin reporting
revenue until after the beginning of the reporting period starting on January 1, 2023. Of these 38 franchisees,
13 franchisees (34.2%) met or surpassed the stated amount, and 19 (50.0%) met or surpassed the stated
median amount. Of these 38 franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2023 were $6,710,075 and
$112,805, respectively.

Note 15. The graph reflects average Gross Sales and median Gross Sales information for the 40 franchisees
that operated for the full calendar year 2024. We have not included the Gross Sales information for one
additional franchisee who signed a franchise agreement in December 2023, but did not begin reporting
revenue until after the beginning of the reporting period starting on January 1, 2024. Of these 40 franchisees,
15 franchisees (37.5%) met or surpassed the stated amount, and 21 (52.5%) met or surpassed the stated
median amount. Of these 40 franchisees, the highest and lowest Gross Sales in 2024 were $5,279,835 and
$225,080, respectively.

Gross Sales Information about Franchisees Operating for the Full 12-Months of 2024

As of December 31, 2024, there were 43 System franchisees in operation, 40 of which operated for the full
2024 calendar year. The following charts represent the average Gross Sales and the median gross sales for
these 40 franchisees.

2024
. Highest Retail Lowest Retail| Number of Nur{lber Per.c ent
Quartiles Average Retail Sales Per Sales P . Meeting or | Meeting or
. . ales Per Sales Per | Franchisees . .
Franchisee Per Quartile . . . . Surpassing | Surpassing
Quartile Quartile in Quartile
Average Average
Top $2,949,279 $5,279,835 $1,857,387 10 5 50.0%
Second $1,502,369 $1,824,656 | $1,130,038 10 5 50.0%
Third $932,084 $1,130,038 | $785,878 10 6 60.0%
DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® 44

Franchise Disclosure Document | 2025




Bottom $471,383 $648,704 $225,080 10 6 60.0%
2024
Number Percent
. . Highest Retail Lowest Retail| Number of . .
Quartiles Median Retall' Sales Per Sales Per Sales Per Franchisees Meetlng. or Meetlng or
Quartile Quartile Quartile in Quartile Surpassing | Surpassing
Median Median
Top $2,763,353 $5,279,835 $1,857,387 10 5 50.0%
Second $1,497,852 $1,824,656 | $1,130,038 10 5 50.0%
Third $975,767 $1,130,038 | $785,878 10 6 60.0%
Bottom $540,149 $648,704 $225,080 10 5 50.0%

Of the 40 reporting franchisees discussed above, 36 were in operation during the full 2023 and 2024
calendar years.

The following figures represent Gross Sales, for 36 of these franchisees. The total combined Gross Sales
for all 36 of these franchisees increased by 0.10% when comparing year end aggregate Gross Sales for 2024
to year-end aggregate Gross Sales for 2023. 19 franchisees met or surpassed this average in their own
individual 2023 to 2024 percentage growth calculation. The average percentage growth for each of these
36 franchisees, when comparing each franchisee’s 2023 Gross Sales to 2024 Gross Sales, is 10.39%. Of
this average, 14 franchisees met or surpassed the average. The median percentage growth for each of these
36 franchisees, when comparing each franchisee’s 2023 Gross Sales to 2024 Gross Sales is 2.46%. Of this
median, 18 met or surpassed the median.

Gross Profit Information about Franchisees Operating for the Full 12-Months of 2024

We sent a request for financial information to these 40 reporting franchisees discussed above and received
information from 38 of them (95.0%).

The following chart reflects average and median Gross Profit Margin for these 38 franchisees:

2024
Meeting or Meeting or
Average Gross Profit Margin| Median Gross Profit Margin Surpassing Surpassing
Average Median
46.0% 47.8% 23 20
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The following chart reflects average and median Gross Profit Margin for these 38 franchisees, separated by

quartile:
. Average Gr(?s§ Median Gross Profit Numbe'r of Meetlng. or Meetlng. or
Quartiles Profit Margin Margin! Per Quartile Franchisees | Surpassing | Surpassing
Per Quartile g in Quartile Average Median

Top 52.7% 53.0% 10 60.0% 50.0%

Second 48.7% 48.5% 10 50.0% 50.0%

Third 44.4% 44.3% 9 44.4% 55.6%

Bottom 37.0% 40.1% 9 66.7% 55.6%

Note 1. “Gross Profit Margin” is the total Gross Sales for each franchisee minus the Cost of Goods Sold,
expressed as a percent of Gross Sales. The “Cost of Goods Sold” is defined as direct costs to each job,
including: 1) equipment costs; 2) production labor costs—insurance, workers compensation insurance, and
burden; 3) production vehicle expenses—Ilease, maintenance and repair, fuel, license and registrations; 4)
materials and freight costs; 5) general production supply expenses; 6) permit costs; 7) debris removal; 8)
subcontractor costs; and 9) small tools and equipment.

Note 2. The figures reflected in the charts above were compiled from unaudited information reported to us
by our franchisees.

Average Contract Value Information about Franchisees Operating for the Full 12-Months of 2024

We sent a request for information to these 40 reporting franchisees discussed above and received
information from 39 of them (97.5%). The following charts represent Average Contract Value, as defined
below.

The following chart reflects average and median Contract Value for these 39 franchisees:

2024
Meeting or Meeting or
Average Contract Value Median Contract Value Surpassing Surpassing
Average Median
$47,593 $50,747 22 (56.4%) 20 (51.3%)

The following chart reflects average and median Contract Value for these 39 franchisees, separated by
quartile:
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2024

Average Contract . Number of Meeting or Meeting or
. 1 Median Contract . . .
Quartiles Value' Per Value! Per Quartile Franchisees Surpassing Surpassing
Quartile in Quartile Average Median
Top $88,132 $75,857 10 3 (30.0%) 5 (50.0%)
Second $58,575 $59,560 10 6 (60.0%) 5 (50.0%)
Third $41,511 $42,191 10 5 (50.0%) 5 (50.0%)
Bottom $22,149 $22,099 9 4 (44.4%) 5 (55.6%)

Note 1. “Contract Value” is the dollar value of the selling price of each contract.

Note 2. The figures reflected in the charts above were compiled from unaudited information reported to us
by our franchisees.

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance that
you will earn as much.

Written substantiation for the financial performance representation will be made available to you upon
reasonable request.

Except for the information presented above, we do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future
financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also
do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in
writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of
that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income,
you should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Douglas A. Dwyer, President and CSO,
4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710, 254/523-9577, the Federal Trade Commission, and
the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
TABLE NO. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 2022 to 2024
Outlets at Start | Outlets at End of
Outlet Type Year of Year Year Net Change
2022 43 42 -1
Franchised 2023 42 42 0
2023 42 43 +1
2022
Company-Owned
2023
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Outlet Type Year Outloeft sYéz;ftart Outlet‘s{:‘:;l?nd o Net Change
2024 0 0 0
2022 43 42 -1
Total Outlets 2023 42 42 0
2024 42 43 +1
TABLE NO. 2
Transfers of Outlets From Franchisees to New Owners
(Other than the Franchisor)
For Years 2022 to 2024
State Year Number of Transfers
2022 0
CA 2023 0
2024 1
2022 0
IL 2023 0
2024 1
2022 0
SC 2023 0
2024 1
2022 0
Total 2023 0
2024 3
TABLE NO. 3
Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 2022 to 2024
Outlets Reacquired Ceas.ed Outlets
State | Year | at Start (()):(gleet; Terminations Reljl(e)ilv-als l()ly . Ope(l)*:tlfgns " | atEnd
of Year Franchisor Reason of Year
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
AL 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
AR 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
CA 2023 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 1 0 0 0 2
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Cco 2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
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State

Year

Outlets
at Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations -
Other
Reason

Outlets
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of Year
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Outlets
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of Year

Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations
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Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
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Outlets
at End
of Year
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TABLE NoO. 4
Status of Company-Owned Outlets

For Years 2022 to 2024

State

Year

Outlets
At Start
of Year

Outlets
Opened

Outlets
Reacquired
From
Franchisee

Outlets
Closed

Outlets
Sold to
Franchisees

Outlets
At End
Of Year

Total

2022

0

0

0

0

0
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Outlets
Outlets . Outlets Outlets
State Year At Start N Sold to At End
Opened From Closed c
of Year . Franchisees | Of Year
Franchisee
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0
2024 0 0 0 0 0 0
TABLE NO. 5
Projected Openings
As of December 31, 2024
Franchise Agreements Projected New Franchised | Projected New Company-
State Signed But Outlet Not Outlets In the Next Fiscal | Owned Outlets In the Next
Opened Year Fiscal Year

FL 0 1 0
NC 0 2 0
TN 0 1 0
TX 0 1 0
UT 0 1 0
Total 0 6 0

Exhibit D to this disclosure document contains the names of current franchisees and the addresses and
telephone numbers of their outlets as of December 31, 2024. Exhibit D also contains the name, city and
state and the current business telephone number (or, if unknown the last known home telephone number or
e-mail address) of franchisees who left the system during the last fiscal year, December 31, 2024, or who
have not communicated with us in the 10 weeks prior to the issuance date of this disclosure document. If
you buy this franchise your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the
franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, we have signed confidentiality clauses with one or more of our current
and/or former franchisees. In some instances, current and former franchisees sign provisions restricting
their ability to speak openly about their experience with DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®. You may
wish to speak with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all such franchisees will be able to
communicate with you.

We are not aware of any trademark-specific franchisee organization associated with the franchise. No
trademark-specific franchisee organization has asked to be included in this disclosure document.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Included as Exhibit C are our audited balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, and the
related statements of operations, statements of changes in shareholder’s equity, and statements of cash flows
for the years then ended. Our fiscal year ends on December 31.

We have adopted the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 606, using the full-respective method in determining
the revenue recognition under the current standards.
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EXHIBIT B
A
B-1
B-2
B-3
B-4
B-5
B-6
B-7
B-8
B-9

EXHIBIT F
F-1
F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6
F-7
F-8
F-9

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Franchise Agreement and Exhibits

Undertaking and Guaranty

Competitive Business

Domain Name License Agreement

Confidentiality Agreement

Technology Agreement [Including QuickBooks Template]
Right of Publicity General Release

Authorization for Release of Information (Vendors)
State Specific Addenda

Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire

Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire — Transfer

ACH Authorization

Promissory Note and Security Agreement
Existing Business Addendum (optional)
Legal Entity Information Sheet

Financial Information Sheet

Option to Purchase Agreement

Renewal Addendum

Lease Rider

General Release (sample)

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Exhibit H includes two detachable receipts acknowledging your receipt of this disclosure document. Please
complete both receipts, keep one for your own records, and return the second one to us via e-mail (enclosing
a scanned copy of the completed executed receipt) or other electronic means, delivery, or first class mail.
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STATE APPENDIX

FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

The California Corporations Code, Section 31125, requires that we give you a disclosure document,
approved by the Department of Corporations, prior to solicitation of a proposed material modification of
your Franchise Agreement.

Registration of the franchise does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the
Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation.

Item 3 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

Neither the franchisor nor any person identified in Item 2 of the Disclosure Document is subject to
any current effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange as
defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, U.S.C.A., 78a et. seq., suspending or expelling
such persons from membership in such association or exchange.

Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

California Business and Professions Code, Section 20000 through 20043 provides rights to the
franchisee concerning transfer, termination or nonrenewal of a franchise. If the Franchise
Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

You must sign a release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations Code voids
a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code 31000
through 31516). Business and Professions Code 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under the
Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043).

The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete that extends beyond expiration or
termination of the agreement. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of Texas. This provision may not be
enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A. § 101 ef seq.).

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California Civil Code
Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION & INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION & INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

California Corporations Code section 31201 makes it unlawful for any person to offer or sell a franchise in
California by means of any unfiled written or oral communication which includes an untrue statement of a
material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

California Corporations Code sections 31512 provides that any condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the
California Franchise Investment Law or any rule or order thereunder is void.
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No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Sections 15L(1) through (4) of the Franchise Agreement and Exhibits B-8 and B-9 (Franchisee Disclosure
Questionnaire) are void.

California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1) states that any
provision of a franchise agreement or related document requiring the franchisee to waive specific provisions
of the law is contrary to public policy and is void and unenforceable. The law also prohibits a franchisor
from disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees, or its agents make to you, (ii) your ability
to rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any violations of the law.

Any interest rate charged to a California franchisee shall comply with the California Constitution. The
interest rate shall not exceed either (a) 10% annually or (b) 5% annually plus the prevailing interest rate
charged to banks by the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco, whichever is higher.

FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
1. Illinois law governs the franchise agreement(s).

2. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a franchise
agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is void.
However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois.

3. Franchisee’s rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in Sections 19 and 20 of the
[llinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

4, In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition, stipulation,
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the
[linois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with
the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND

Item 6, Advertising Fee, and Item 11 are amended to provide that you will be notified in writing of the
manner in which you may obtain an accounting of the advertising fund as required by COMAR
02.02.08.04B(2).

In recognition of the restrictions contained in the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law,
Md. Code Bus. Reg. §§14-201 to 14-233, Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is supplemented
by the following:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought
within three years after the grant of the franchise.

The general release required as a condition of transfer will not apply to any claim arising under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
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applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

The following supplements Item 6:

If your financial institution
returns a check or ACH
Upon demand draft for insufficient funds,
you must pay us this fee

$75, however,
Dishonored Check for currently the State of
ACH Draft Minnesota caps this fee
at $30.

for each item returned.

The following sentence supplements Item 13:

Pursuant to Minnesota Stat. §80C.21, Subj. 1(g), we are required to protect any rights which you
have to use our proprietary marks.

Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with Minn. Stat.
Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that (1) a franchisee
be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal
of the franchise agreement and (2) that consent to the transfer of the franchise will not be
unreasonably withheld.

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit the franchisor from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the
franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties, or judgment notes. In addition,
nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or the agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce (1) any
of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statute 80C, or (2) your rights to any procedure, forum
or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

Any release as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply to the extent
prohibited by applicable law with respect to claims arising under Minn. Rule 2860.4400D.

Any provision requiring the franchise to consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief'is void.
The franchisor may seek injunctive relief. See Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J). Also, a court will
determine if a bond is required.

Any limitation on the time to bring claims contained in the franchise agreement is limited by
Minnesota Status 80C.17, Subd. 5.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK
1. The following information is added to the to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT E OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SERVICES
OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES
NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE
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INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT
ANYTHING IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL
TRADE COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR PROVINCIAL AUTHORITY.
THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS
COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER THE FRANCHISOR
CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET
FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is to be added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item
2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that person
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices, or
comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which
are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or financial
condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge
or, within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has been
convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of a
civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement;
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree relating
to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, antitrust, trade
regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or proceeding
brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any national
securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or
exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any
other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department,
including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.

3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled “Requirements
for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for franchisor approval of
transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Section s687(4) and 687(5) be
satisfied.

4. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled “Termination by
franchisee”. You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

5. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled “Cheice of
forum”, and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”’:

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® 4
Franchise Disclosure Document | 2025 Exhibit A



The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business law of the state of New
York.

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Act (“Act”) provides that “A provision in a Franchise
Agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring application of the laws
of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.”

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF VIRGINIA
Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended as follows:

In recognition of the restrictions contained in Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, Item
17.h. of the Franchise Disclosure Document for Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., is supplemented by
the following:

“Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchisor to
cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any ground for default or termination stated in the
franchise agreement do not constitute “reasonable cause”, as that term may be defined in the
Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.”

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may
supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination
and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration
or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In
addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® 5
Franchise Disclosure Document | 2025 Exhibit A



A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee,
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement,
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with
these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i)
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN
Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following:

For franchisees subject to the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, Ch. 135, Stats., provisions in the Fair
Dealership Law supersede any inconsistent provisions of the Franchise Agreement or a related contract.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between Worldwide
Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN
(“Franchisor”) and the Franchisee identified in the Summary Page (“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor has expended significant time, money and effort to develop certain skills, concepts,
business techniques, marketing systems, and a specialized method and process with uniform standards,
specifications, methods, policies and procedures (the “System”) for a business which performs (a)
residential and commercial bathroom and kitchen remodeling, cabinet refacing, safety and mobility
modifications, and other interior remodeling; (b) exterior remodeling and restoration projects as needed;
and (c) related services, and which sells related proprietary and non-proprietary products and materials
(“Franchise”); and

WHEREAS, businesses operating under the System are identified by means of certain trade names
DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN and such other trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos,
slogans and other indicia of origin as are now and may hereafter be designated by Franchisor to identify
businesses operating under the System (the “Marks”); and

WHEREAS, Franchisee has applied to Franchisor for a license to operate a business under the System and
to use the Marks and other of Franchisor’s intellectual property, including property that is entitled to
protection under applicable copyright law (the “Copyrighted Works”) and proprietary information that is
entitled to protection under applicable trade secret laws and the confidentiality provisions contained in this
Agreement (“Confidential Information”);

WHEREAS, relying on the information contained in Franchisee’s franchise application, Franchisor agrees
to grant Franchisee said license to operate a business (the “Franchised Business”) in and from the Territory
identified in the Summary Page (the “Territory”) from a business site selected by Franchisee and approved
by Franchisor (the “Franchise Location”) under the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement and other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. TERM AND RENEWAL

A. Initial Term. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date stated in the
Summary Page and shall expire on the 10" anniversary of the Effective Date.

B. Renewal. At the end of the initial 10-year term and each term thereafter, provided
Franchisee has substantially complied with the terms of this Agreement, Franchisee shall have the option
to renew this license for additional periods of 10 years each by giving Franchisor written notice of
Franchisee’s intent to renew at least six months prior to the end of the then-current term. If Franchisee
desires to exercise its renewal options as described above, it must comply with all of the following
conditions prior to and at the end of the then-current term:

1. Franchisee may not be in default under this Agreement or any other agreement between
Franchisee and Franchisor or its affiliates; Franchisee may not be in default beyond the applicable cure
period of any real estate lease (if applicable), equipment lease, or financing instrument relating to the
Franchised Business; Franchisee may not be in default beyond the applicable cure period with any vendor
or supplier to the Franchised Business; and, for the 12 months before the date of Franchisee’s notice and
the 12 months before the expiration of the then-current term, Franchisee may not have been in default
beyond the applicable cure period under this Agreement or any other agreements between Franchisee and
Franchisor or its affiliates;

2. Franchisee shall have satisfied all monetary obligations owed to Franchisor, its affiliates,
and third-party suppliers;
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3. Franchisee, and all individuals who have executed this Agreement and all guarantors of
Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement shall have executed a general and full release, in a form
prescribed by Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its affiliates and their respective past
and present governing persons, agents, and employees;

4, Franchisee shall perform, at Franchisee’s expense, such renovations and remodeling as
may be reasonably required by Franchisor so that the Franchise Location conforms with Franchisor’s then-
current appearance, image, and functionality requirements. Such renovations and remodeling may include,
without limitation, structural changes, redecoration, design and color scheme changes, and modification to
existing improvements;

5. Franchisor shall have been paid the Renewal Fee in the amount stated in the Summary
Page;

6. Franchisee shall comply with Franchisor’s then-current qualification and training
requirements; and

7. Franchisee shall sign Franchisor’s then-current franchise agreement, the terms of which
may be materially different from the terms of this Agreement.

C. Holdover. Franchisee has no right to continue operating the Franchised Business beyond
the expiration of the term of this Agreement. If Franchisee does not execute a new franchise agreement
prior to the expiration of the initial or any renewal term and nonetheless continues to operate the Franchised
Business and/or otherwise accept the benefits of this Agreement, then, at Franchisor’s sole option,
Franchisor may treat this Agreement as either (1) expired as of the date of expiration of this Agreement,
with Franchisee then operating without a license or consent of Franchisor to do so, in violation of
Franchisor’s rights; or (2) as continued on a month-to-month basis (the “Holdover Period”) where all
Franchisees obligations will remain in full force and effect during the Holdover Period as if the Agreement
had not expired; provided, however, that during any Holdover Period Franchisee will pay a Royalty Fee and
MAP Fee equal to 150% of the rates Franchisee was paying at end of the term. Each Holdover Period expires
at the end of each calendar month unless this Agreement is continued as provided in this Section. The
Holdover Period does not create any new franchise rights and, upon expiration of the final Holdover Period,
Franchisee will be bound by all post-term obligations as provided in this Agreement.

2. GRANT OF LICENSE

A. Grant. Franchisor hereby grants to Franchisee, and Franchisee accepts the nonexclusive
right and license, subject to the terms and conditions of Territory Exclusions (as defined below) and other
provisions of this Agreement, to use the Marks, Copyrighted Works, and Confidential Information for
purposes of operating and promoting the Franchised Business in the Territory. Franchisee may operate the
Franchised Business only from the Franchise Location approved by Franchisor. Franchisee shall
continuously operate the Franchised Business for the full term of this Agreement.

B. The System and Brand Standards. Franchisee agrees to operate the Franchised Business
in full compliance with this Agreement and with Franchisor’s specifications, standards, policies, and
procedures, including those relating to image and appearance (e.g., signage, trade dress, dress code, and
similar requirements), financial responsibility (including debt-to-equity ratios and minimum cash deposit
to project liability ratios), and operations (e.g., standards of professionalism and workmanship and customer
service standards and procedures) (“Brand Standards”). Franchisor has the right to modify the System and
the Brand Standards in its sole discretion, which modifications may include the addition of new service
product and service offerings. Franchisee agrees to implement promptly all modified requirements.

C. Territorial Restrictions. During the franchise term, Franchisee may not solicit customers,
perform services or sell products related to the Franchised Business outside the Territory without
Franchisor’s prior written consent. If Franchisee receives an inquiry or request from a prospective customer
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outside the Territory, such inquiry or request must be referred to Franchisor or to the franchisee, if any,
who is authorized to service such other territory. If no other franchisee is available, Franchisor may
authorize Franchisee to respond to the inquiry. If so, the customer shall remain Franchisee’s customer
through completion of the project and until another franchise is granted for the territory where the customer
is located, in which case, Franchisee expressly agrees that Franchisee shall promptly assign or transfer any
such customer to Franchisor or its designee upon request. Franchisee also agrees to cease and desist from
using all advertising and telephone numbers and all Territory-specific email addresses, domain names and
comparable electronic identities which are, at the time of the demand, or have at any time been, used outside
the Territory, including telephone numbers listed in any directories under the Marks or a similar name, and
upon demand of Franchisor, direct the telephone company or service provider servicing the Franchisee to
transfer all such telephone numbers, email addresses, domain names and comparable electronic identities
registered to Franchisee in connection with the Franchised Business to Franchisor or its designee.
Franchisee may not have any telephone number, email addresses, domain names or comparable electronic
identities owned by a third party, including a company affiliated with Franchisee.

D. Territorial Protection; Franchisor’s Reserved Rights; Territory Exclusions.

(1) During the franchise term, Franchisor shall neither establish or grant anyone but Franchisee
the right to establish another business using the Marks in the Territory.

(i1) Franchisor reserves for itself all rights not specifically granted to Franchisee herein,
including, without limitation: (1) the right to sell or distribute products and services through alternate
channels of distribution, including direct distribution and online retail sales; (2) the right to engage in any
business activities, which may include engaging in other businesses and franchising other businesses
identified by trademarks other than “DREAMMAKER.”

(iii))  If (1) Franchisee fails or refuses to perform services, (2) Franchisee is not qualified or does
not have the necessary equipment to perform services, (3) Franchisee requests assistance in the performance
of such services, (4) if a customer requests, in writing, that services be performed by a different franchisee
or third party, or (5) a National Account Customer submits a request for service that cannot be performed
by Franchisee for any reason (whether by reason of contractual restriction, or otherwise), Franchisor has
the right to arrange for a another franchisee, corporate employee, or third party to perform the services or
to assist Franchisee in performing the services. A “National Account” is an account that Franchisor enters
into directly with a National Account Customer. A “National Account Customer” is a customer whom
Franchisor designate as a National Account Customer and (1) who contracts with Franchisor for the
provision of services at more than one location and/or (2) whose work requires or is conditioned upon
having special knowledge, skill, licenses, insurance, equipment, pricing, payment terms, turnaround times,
or approvals. Franchisee has the option to not participate in any National Account program. The rights
Franchisor reserves and the exclusions to Franchisee’s Territory as described in this Section shall be
“Territory Exclusions.”

3. FEES AND PAYMENTS

A. Initial Franchise Fee. Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor
an initial franchise fee in the amount stated on the Summary Page. The initial franchise fee is fully earned
upon Franchisor’s execution of this Agreement and is nonrefundable upon payment.

B. Franchise Development Package Payment. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor $22,495 for
the franchise development package, which includes certain marketing and initial operations-related
materials. Franchisee must submit a written order for the franchise development package prior to the first
anniversary of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement. If Franchisee’s order for the franchise
development package is not submitted within this time period, Franchisor is under no obligation to provide
the franchise development package to Franchisee and the payment under this Section is nonrefundable.
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C. Initial Advertising and Promotion Deposit. Upon execution of this Agreement,
Franchisee shall pay Franchisor an initial advertising and promotion deposit in the amount identified in the
Summary Page. Franchisor will hold and return to Franchisee as provided in this Section. The Summary
Page states the amount of the deposit to be considered as the “Franchisor’s Draw” which amount Franchisor
will spend on promotional and marketing activities related to the Franchised Business, as determined by
Franchisor in its sole discretion. Franchisee must submit to Franchisor proof that Franchisee has incurred
expenditures related to advertising and promotional activities approved by Franchisor in writing, and
Franchisor will return to Franchisee the related expenditure amount up to the deposit amount (less the
Franchisor’s Draw) within 30 days of Franchisor’s receipt of such proof. If Franchisee does not submit
proof of approved advertising and promotional expenditures at least up to the amount of Franchisee’s
deposit (less the Franchisor’s Draw) within 24 months of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement,
the balance will be forfeited. The deposit amount is refundable, less any expenses Franchisor has incurred
in connection with the Franchised Business, only if, for any reason, this Agreement is terminated before
the completion of Simulation Training.

D. Initial Accounting Services Fee. Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor the Initial Accounting Services Fee in the amount stated in the Summary Page, which will pay
for services from Franchisor’s designated bookkeeping and accounting services provider for a period of 12
months following the sale of Franchisee’s first DreamMaker project. This fee is nonrefundable.

E. Initial Education Fee. Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor
$2,100 for an Initial Education Fee. The $2,100 will be returned to you upon your attendance, in its entirety,
of the first network training event (i.e. January Workshop or Reunion) that occurs after the execution of the
Franchise Agreement. If you fail to attend the first network training event, this fee is nonrefundable.

F. Design Center Deposit. Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor $5,000 which Franchisor will hold as a deposit. The deposit will be returned to you in two
phases:

1. $2,500 will be returned to you upon execution of a commercial lease through our
designated representative and in accordance with this Franchise Agreement; and

il. The remaining $2,500 will be returned to you within thirty days of the completion
of the following:

a. Obtaining an approved design for your Design Center. To ensure approval of
the design for your Design Center, the design must be completed by our
preferred designer;

b. Submission of an estimate for your design center buildout using our required
estimating software with sufficient detail, as we reasonably require, and you
review your submissions with your franchise coach to our satisfaction; and

c. Operating from an approved design center within 12 months of the Effective
Date of the Franchise Agreement.

G. Royalty Fee.

1. Beginning on the first Monday after the eight-month anniversary of the Effective
Date of the Franchise Agreement (the “Royalty Start Date”), and continuing through the end of
the Term, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a weekly “Royalty Fee.” The Royalty Fee is due on
Wednesday following the week for which the Royalty Fee was calculated.

1i. During the period beginning on the Royalty Start Date and ending on the last day
of the 12th month following the Effective Date, the Royalty Fee will be calculated as the Percentage
Royalty Fee (defined below). Thereafter, the Royalty Fee will be calculated as the greater of the
Percentage Royalty Fee or the Minimum Royalty Fee (defined below).
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1. The Percentage Royalty Fee is calculated by multiplying weekly Gross Sales by a
“Royalty Percentage.” The Royalty Percentage for year one of operations begins at 7%, and
decreases during the calendar year as certain Gross Sales thresholds are met, as reflected below:

Annual Aggregate Gross Sales Royalty Percentage!
$0 — $749,999 7%
$750,000 - $1,499,999 6%
$1,500,000 — $2,499,999 5%
$2,500,000 — $3,999,999 4%
$4,000,000 — over 3%

The Royalty Fee for year two of operations carries over from the end of year one and, thereafter is
adjusted on January 1 of each year to correspond to the prior year’s aggregate Gross Sales. For
example:

e If the Royalty Percentage at the end of year one was 5%, the Royalty Percentage for year
two begins at 5%.

o Ifaggregate Gross Sales in year two exceed $2,499,999, then the Royalty Percentage will
continue to decrease throughout year two according to the above schedule. The ending
Royalty Percentage for year two will carry forward to year three.

e If aggregate Gross Sales in year two range from $1,500,000 to $2,499,999, then the 5%
Royalty Percentage will carry forward to year three.

e If Gross Sales in year two are less than $1,500,000, then the Royalty Percentage will
increase on January 1 of year three to an amount that corresponds with year two Gross
Sales. For example, if aggregate Gross Sales in year two are $1,000,000, then the Royalty
Percentage beginning on January 1 of year three is 6%.

iv. “Gross Sales” means all revenues of the Franchised Business, including all
revenues from, through, by or on account of the operation of the Franchise and/or revenues from
the sale of products and/or services, excluding the amount of sales tax or similar receipts which, by
law, are chargeable to customers, if such taxes are separately stated when the customer is charged
and if such taxes are paid to the appropriate taxing authority. Gross Sales does not include any bona
fide refunds, rebates or discounts granted in the ordinary course of business. Gross Sales includes
all payments, regardless of payment form or method, with payment being considered received at
the time of the payment transaction (i.e., delivery of check, processing of debit or credit card
transaction, etc.) regardless of when funds are actually received. If a transaction which was
previously included in a prior period’s report of Gross Sales is determined to be uncollectible, that
amount shall be allowed as a credit against the Gross Sales reported to Franchisor for the period in
which the determination is made. Gross Sales does not include income generated by Franchisee’s
operation of any Competitive Business identified on Exhibit B-1 so long as Franchisee is in
compliance with this Agreement, including but not limited to the Competitive Business Operational
Conditions (as defined below) and further provided that Franchisee maintains separate books and
records for each of the Franchise and such Competitive Business. If Franchisee keeps separate sales
accounts and costs of sales accounts within an existing bookkeeping system, Franchisor shall
consider the separate books and records requirement to have been met. Franchisee shall make the
books and records for any Competitive Business available to Franchisor upon reasonable prior
notice so that Franchisor may verify Franchisee’s compliance with the separate books and records
requirement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Franchisee has an existing business with work that
was started prior to the Effective Date then, beginning with the first Monday following completion
of Foundations Training for the jobs for which Franchisee has already received a deposit and/or
design fee but no construction has started Franchisee must report all Gross Sales received from

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
Franchise Agreement | 2025 5



such date onward. For jobs where construction started before such date Franchisee is not required
to report Gross Sales received from that job.

V. The “Minimum Royalty Fee” is calculated as follows:

Date Minimum Royalty Fee! (Weekly)
Beginning on the First Anniversary through | $250 plus $125 for each 100,000 of
the end of the Second Anniversary Year population in the Territory over 200,0003

Beginning the week following the Third | $500 plus $250 for each 100,000 of
Anniversary through the end of the franchise | population in the Territory over 200,000%3
term.

Note 1. The Royalty Fee is subject to increase each January by an amount equal to the increase, if
any, in “The Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers”, U.S. City Average, All Items
published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, or any successor or substitute index appropriately
adjusted.

Note 2. Franchisor has the right to recalculate the population of Franchisee’s Territory each January
by an amount equal to the estimated population increase prepared by the U.S. Census Bureau or
any substitute or successor source.

Note 3. The Royalty Fee shall never be increased more than once per calendar year and said
increase, if any, shall never be more than $50 per week in any calendar year period. Franchisee’s
failure to pay Franchisor at least the Royalty Fee shall constitute a material default of the
Agreement.

H. Continuing Education Fee. Beginning six months after the Effective Date of the
Franchise Agreement and continuing throughout the Term, Franchisee must pay Franchisor a Continuing
Education Fee of $350 a month via automatic bank draft. The Continuing Education Fee is considered fully
earned and nonrefundable upon payment. If certain requirements are met, however, it is Franchisor’s current
policy to rebate Franchisee for expenses incurred in attending certain specified training meetings, up to a
defined limit. For the first meeting, Franchisor will rebate $2,100, the amount of the Initial Education Fee
collected upon signing of the Agreement; for each additional meeting, Franchisor shall reimburse expenses
up to $2,100. Total reimbursement, for any year, will not exceed the sum of Continuing Education Fee
payments or $4,200. To qualify for the refund, (1) Franchisee must be in compliance with this Agreement,
(2) Franchisee must be current in all amounts due and payable under this Agreement including, without
limitation, Continuing Education Fee payments, (3) Franchisee must register and pay for all training in
advance as required, (4) Franchisee must pay all expenses of attending training, and (5) Franchisee must
actually attend and participate in the entire training meeting or event. Refunds will be processed and sent
to Franchisee in the time and manner determined by Franchisor. Franchisor may modify or discontinue this
refund policy at any time. Continuing Education Fee payments will not be separately accounted for or
segregated from general operating funds, and are not refundable wholly or party, except in accordance with
this paragraph.

L Resale Training Fee and Initial Sales Education Fee. If Franchisee purchases a franchise
from an existing franchisee, Franchisor will provide Foundations Core Training to Franchisee and
Franchisee must pay $5,000 for such training. Franchisee must also participate in the requisite initial sales-
related training program and pay Franchisor a $3,750 Initial Sales Education Fee.

J. MAP Fee. During the term of this Agreement, Franchisee shall contribute to Franchisor’s
national marketing, advertising and promotion fund (the “MAP Fund”). The MAP Fund contribution is due
on the Wednesday following the week for which the MAP Fund contribution was calculated. The MAP
Fund contribution is calculated by multiplying weekly Gross Sales by 2%.
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K. Advertising Cooperatives. Franchisor may approve the establishment of local cooperative
advertising associations consisting of all franchised and company-owned units within an area
(“Cooperative”). Upon receipt of notice from Franchisor that a Cooperative has been formed which includes
the Territory, Franchisee shall participate as a member of such Cooperative and contribute the amount
determined collectively by the members of such Cooperative; provided, however, that any required
contribution exceeding two percent of Gross Sales for any specified period must be approved by the
affirmative vote of two-thirds of the Cooperative members, attending in person or voting by proxy, at a
duly constituted meeting. Such Cooperative contributions are in excess of the MAP Fee required to be paid
under this Agreement.

L. Reports and Payments. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor by Wednesday of each
week, at the time of day specified by Franchisor, and on a form approved by Franchisor, a statement, signed
by Franchisee (a “Report”), of Gross Sales for the previous week’s reporting period, together with payment
of the greater of the Royalty Fee or the Minimum Royalty Fee, plus the MAP Fee. Franchisor may specify
a different day of the week for such Reports by notifying Franchisee in writing of such change. When
Franchisor directs, the Report shall be submitted electronically as prescribed by Franchisor, including using
prescribed software, and Franchisee shall pay all fees by automatic bank draft based on Reports submitted
to Franchisor electronically. Franchisor may independently poll Gross Sales and other information input
and compiled by Franchisee’s computer system from a remote location. There is no limitation on
Franchisor’s right to access this information. The Report may include other operational activity as specified
by Franchisor.

Franchisee shall participate in Franchisor’s then-current electronic funds transfer program
authorizing Franchisor to use a pre-authorized bank draft system. Franchisee shall: (a) comply with
Franchisor’s procedures, as specified in the Manual or otherwise in writing; (b) perform those acts and sign
and deliver those documents as may be necessary to accomplish payment by electronic funds transfer as
described in this Section; (¢) execute and deliver to Franchisor an authorization in the form designated by
Franchisor to initiate debit entries and/or credit correction entries to the account for payments of the Royalty
Fee and any other amounts payable under this Agreement, including any interest charges; and (d) make
sufficient funds available in the account for withdrawal by electronic funds transfer no later than the due
date for payment thereof. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, Franchisor reserves the right to
modify, at its option, the method by which Franchisee pays the Royalty Fee and other amounts owed under
this Agreement upon receipt of written notice by Franchisor. Franchisee’s failure to have sufficient funds
in the account from which Franchisor receives payment is a material breach of this Agreement.

M. Late Reports; Amended Reports. If Franchisor fails to receive a Report within five days
after the due date, Franchisor may assess a late reporting administrative fee of $25 per Report. If Franchisee
submits a Reports which requires amending or updating after submission due to inaccuracy or error,
Franchisor may assess a Report amendment administrative fee of $50 per Report. The administrative fees
in this Section are imposed to reimburse Franchisor for overhead and administrative costs associated with
such late or amended reporting.

N. Administrative Enforcement Fees; Noncompliance Royalty Rate.

(1) If Franchisor determines that Franchisee is not in compliance with this Agreement or the
Brand Standards, Franchisor is entitled to deliver to Franchisee notice of such noncompliance. In the event
of such noncompliance, Franchisor has the right to impose and collect from Franchisee a $500
administrative fee (“Administrative Enforcement Fee”) for each “enforcement effort” that Franchisor
undertakes on account of Franchisee’s noncompliance (e.g., a letter, email, or telephone communication
notifying Franchisee of noncompliance or continued noncompliance), and if Franchisor has notified
Franchisee of noncompliance and Franchisee has failed to correct the issue within seven days, Franchisor
may impose and collect from Franchisee a $500 Administrative Enforcement Fee per week until the issue
has been corrected to Franchisor’s satisfaction.
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(ii) Franchisor also may impose and collect the Administrative Enforcement Fee if Franchisee
(a) fails to submit any report or financial statement, Annual Tax Report, Annual Business Budget, or proof
of insurance required to be submitted under this Agreement, (b) fails to pay when due any amount due
under this Agreement, and/or (c¢) fails to acknowledge receipt of Franchisor’s communications to
Franchisee, or to respond to Franchisor’s communications within 96 hours of delivery.

(i)  During any period that Franchisee is in default of its obligations under this Agreement or
the Brand Standards, Franchisor also shall have the right to assess an additional weekly Royalty Fee in an
amount equal to the greater of (a) $250 per week or (b) one percentage point higher than the rate payable
under Section 3.G., in Franchisor’s sole and absolute discretion. This right is cumulative of all other rights
of Franchisor arising from Franchisee’s noncompliance.

(iv) The Administrative Enforcement Fee is not a penalty but is intended to compensate
Franchisor for the additional costs that it incurs in enforcing compliance with this Agreement and with the
Brand Standards and is in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights or remedies that Franchisor may
have based on Franchisee’s noncompliance with this Agreement or the Brand Standards. Franchisor may
impose and collect the Administrative Enforcement Fee whether or not the noncompliance at issue is of the
type or degree that constitutes a material default of Franchisee’s obligations under this Agreement and, if
it is, whether or not a cure period applies.

0. Late Payments. After the due date, all payments shall bear interest at the highest rate
permitted by applicable law, not to exceed 12% per annum.

P. Dishonored Checks. Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a fee of $75 for each dishonored
check and/or ACH draft tendered to Franchisor by Franchisee.

Q. Reimbursement of Taxes. Within 30 days after receipt of an invoice, Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor an amount equal to any sales tax, gross receipts tax, income tax, or similar taxes or assessments
imposed on Franchisor with respect to any payments due to Franchisor under this Agreement.

R. Independent Obligations: Application of Payment. Franchisee’s obligations to pay
Royalty Fees and other monetary obligations under this Agreement are absolute and independent of any
other provision of this Agreement. Franchisee shall not, on any grounds including any alleged non-
performance by Franchisor of any of its obligations hereunder, withhold, offset or escrow any amounts due
in accordance with this Agreement for any reason and if Franchisee does so such action shall be deemed an
independent default of this Agreement for which Franchisor will have the absolute right to terminate this
Agreement. No endorsement or statement on any check or payment of any sum less than the full sum due
shall be construed as an acknowledgement of payment in full or an accord and satisfaction and Franchisor
may accept and cash such check or payment without prejudice to its rights to recover the balance due or
pursue any other remedy provided herein or by law. Franchisor has the right to apply any payments to past
due indebtedness. Franchisor is not required to accept payments after same are due, extend credit or
otherwise finance Franchisee’s operations. Failure to pay all amounts when due may result in suspension
of access to Franchisor’s support and services until such failure is cured and constitutes good cause for
termination of this Agreement. Franchisor may sell, assign or discount any note or monetary obligation
arising from the Agreement to a third party.

S. Personal Obligation. Franchisee acknowledges that the Royalty Fee and any other
monetary obligations owed to Franchisor under this Agreement are personal obligations of Franchisee and
that Franchisee is required to personally participate in the operation of the Franchised Business unless
Franchisor otherwise consents. If Franchisee is a corporation or other legal entity, Franchisee must
designate an Operating Principal (as defined below) and Franchisee’s Principals shall personally guaranty
Franchisee’s performance to Franchisor. If there are two or more Principals, their obligation and liability
shall be joint and several. “Principals” means Franchisee’s spouse, if an individual; any holder of voting
securities, if Franchisee is a corporation; any and all members and managers, if Franchisee is a limited
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liability company; and Franchisees general partner and the Principals of the general partner, if Franchisee
is a limited partnership. If any Principal is a business entity, then the term “Principal” also includes the
Principals of the business entity.

T. Amendment Fee. If Franchisee requests an amendment to this Agreement and Franchisor
agrees to such request, Franchisee must pay Franchisor a processing fee for modifications to this Agreement
equal to the greater of (1) Franchisor’s actual costs in preparing the amendment, including without
limitation, legal fees, or (2) $1,500. When Franchisee executes an amendment to this Agreement or related
agreements Franchisor may require that Franchisee sign a general release releasing Franchisor from all
claims Franchisee may have except claims which, under state law, may not be released.

U. Brand Protection Fund. Franchisor has the right to create and administer a Brand
Protection Fund (“BPF”’). Upon receipt of notice from Franchisor that the BPF has been formed, Franchisee
shall participate in the BPF by signing any documents required by Franchisor, and shall contribute to the
BPF an amount determined by Franchisor; provided, however, that such initial contribution shall not exceed
$5,000. The initial contribution is subject to reimbursement from the Initial Advertising and Promotional
Deposit. We reserve the right to require you to contribute to the BPF monthly, in an amount we designate
not to exceed 2% of Gross Sales. Contributions are nonrefundable when paid. Franchisor shall use BPF
monies for the proper completion of jobs performed by franchisees and former franchisees and to reimburse
related administrative costs. The BPF may be administered by Franchisor directly, or may be administered
by a separate entity controlled by Franchisor and/or DREAMMAKER franchisees. All decisions relating
to BPF expenditures shall be made by exclusively Franchisor, after having solicited and received comments
and advice from an advisory committee comprised of franchisees selected by, or according to procedures
determined by, Franchisor. An annual unaudited statement of BPF contributions and expenditures will be
made available to Franchisee upon request.

4. FRANCHISOR’S OBLIGATIONS
A. Training. Franchisee understands and acknowledges that Franchisor does not provide

technical training on remodeling techniques. Franchisor’s initial training consists of three phases: (1)
“Foundations Prep Training,” (2) “Foundations Core Training,” and (3) “Simulation Training.” Franchisee
will attend Foundations Prep Training via phone, webinar, through self-study, or other method as Franchisor
may designate from time to time. During Foundations Core Training, Franchisor shall train Franchisee in
the fundamental marketing skills and managerial skills necessary to operate a Franchise in accordance with
the System. Foundations Core Training shall be conducted periodically at the home office in Waco, Texas,
via webinar, or such other time and place as Franchisor may designate. During Simulation Training
Franchisee will complete self-study exercises, sales training and role play, marketing assignments, shadow
employees of existing franchise locations, visit Franchisor’s preferred cabinet vendor and complete required
design courses. Such visit to Franchisor’s preferred cabinet vendor and design courses may be conduct
virtually or in-person as Franchisor or Franchisor’s preferred cabinet vendor may designate in their sole
discretion. Franchisee also must complete a sales and sales management training program, at Franchisee’s
expense, with a third party designated by Franchisor. Franchisee, or the Operating Principal designated by
Franchisee in accordance with this Agreement, must attend and complete all training at such designated
times and locations, and via such designated methods, as specified by Franchisor. Franchisee must complete
such training to Franchisor’s satisfaction. If Franchisor, in its sole discretion, determines that Franchisee
has failed to satisfactorily complete this training, Franchisor may terminate this Agreement. If Franchisee
has employees whom Franchisee wishes for Franchisor to train, such additional persons may attend these
training classes for a fee at then-current costs, which costs may change from time to time without notice to
Franchisee. Franchisee is solely responsible for all food, lodging, travel, and miscellaneous expenses for
itself and its employees to, from and during training. Franchisor may provide, from time to time, additional
or “refresher” training programs, seminars, regional meetings and related activities regarding the operation
the Franchised Business. Franchisor may also conduct an annual convention (“Reunion”) and various other
training seminars for Franchisee at such times and places and for such duration as Franchisor designates.
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Franchisor may charge a reasonable cost for any such training programs, seminars, meetings and the
Reunion. Franchisor currently requires Franchisee’s attendance at Reunion and may require Franchisee to
attend and complete such additional training programs, seminars, and meetings as Franchisor deems
advisable, and Franchisee shall comply with all such requirements. In all cases, Franchisee shall pay all
travel and living expenses.

B. Promotion and Advertising. Franchisor may maintain a web site on the Internet to
advertise and promote its System and services marketed by its franchisees. Franchisor may, but is not
required to, make web site space available to Franchisee. Any representations and warranties of any kind
whatsoever, express or implied, regarding any web site, including representations and warranties as to the
operation, functionality, lack of interruption or resources of the web site, are expressly excluded. Without
limiting the foregoing, Franchisor disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose as to any web site. As to any malfunctioning of any web site, Franchisor will not be
liable to Franchisee for any consequential, incidental, indirect, economic, special, exemplary or punitive
damages, such as, but not limited to, loss of revenue or anticipated profits or lost business, even if
Franchisee has advised Franchisor that such damages are possible as a result of any breach of warranty or
malfunction. Franchisor shall develop, or shall authorize designees to develop, from time to time,
promotional programs and advertising campaigns to assist Franchisee in selling and performing services in
accordance with the System. In particular, Franchisor shall maintain and administer the MAP Fund as
follows:

1. The MAP Fund shall consist of MAP Fee contributions and advertising or promotional
monies or credits from vendors and suppliers based upon purchases by franchisees. Franchisee authorizes
Franchisor to collect such advertising or promotional monies or credits from suppliers and vendors. All
interest earned on monies in the MAP Fund shall be deposited into the MAP Fund.

2. Franchisor shall direct, or shall authorize its designees to direct, all promotional programs
and advertising campaigns financed by the MAP Fund, and Franchisor shall retain sole discretion over the
choice of advertising or marketing agencies, spokespersons, creative concepts, promotional materials,
advertising campaigns, geographic placements, media placements and market allocations. Although
Franchisor intends for the MAP Fund to support promotional programs and advertising campaigns which
will benefit most franchisees, Franchisor is not obligated to make expenditures on behalf of or for the
benefit of Franchisee which are equivalent or proportionate to Franchisee’s contributions to the MAP Fund
or to ensure that any particular geographic area benefits directly or pro rata from MAP Fund expenditures.

3. The MAP Fund may be used to pay any and all costs for preparing and producing video,
audio, Internet and printed advertising materials; planning and conducting any online or digital brand
enhancement activities, including, without limitation, all Internet and web presence activities, search engine
optimization activities, pay per click campaigns, business directory and listing creation and monitoring, and
all social media related activities; administering national and regional advertising programs including direct
mail, point of sale and other media advertising; employing advertising and public relations agencies;
supporting public relations activities; conducting, analyzing, and other activities related to market research,
customer surveys, and satisfaction reports; trademark availability and usage searches, and trademark,
copyright, and other intellectual property filings with state or federal government agencies; travel-related,
registration, and other associated costs with respect to attendance at industry (including franchise industry),
tradeshows, conventions, and events; advertising and marketing activities; and other promotions or
activities intended to advance the business prospects of franchisees. The MAP Fund may be used to support
any National Account program that is intended to attract National Account Customers for services that are
provided by franchisees and company-owned units in the System, and that is being administered by
Franchisor or any designee of Franchisor.

4. The MAP Fund shall be accounted for separately from the other funds of Franchisor and
shall not be used to defray any of Franchisor’s operating expenses, except for amounts which may be used
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to defray expenses of establishing and maintaining Franchisor’s web sites and such reasonable salaries
expenses and administrative costs and overhead as Franchisor may incur in activities reasonably related to
the administration of the MAP Fund and its promotional programs and advertising campaigns including,
without limitation, conducting market research, preparing advertising and marketing materials, and
collecting and accounting for the various contributions to the MAP Fund.

5. In any fiscal year, Franchisor may spend an amount greater or lesser than the aggregate
receipts of the MAP Fund in that year, and the MAP Fund may borrow from Franchisor or various lenders
to cover any deficits of the MAP Fund.

6. Franchisor has the right, but not the obligation, to cause the MAP Fund to be incorporated
or operated through an entity separate from Franchisor, and any such successor entity shall have all the
rights and duties of Franchisor under this Section.

7. There is no requirement that the MAP Fund be audited. As soon as reasonably practicable
following the end of each fiscal year, Franchisor will prepare a statement of the monies collected and costs
incurred by the MAP Fund. Such statement shall be furnished to Franchisee upon written request.

8. Except as expressly provided in this Section, Franchisor assumes no direct or indirect
liability or obligation to Franchisee or any of its other franchisees with respect to the maintenance, direction
or administration of the MAP Fund.

Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor may utilize photographs or other
representations or data regarding Franchisee, Franchisee’s employees, place of business, vehicles, job sites,
work projects and other related items in any advertising or promotion deemed advisable by Franchisor
without the prior notice or consent of Franchisee. Franchisee will not be due any compensation for any such
use and Franchisee hereby specifically releases Franchisor from all claims, demands, damages, costs and
expenses of any kind relating to or arising from the use of any such photographs or other materials.

C. Confidentiality. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor may share
Franchisee’s financial information, specifically, information relating to the Franchised Business, and
operating performance ratings, assessments or similar data with Franchisor’s franchisees and Franchisor’s
affiliate’s franchisees and prospective franchisees through the use of newsletters, bulletins, award
ceremonies, and otherwise as Franchisor deems necessary or advisable.

D. Source of Supplies. Franchisor will provide Franchisee with a schedule of required
equipment, supplies and materials needed for the Franchised Business. This schedule may be amended from
time to time at Franchisor’s sole discretion. Any products sold by Franchisor shall be sold to Franchisee at
the price and on the terms as may be specified by Franchisor from time to time. Franchisor may from time
to time negotiate purchase arrangements with any supplier and may receive rebates or other material
consideration from the supplier as a result of Franchisee’s purchases.

E. Franchisor’s Software. If and at the times determined by Franchisor and for so long as
Franchisor elects to do so, Franchisor may license to Franchisee software, including end user instructions
for operating such software, that Franchisor owns or otherwise has a right to license to Franchisee
(“Franchisor’s Software”), according to the terms of the applicable license agreement specified by
Franchisor. Franchisee is required to use the Franchisor’s Software at the times and on the terms specified
by Franchisor. Franchisee must enter into the Technology Agreement, in the form prescribed by Franchisor,
under which Franchisee is granted the right to use Franchisor’s Software and which governs the terms and
conditions under which Franchisee must purchase and use other technology. Franchisee must pay all
requisite amounts included in the Technology Agreement to Franchisor or third parties, as designated.

F. Lease Negotiations. Franchisor may require the inclusion of certain provisions in
Franchisee’s lease; provided, however, Franchisor does not assume responsibility for negotiation or final
content of the lease. The sole responsibility for acceptance of the terms and conditions of the lease remains
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with Franchisee. Franchisor’s approval of a lease or lease terms does not mean that the economic
terms of the lease are favorable; it means only that the lease contains the lease terms that Franchisor
requires.

G. Construction Plans. Upon written request, Franchisor will make available, at no charge
to Franchisee, Franchisor’s then-current designs, plans and/or specifications for the build-out of a Franchise
Location. Such designs, plans and/or specifications may include interior and exterior design, layout,
fixtures, furnishings and signage. Franchisee must adapt the standard plans and/or specifications for the
Franchise Location, using only Franchisor’s designated designer, at Franchisee’s sole expense.

S. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

A. Manner of Operation; Best Efforts; Cooperation with Franchisor; Limitation of
Services. Commencing no later than the 12th month after the Effective Date (but in no event before
Franchisee has opened its Franchise Location), Franchisee shall at all times operate the Franchised Business
within the Territory from the Franchised Location during customary business hours in compliance with
Franchisor’s System (which includes restrictions regarding operations on, or publishing operating hour for,
Sundays), including all standards, policies and procedures which Franchisor may from time to time
establish in Franchisor’s Manuals, bulletins, notices, or otherwise in writing. Franchisee shall maintain the
highest standards of quality and workmanship in its operation of the Franchised Business in accordance
with the standards established by Franchisor in order to provide the highest quality service to customers of
Franchisee and to preserve and enhance the value of the Marks licensed hereunder. During the term of this
Agreement, Franchisee shall comply with its obligations and requirements under this Agreement and the
Manuals in its operation of the Franchised Business; act in good faith; cooperate with Franchisor in
accomplishing the purpose of this Agreement; not engage in any business activity which would be
detrimental to or interfere with the operation, reputation or goodwill of the Franchised Business, Franchisor,
Franchisor’s System, or any other franchisee; and comply with the terms of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor and Franchisee acknowledge and agree that any Competitive
Business identified on Exhibit B-1 shall be considered a separate and distinct entity from the Franchise
which is not subject to this Agreement and Franchisee’s continued operation of such Competitive Business
shall not constitute a violation of this Agreement so long as (1) the operation of such Competitive Business
does not interfere with Franchisee’s operation of the Franchised Business; (2) Franchisee does not utilize
Franchisor’s Marks, System or Confidential Information (as that term is later defined) in the operation of
the Competitive Business; and (3) the Competitive Business does not directly compete with the Franchised
Business by offering the same services and/or products (“Competitive Business Operational Conditions”).
A “Competitive Business” is any business other than the Franchise which offers or sells any product or
service or component thereof which composes a part of Franchisor’s System or which competes directly or
indirectly with the Franchise or Franchisor’s System. Franchisee is prohibited from the wholesale sale to
any third party of any proprietary product or equipment which now or in the future may comprise any part
of Franchisor’s System. Franchisee shall not sell or dispose of any proprietary product or expendable
materials to any person, except a person having an effective franchise agreement with Franchisor. During
customary business hours, Franchisee shall not use a telephone answering service or an answering machine.
After customary business hours, Franchisee shall use a telephone answering service acceptable to
Franchisor. Unless Franchisor consents in writing, Franchisee is required to personally manage and/or
exercise personal supervision over the management of the Franchised Business. If Franchisee is a
corporation or other legal entity, Franchisee must designate a shareholder, partner or member as the
“Operating Principal”, who must be acceptable to Franchisor, and furnish all organizational and other
documents regarding Franchisee’s creation and structure, together with any and all modifications thereto,
to Franchisor. In addition to all of the above, Franchisee must maintain at least one employee as a full-time
office manager dedicated to the operation of the franchised business and one employee as a part-time
marketing coordinator dedicated to marketing the franchised business. Franchisee shall hire such full-time
office manager and such office manager shall commencement employment with Franchisee prior to the
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commencement of Simulation Training. Franchisee shall hire such marketing coordinator and such
marketing coordinator shall commence employment with the Franchisee as a marketing coordinator no later
than 30 days after Franchisee’s completion of Simulation Training.

B. Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations. Franchisee shall, at all times, comply
with all federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations which affect, directly or
indirectly, the operation of the Franchised Business. In particular Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisee
is solely responsible for obtaining a contractor’s license and Franchisee shall comply with all federal, state,
municipal or other local licensing requirements for the use, storage and disposal of hazardous and/or
regulated products, chemicals or materials. Franchisor assumes no responsibility for Franchisee’s acts or
omissions in this regard. Franchisee shall obtain and keep in force all licenses, permits and certificates
necessary for the full and proper operation of the Franchised Business, including, without limitation,
licenses or permits to do business, assumed name registrations and sales tax permits. Franchisee shall pay
promptly, as and when due, all taxes and charges lawfully assessed by any governmental authority,
including, without limitation, state and federal employment and unemployment taxes, income taxes, sales
taxes, payroll taxes, and all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind.

C. Vehicle Acquisition and Maintenance. Franchisee shall acquire and maintain, at
Franchisee’s sole expense, a vehicle as specified by Franchisor for use in the Franchised Business.
Franchisor may specify, from time to time, the minimum number of vehicles to be operated by Franchisee
based on the population of the Territory and the Gross Sales of the Franchised Business. Unless otherwise
approved in writing by Franchisor, each vehicle shall be no more than four years old at the time of
acquisition, in excellent condition, white in color, and shall have the Marks professionally applied prior to
the vehicle being put into service. Each vehicle shall be equipped and outfitted in accordance with
Franchisor’s specifications. Franchisee shall maintain the interior, exterior and mechanical parts of such
vehicle in excellent repair and condition and Franchisee shall regularly service and maintain such vehicle
so as to keep it clean and in good working order.

D. Technology. Franchisee shall acquire, install, maintain and upgrade computer hardware,
software, including, but not limited to, desktops, laptops, personal digital assistants or other similar devices,
and other hardware and peripherals or related items; software; and Internet access, and similar or related
items, as periodically required by Franchisor during the term of the Agreement. Franchisor or its designee
may be a designated supplier or the sole designated supplier for some or all of the required computer
hardware, software and/or Internet service. The System, Franchisor’s Software, and Franchisor’s
proprietary products, services, operations and training, may be periodically upgraded, improved, refined,
changed, deleted or altered to address new technology, efficiency, quality control, economic or market
factors. Franchisee expressly agrees to implement any such changes when necessary, within the time period
specified for all franchisees and at Franchisee’s sole expense, in order to maintain the uniformity and
integrity of the System and to comply with all policies and procedures, and execute any required
agreements, regarding use of intranet or any electronic communication, or data storage/retrieval system,
website or software as Franchisor may prescribe from time to time.

Franchisee shall enter into an arrangement with a qualified vendor to provide IT support and
maintenance; provided that Franchisor may waive this requirement if Franchisee demonstrates, to
Franchisor’s satisfaction, that Franchisee has adequate in-house IT expertise and resources. Franchisee shall
grant to Franchisor, at all times, independent and remote access to all information and financial data
recorded by Franchisees computer systems and software. Franchisee acknowledges that there are no
contractual limitations to Franchisor’s right to access or use the information and data recorded by
Franchisee’s systems.

E. Non-Cash Payment Systems. Franchisee shall accept debit cards, credit cards, stored
value cards, and other non-cash systems (including, for example, APPLE PAY, GOOGLE WALLET, etc.)
that Franchisor specifies periodically to enable customers to purchase authorized products, and to acquire
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and install all necessary hardware and/or software used in connection with these non-cash systems. The
parties acknowledge and agree that protection of customer privacy and credit card information is necessary
to protect the goodwill of businesses operating under the Marks and System. Accordingly, Franchisee shall
cause the Franchised Business to meet or exceed, at all times, all applicable security standards developed
by the Payment Card Industry Standards Council or its successor and other regulations and industry
standards applicable to the protection of customer privacy and credit card information. Franchisee is solely
responsible for its own education concerning these regulations and standards and for achieving and
maintaining applicable compliance certifications. Franchisee shall defend, indemnify, and hold Franchisor
harmless from and against all claims arising out of or related to Franchisee’s violation of the provisions of
this Section.

F. Uniforms. In order to present a neat and clean appearance while performing the services
of the Franchised Business, Franchisee and any employee of the Franchised Business shall wear a uniform
as specified in Franchisor’s Manuals, bulletins, notices, or otherwise in writing; and Franchisee shall
prohibit the wearing of such uniforms except during and within the scope of an employee’s employment.

G. Insurance. Franchisee shall, at all times during the term of the Agreement and any
extension thereof, procure and maintain policies of insurance as Franchisor may reasonably specify. Such
policy or policies shall be written by an insurance company with an A.M. Best rating of not less than A-
VII in accordance with standards and specifications set forth in the Manuals or otherwise specified in
writing by Franchisor. If Franchisee fails to do so, Franchisor may, but is not required to, obtain the
necessary insurance for Franchisee and keep the same in force and effect, and Franchisee shall pay
Franchisor, on demand, all premiums charged for the policies of insurance. All policies purchased by
Franchisee shall provide that Franchisor be given at least 30 days’ prior written notice of any termination,
amendment, cancellation or modification thereof and shall require the insurer to defend Franchisee and
Franchisor in any action based on personal injury or property damage suffered as a result of or arising out
of the operation of the Franchised Business. In addition, all general liability policies of insurance shall name
Franchisor, its affiliates, successors, assigns, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members, agents
representatives, independent contractors and employees as additional insureds. All policies of insurance
shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Franchisor, its affiliates, and respective officers, directors,
shareholders, partners, members, agents, representatives, independent contractors, servants and employees.
Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to constitute an undertaking or representation by Franchisor that
any such insurance will insure Franchisee against any or all insurable risks of loss which may or can arise
out of or in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business. Before the completion of Foundations
Core Training, Franchisee shall procure the following policies:

1. comprehensive general liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined
single limit/$2,000,000 aggregate to protect Franchisee against injury to property or person arising from
the operation of the Franchise. This policy shall further provide that Franchisee’s insurance coverage is
primary to any coverage maintained by Franchisor and Franchisor must be named as a Grantor of Franchise
additional insured on the policy; and

2. commercial auto liability insurance coverage, on each owned, non-owned or hired vehicle
which is operated by, or on behalf of, the Franchise, including owned, non-owned or hired vehicles, and
providing protection for injury caused to person or property by such vehicles in the minimum amount of
$1,000,000 combined single limit. This policy shall further provide that Franchisee’s insurance coverage is
primary to any coverage maintained by Franchisor;

3. umbrella insurance, which must extend over auto, employers, and general liability
insurance, with minimum limits of $1,000,000;

4. workers’ compensation with statutory limits, including employer’s liability of
$500,000/$500,000/$500,000, alternate employer’s endorsement in Franchisor’s favor, and any other
insurance that may be required in the state in which the Franchised Business operates. If the Franchised
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Business operates in a monopolistic state (i.e., Wyoming, North Dakota, West Virginia, Washington, and
Ohio), Franchisee must also obtain stop gap coverage on the workers’ compensation policy or general
liability policy. Minimum limits are as follows: no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury by
accident; $500,000 policy limit by disease; and $500,000 per employee for bodily injury by disease or
higher coverage as required by law;

5. data breach/cyber liability insurance with minimum limits of $50,000; and

6. such other insurance as required by Franchisor or Franchisee’s state or locality and such
revised minimum standards and limits for insurance coverage and other terms (such as naming Franchisor
and related parties as an additional insured) as Franchisor may set from time to time in the Manuals or by
other written notice.

Franchisee shall deliver to Franchisor a certificate of insurance evidencing the insurance coverage
required under this Section both before attending Simulation Training and upon each renewal of said policy
or policies. In each case in which Franchisor is required to be an additional insured the endorsement for the
additional insured status must be worded and have such overage as specified by Franchisor and the
additional insured endorsement may not have any exclusions or limitations not allowed by Franchisor. In
any case in which umbrella policies are required the umbrella policies shall be endorsed so as to indicate
that such policies provide primary coverage, without right of contribution by the Franchisor’s liability
insurance policies for all claims against the Franchisor arising out of the performance of the work by
Franchisee.

H. Records and Reports. Franchisee shall install, and maintain at all times, a complete and
uniform accounting system that results in financial information being prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and meeting the standard operating procedures and
specifications, including internal audit standards, and use of an approved chart of accounts, prescribed
periodically by Franchisor. In each case in which Franchisor requires, including in connection with
Franchisee’s set-up of books and records, in using the required chart of accounts and in producing annual
compiled financial statements, Franchisee shall utilize the services of an independent certified public
accountant specified by or satisfactory to Franchisor (“CPA”). These procedures and specifications may
include, but are not limited to, all sales and cash journal sheets, bank reconciliations, payroll records,
invoice logs, other financial records as required by Franchisor, and may include the use of computer
hardware and software as periodically specified by Franchisor and the adoption of a fiscal year and
accounting periods consistent with those used by Franchisor. Franchisee shall maintain complete and
accurate records, accounts, books, data and reports which shall accurately reflect all particulars arising out
of this Agreement. If Franchisee transacts business which is not subject to this Agreement, all records
connected to such other operation shall be kept in a manner necessary to effect a clear and convenient
segregation between the Franchised Business and such other business. Otherwise, any sums deposited into
bank accounts for the Franchised Business are deemed to be Gross Sales of the Franchised Business.
Franchisee shall deliver the following reports to Franchisor by mailing the Report or by submitting the
Report electronically if Franchisor so directs:

1. by Wednesday of each week, a Report of Gross Sales for the previous week, together with
copies of all invoices and payment of the greater of the Royalty Fee or any applicable Minimum Royalty
Fee plus the MAP Fee;

2. within 15 days after the close of each calendar month, a monthly financial report consisting
of a profit and loss statement and balance sheet for the Franchised Business as it stands at the end of such
period, all in reasonable detail and in accordance with generally acceptable accounting principles and
certified to be true and correct by Franchisee or Franchisee’s authorized agent (“Monthly Financial
Report™);
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3. within 60 days after the close of each fiscal year, an income and expense statement and a
balance sheet for the Franchised Business as it stands at the end of such fiscal year; all in reasonable detail
and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, certified to be true and correct by
Franchisee (“Annual Financial Statements”); and, upon demand of Franchisor, such Annual Financial
Statements, in such form and format, as Franchisor shall require, shall be audited by a CPA within the time
period required by Franchisor, which may be less than 90 days after the close of Franchisee’s fiscal year;

4, before the end of each calendar year, a copy of Franchisee’s detailed business budget for
the forthcoming year in reasonable detail and prepared in accordance with Franchisor’s specifications as
communicated to Franchisee in writing (“Annual Business Budget”);

5. within 30 days after filing, a copy of Franchisee’s federal and any state income tax returns
and all amendments thereto pertaining to the operation of the Franchised Business, and a letter stating
whether or not: (a) all payroll tax returns have been filed and payroll taxes paid; (b) all federal income tax
returns have been filed and taxes paid; and (c) any state income and franchise tax returns have been filed
and taxes paid (“Annual Tax Report”);

6. upon demand, Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor a complete customer list of the
Franchised Business, including the customer’s name, address and telephone number, and Franchisee shall
maintain such list in an electronic format acceptable to Franchisor, which allows for the electronic delivery
of such information and Franchisee agrees that such information, whether or not requested by Franchisor
at any time, is and shall be the property of Franchisor; and

7. such other periodic reports, forms and records as Franchisor may reasonably specify in
writing, including information from any Competitive Business. Franchisee shall make available for
inspection by Franchisor, at reasonable times and during normal business hours, all original books and
records that Franchisor may deem necessary to ascertain the accuracy of such periodic reports.

In addition, Franchisee shall allow such auditing, inspecting, copying of records, and similar review
and inspection of Franchisee’s books and records as Franchisor may require and shall cooperate with
Franchisor’s auditors, on a reasonable but unannounced basis, for such purposes. Franchisor may also
require Franchisee to comply with such additional requirements as may be reasonably necessary in order to
enable Franchisor to meet its obligations using generally accepted accounting principles. Franchisee
acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor is relying upon Franchisee’s certification of its Monthly Financial
Reports and that Franchisee has accurately reported its Gross Sales. Therefore, Franchisee hereby waives
any and all claims relating to the overpayment of any fees, including but not limited to Royalty Fees and
MAP Fund fees, based on the inaccurate reporting of Gross Sales or the inaccurate calculation of such fees,
unless Franchisee notifies Franchisor of such inaccuracies in writing within 90 days of the end of the
calendar month in which the Gross Sales occurred.

L. Promotion and Marketing. Recognizing the value of promotion and marketing and the
importance of standardization to the furtherance of the goodwill and public image of the System, Franchisee
shall engage in local marketing and promotion of the services and products available through the Franchised
Business. Through the Second Anniversary year of the Franchised Business, the Franchisor’s Draw shall
be spent by Franchisor on advertising and promotional activities connected with the Franchised Business.
In the third year of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall spend an amount equal to at least 5% of annual
Gross Sales. In the fourth year and each year thereafter, Franchisee shall spend an amount equal to at least
3% of annual Gross Sales each year thereafter, in accordance with Franchisor’s Manuals, bulletins, notices,
or otherwise in writing. Franchisee shall market and promote the services and products of the Franchised
Business using a showroom, newspapers, magazines, home shows, press releases, radio, television,
billboards, direct mail, coupon inserts and/or the Internet. This requirement is in addition to any MAP Fee
or any contribution to a Cooperative. Franchisee shall participate in all non-price related marketing and
public relations programs instituted by the MAP Fund or a Cooperative. Franchisee shall not create,
maintain or modify a web site or any other type of Internet presence containing Franchisor’s name or Marks
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without Franchisor’s prior written approval. Franchisee shall not engage in any deceptive, misleading or
unethical advertising which, in the sole opinion of Franchisor, might be injurious or detrimental to
Franchisor, the Marks, the System or the public. Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor all promotional and
advertising materials prepared by Franchisee, whether print, electronic, audio or visual (including directory
and online advertising), prior to use, together with an outline of its proposed use, for Franchisor’s written
approval. Franchisee shall not advertise or sell any product or service not specifically authorized by this
Agreement or otherwise in writing.

J. Training, Meetings, and Reunion. Unless otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor,
Franchisee shall attend, at Franchisee’s sole expense, a required “mentor” visit within 18 to 24 months of
operation, Foundations Prep Training, Foundations Core Training, Simulation Training, Reunion, and any
other training Franchisor designates as mandatory. Franchisor also retains the right to require Franchisee to
attend and complete a “refresher” training course or advanced training course if Franchisor determines that
Franchisee is not current on all aspects of the System or is otherwise in need of such training.

For both the above describe, and any additional mandatory training, as well as non-mandatory
training, Franchisee must pay the then-current training fee, which will not exceed $1,500 per person per
day before the training is provided. Franchisor may, but is not obligated to, offer specialty training or work
in conjunction with an association to provide training that earns a certification, and when such training is
offered Franchisor may charge for that training an amount to be determined by Franchisor. If Franchisor or
its designees provides training on-site at the Franchised Business location (mandatory or otherwise),
Franchisee shall also reimburse Franchisor for all travel expenses incurred in connection with the training,
including transportation, lodging, and dinning costs.

K. Customer Service. Franchisee shall hold itself solely responsible for the quality and results
of the services performed hereunder, maintaining a continuing responsibility with respect to such services
beyond the termination or expiration of this Agreement. Franchisee shall render and shall cause each of its
employees to render prompt, competent and courteous service to customers and Franchisee shall offer and
honor such service warranties as Franchisor directs. Franchisor’s expectation is that Franchisee shall
respond to any dissatisfied customer within 24 hours after the complaint is received, whenever possible.
Should Franchisee be unable to equitably resolve the customer’s complaint within seven days after the
initial contact, Franchisee shall contact Franchisor for assistance in handling the complaint. In no event
shall Franchisor’s assistance be construed to make Franchisor liable to Franchisee or to Franchisee’s
customer in connection with such complaint since Franchisee is solely responsible for satisfactorily
resolving all warranty claims or customer disputes. Should Franchisee fail to do so, Franchisee is
responsible for reimbursing Franchisor or any franchisee who does so for the reasonable cost of such
services. Franchisor may contact Franchisee’s customers concerning the quality of services, the level of
customer satisfaction, or other aspects of the Franchised Business that Franchisor deems relevant. The
parties acknowledge and agree that these requirements are necessary to preserve the goodwill identified by
the Marks. The parties further acknowledge and agree that Franchisor neither dictates nor controls labor or
employment matters for Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee is exclusively responsible for
hiring personnel, for determining the number of jobs offered or job vacancies to be filled, for determining
and changing employee wages and benefits and work hours, and for disciplining and discharging
Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee is exclusively responsible for labor relations with Franchisee’s
employees. Franchisee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor from and against all claims,
losses, and damages arising out of or related to Franchisee’s employment practices.

L. Quality Assurance; Book & Records. To assist Franchisor in providing Franchisee with
on-going advice and assistance, and to determine whether Franchisee is complying with the terms of this
Agreement and with the specifications, standards and procedures established by Franchisor for the
operation of the Franchised Business, Franchisor or its authorized representative shall have the right, at any
time during customary business hours, upon reasonable prior notice and without any compensation to
Franchisee, to (1) examine and copy the books, records and tax returns of the Franchised Business; (2)
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inspect the premises of the Franchised Business and all equipment, tools, service vehicles, inventory,
operating materials and supplies; (3) observe, photograph and/or videotape the operation of the Franchised
Business for such consecutive or intermittent periods as Franchisor deems necessary or advisable; (4)
remove samples of any products for testing and analysis; (5) interview personnel of the Franchised
Business; (6) interview customers of the Franchised Business; (7) remove copies of any forms or marketing
materials; and (8) inspect the records of any Competitive Business. Franchisee shall cooperate with
Franchisor in connection with any such inspections, observations, photographing, videotaping, product
removal and/or interviews and, if requested by Franchisor, Franchisee shall deliver evaluation forms
prepared by Franchisor to customers of the Franchise. Franchisee further agrees to participate in any surveys
or studies performed by Franchisor or its designee and that results or data derived from same are the
property of Franchisor and may be used by Franchisor for such purposes as Franchisor elects.

M. Audit. From time to time, during normal business hours, Franchisor shall have the right
to examine and copy, at Franchisor’s expense, or to otherwise conduct an audit of the Franchised Business
and Franchisee’s business records for the purposes of determining Franchisee’s compliance with this
Agreement. If the results of Franchisor’s audit show that Franchisee has underreported Gross Sales in any
Report submitted to Franchisor, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor the amount due on such understated
amount (or the amount which Franchisor estimates is due on the understated amount) upon demand, plus
interest from the date such amount was due until paid at the highest rate allowed by law. In addition, if
Franchisee has understated Gross Sales by 3% or more, Franchisee shall reimburse Franchisor for its
reasonable costs and expenses of such audit, including but not limited to, travel expenses, lodging, the
regular wages of any of Franchisor’s employees who may conduct such audit, accounting and legal fees
and any other ordinary and necessary expenses. The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to any other
remedies Franchisor may have.

N. Payments to Suppliers. In addition to all payments to Franchisor provided for in this
Agreement, Franchisee shall promptly pay all undisputed amounts due to suppliers of goods and services
supplied to Franchisee.

0. Prohibition Against Encumbrance. Without Franchisor’s prior written consent,
Franchisee shall not grant any security interest in this Agreement nor shall any ownership interest in any
corporate Franchisee or the Franchised Business be pledged or encumbered. If Franchisor consents to the
grant of a security interest, the secured party must agree that in the event of Franchisee’s default, Franchisor
shall be notified of the default and shall have the right but not the obligation to be substituted as an obligor
to the secured party. In no event shall this requirement be construed to make Franchisor liable to Franchisee
or to the secured party.

P. Proprietary and Private Label Products and Supplies. Franchisee shall purchase from
Franchisor, its affiliate, or designated suppliers certain proprietary products which now comprise, or in the
future may comprise, a part of Franchisor’s System. Franchisor may also establish products identified by
Franchisor’s Marks, whether proprietary products or otherwise (“Private Label Products”). If Franchisor is
the designated supplier of such proprietary products and/or Private Label Products, it will sell the products
to Franchisee at the price specified by Franchisor from time to time, and Franchisee shall offer and sell such
proprietary products and Private Label Products at or through the Franchised Business as specifically
designated by Franchisor in writing.

Q. Products, Services and Designated and Approved Suppliers. Franchisee will offer all,
and only such, products and services as have been expressly approved by Franchisor in writing and will
refrain from or discontinue offering any products or services which Franchisor may, in its sole discretion,
disapprove in writing at any time. Franchisor may add, eliminate and change authorized products and/or
services, in its sole discretion, and Franchisee must comply with all directives (which may require
purchasing and installing additional equipment).
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Franchisee shall purchase from Franchisor, its affiliates, or suppliers designated by Franchisor all
services, products, or materials that Franchisor identifies from time to time. Franchisor may also provide
Franchisee with a list of approved suppliers from whom Franchisee may purchase certain services, products,
or materials, which may include Franchisor and its affiliates. Franchisor will periodically advise Franchisee,
in writing, of designated and/or approved suppliers. Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Franchisee shall acquire telephone service from Franchisor’s designated service provider (to the
extent such restriction permitted by applicable law), and Franchisee shall enter into the form of service
contract and agreement designated by such service provider.

All products, supplies, services and equipment used by Franchisee in the Franchised Business shall
be of such quality as required by Franchisor to assure uniform standards. Specified products, services,
inventory, supplies, uniforms, tools, chemicals, equipment and other services or materials used in the
operation of the Franchised Business shall be contracted for or purchased from suppliers whose services,
products and workmanship demonstrate to Franchisor’s continuing reasonable satisfaction, the ability to
meet Franchisor’s specifications and standards of quality and uniformity. Franchisee may propose an
unapproved supplier for Franchisor’s consideration and approval, however, before Franchisor provides its
consent or disapproval for Franchisee’s use of the proposed supplier, Franchisor may conduct any
verification and testing it deems advisable. Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold its approval of any
alternate supplier, and Franchisor will use its reasonable efforts to respond to Franchisee’s request for
approval within 30 business days from Franchisor’s receipt of Franchisee’s notice. Franchisor may require
that samples from alternate suppliers be delivered to Franchisor or to a designated independent testing
laboratory for testing before approval is given. A charge to cover the actual cost of the test and any related
cost/expense may be made by Franchisor or by an independent testing laboratory designated by Franchisor
and shall be paid by Franchisee to Franchisor or the independent testing laboratory upon demand.
Franchisor reserves the right to revoke its approval upon the supplier’s failure to meet Franchisor’s criteria.
Franchisor makes no representation concerning, and expressly disclaims any liability arising out of
or in connection with, the services rendered or products furnished by any supplier approved or
designated by Franchisor. Franchisor’s approval or consent to any services, goods, suppliers, or any
other individual, entity or any item shall not create any liability to Franchisor.

R. Products, Services and Equipment Developed by Franchisee. If Franchisee, its
employees, or Principals adopt any new concept, process, product, or improvement relating to the
franchised business, Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor and provide franchisor with all necessary
related information, as Franchisor determines in its sole discretion. Any such concept, process, product, or
improvement shall become Franchisor’s sole property, and Franchisor shall be the sole owner of all patents,
patent applications, trademark, trademark applications, copyright, copyright applications, and other
intellectual property rights related thereto. Franchisee and its Principals hereby assign to Franchisor any
rights they may have or acquire therein, including the right to modify such concept, process, product, or
improvement and otherwise waive and/or release all rights of restraint and moral rights therein and thereto.
Franchisee and its Principals agree to assist Franchisor in obtaining and enforcing the intellectual property
rights to any such concept, process, product, or improvement in any and all countries and further agree to
execute and provide Franchisor with all necessary documentation for obtaining and enforcing such rights.
Franchisee and its Principals hereby irrevocably designate and appoint Franchisor as their agent and
attorney-in-fact to execute and file any such documentation and to do all other lawful acts to further the
prosecution of patents or other intellectual property right related to any such concept, process, or
improvement. In the event that the foregoing provisions of this Section are found to be invalid or otherwise
unenforceable, Franchisee and its Principals hereby grant Franchisor a worldwide, perpetual, non-
exclusive, fully-paid license to use and sublicense the use of the concept, process, product or improvement
to the extent such use or sublicense would, absent this Agreement, directly or indirectly infringe
Franchisee’s rights therein.
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S. Franchise Location. Franchisee must at all times operate from business premises that meet
Franchisor’s standards and specifications. No later than the one-year anniversary of the Execution Date of
this Agreement, Franchisee must begin operating the Franchised Business from the Franchise Location in
accordance with this Agreement. The Franchise Location must meet all Franchisor’s requirements,
including then-current site selection criteria and any additional requirements for a retail design center, then
applicable. At Franchisor’s request, Franchisee must utilize the services of Franchisor’s designated tenant
representative to provide site selection assistance. Although Franchisor or its tenant representative may
propose sites for the Franchise Location, ultimate site selection is solely Franchisee’s responsibility. Once
the Franchised Location is identified, Franchisee must operate the Franchise from the Franchise Location
in accordance with this Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that Franchisee’s approval of
the Franchise Location is not an assurance that the Franchised Business will achieve certain revenue
or profit levels.

T. Pricing. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, Franchisor reserves the right to
establish maximum, minimum, or other pricing requirements with respect to the prices Franchisee may
advertise, offer, and charge for products and services, and Franchisee shall abide by such pricing
requirements. Franchisor may impose such restrictions periodically through the term of this Agreement and
is in no way required to uniformly apply pricing requirements (which may include a specific geographic
area, certain specific products or services, a subset of system franchisees, or other defined categories
established in Franchisor’s sole discretion). Franchisee hereby waives any and all claims arising from or
related to Franchisor’s prescription or suggestion of the Franchised Business’s retail prices.

U. Social Media and Internet Listings. Franchisee shall follow Franchisor’s mandatory
specifications, standards, operating procedures, and rules for using Social Media in connection with the
operation of the Franchised Business and Franchisee shall comply with any Social Media policy Franchisor
implements. Franchisor shall own all Social Media accounts used in operation of the Franchised Business
and shall allow Franchisee’s access and use only in strict compliance with Franchisor’s rules. Franchisor
reserves its right to remove Franchisee’s access to Social Media accounts at any time at its sole discretion.
Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Franchisee’s access to all Social Media accounts will
terminate. The term “Social Media” includes, without limitation, personal blogs; common social networks
such as FACEBOOK, SNAPCHAT, INSTAGRAM, LINKEDIN, THREADS, YOUTUBE, or X (formerly
known as Twitter); internet listing sites such as WIKIPEDIA, GOOGLE, FOURSQUARE, and YELP;
applications supported by mobile platforms such as iOS and Android; virtual worlds; file, audio, and video-
sharing sites; and other similar internet, social networking, or media sites, mobile platforms, or tools.

V. Public Relations. Franchisee shall not make any public statements (including giving
interviews or issuing press releases) regarding the Franchised Business or any particular incident or
occurrence related to the Franchised Business, without the Franchisor’s prior written approval, unless
expressly specified in the Manuals.

W. Association with Causes. Franchisee shall not in the name of the Franchised Business: (1)
donate money, products, or services to any charitable, political, religious or other organization, or (2) act in
support of any such organization, without the Franchisor’s prior written approval.

X. Technology Risk. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that technology is constantly
changing. Technologic devices and computer systems are always being updated, improved, replaced, and
discontinued. Consequently, computer systems are sometimes incompatible and are susceptible to Internet,
computer system, and communication failures. By entering into this Agreement, Franchisee assumes all of
the risk of all such issues and technology failures, which it acknowledges may affect its ability to order or
receive products or to conduct business, and Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor is not responsible
for any damages caused by such issues or technology failures, including lost sales or profits.
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6. FRANCHISE LOCATION

A. Selection of Franchise Location. Franchisee is solely responsible for selecting the
Franchise Location and obtaining the written consent of Franchisor. Franchisor is not responsible for
selecting or obtaining the Franchise Location. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Franchisor makes no
representations or guarantees that a specific location can be obtained, nor does Franchisor guarantee the
success of a particular Franchise Location. Final responsibility for selection of the Franchise Location will
always remain with Franchisee.

B. Construction of Franchise Location. Once the Franchise Location has been selected,
Franchisee shall completely construct and equip, at Franchisee’s expense, the Franchise Location in
accordance with Franchisor’s standards and specifications as outlined in the Manuals or otherwise in
writing. Before commencing construction, Franchisee shall comply with all of the following requirements,
to Franchisor’s satisfaction, at Franchisee’s expense:

1. Franchisee shall be responsible for obtaining all zoning classifications and clearances
which may be required by state or local laws, ordinances, or regulations. Franchisee shall obtain all permits
and certifications, including but not limited to architectural and engineering seals, required for the lawful
construction and operation of the approved Franchise Location, and, if requested by Franchisor, shall certify
in writing to Franchisor that all such permits and certifications have been obtained.

2. Franchisee shall employ a qualified licensed general contractor and/or architect to (a)
prepare, if required, preliminary and final plans and specifications, including mechanical, engineering and
plumbing (“MEP”) plans for construction; and (b) construct the Franchise Location and complete all
improvements. Franchisee must obtain Franchisors written approval of such plans for Franchisee’s
Franchise Location in advance and if such approval is not obtained Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor,
which payment Franchisor may elect to collect via automatic bank draft, a $5,000 construction design
review fee for review of such plans and the then current travel fee (currently $3,000) for travel associated
with such review. Franchisee shall obtain and maintain in force, during the entire period of construction,
Builders’ All Risks insurance in amounts, and written by carriers, satisfactory to Franchisor. Franchisor
assumes no liability for the contractor chosen by Franchisee or the actual construction of the Franchise
Location.

3. Franchisee shall provide to Franchisor such periodic progress reports during construction
as Franchisor may require. Franchisor and its agents shall have the right to inspect the construction at all
reasonable times. After final designs and/or plans have been approved, Franchisee shall complete
construction, including all exterior and interior carpentry, electrical, painting, and finishing work, and
installation of all furnishings, fixtures, equipment, and signs in accordance with the approved final plans
within 12 months of the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement (exclusive of time lost by reason of
strikes, lockouts, fire, and Acts of God).

4. Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor of the date of completion.

C. Use of Franchise Location. Franchisee shall use the Franchise Location solely for the
operation of the Franchise and any Competitive Business identified on Exhibit B-1; shall keep the Franchise
Location open and in normal operation for such minimum hours and days as Franchisor may specify in the
Manuals or otherwise in writing (or as may be required by the lease), which includes restrictions regarding
operations on, or publishing operating hours for, Sundays; and shall refrain from using or permitting the
use of the Franchise Location for any other purpose or activity at any time without first obtaining the written
consent of Franchisor.

D. Maintenance of Franchise Location. Franchisee must maintain the Franchise Location
(including adjacent public areas) in orderly condition, and in good repair. Franchisee must make such
additions, alterations, repairs, and replacements as may be required for that purpose, including, without
limitation, such periodic repainting or replacement of obsolete signs, furnishings, equipment, displays,
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fixtures and decor as Franchisor may reasonably direct from time to time. For any material alterations,
Franchisee must first obtain Franchisor’s prior written consent. Franchisee must purchase and install, at
Franchisee’s sole expense, all fixtures, furnishings, equipment, displays, decor and signs as Franchisor may
reasonably direct from time to time. Franchisee must refrain from installing or permitting to be installed on
or about the Franchise Location, without Franchisor’s prior written consent, any fixture, furnishings,
equipment, displays, signs, or other items not approved as meeting Franchisor’s specifications.

E. Remodel of Franchise Location. Franchisee may be required to remodel the Franchise
Location upon lease renewal, or as otherwise required by Franchisee’s lease or at such time as Franchisor
requires. All remodel plans and the architectural and construction firm, if any, must first be approved by
Franchisor, and may include, without limitation, structural changes, redecoration, design and color scheme
changes, and modification to existing improvements. Franchisor will use its best efforts to work with
Franchisee’s landlord concerning remodeling requirements.

F. Lease. Franchisee shall comply with its lease and all other agreements affecting the
operation of the Franchise. Franchisee shall undertake its best efforts to maintain a positive working
relationship with its landlord, and shall refrain from any activity which may jeopardize Franchisee’s right
to remain in possession of, or to renew the lease for, the Franchise Location.

G. Relocation. Franchisee may relocate the Franchise to a new location within the Territory
provided Franchisee complies with the following terms and conditions:

1. Franchisee is not in default of any provision of this Agreement, any other agreement with
Franchisor or the lease for the former Franchise Location;

2. Franchisee is current on Franchisee’s financial obligations to Franchisor, Franchisor’s
affiliates and all third-party creditors of the Franchise;

3. Franchisee delivers to Franchisor a current financial statement and a profit and loss
statement for the Franchise’s last 12 months of operation;

4. the new Franchise Location has been approved by Franchisor; and

5. the Franchise officially opens for business at the new location on the same day the
Franchise officially closes at the former Franchise Location, which time period Franchisor may extend for
an additional period of time for good cause.

H. Design Center. Within five months from the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement,
Franchisee shall have acquired space (by purchase or lease) to accommodate the retail design center, which
meets Franchisor’s minimum criteria and which Franchisor has approved. No later than 12 months
following the Effective Date of this Agreement, Franchisee shall have completed construction on the retail
design center portion of the space. Before Franchisee opens a retail design center, Franchisor will provide
Franchisee with designs and specifications for a typical retail design center location, including equipment,
fixtures and signs, upon Franchisor’s receipt of Franchisee’s written request. These designs must be
modified at Franchisee’s expense by Franchisor’s designated designer to fit Franchisee’s particular retail
location in accordance with Franchisor’s then-current standards. If Franchisee does not obtain Franchisor’s
written approval of the design for Franchisee’s specific design center in advance, Franchisor may charge
Franchisee a $5,000 fee and an additional travel fee at Franchisor’s then current rate, which is currently
$3,000, for review of Franchisee’s design. If modifications are required as a result of that review, Franchisee
is responsible for making those modifications within 90 days of receiving notification of the required
changes. Franchisee is additionally responsible for compliance with local ordinances, building codes and
permits and must construct and equip the retail design center according to Franchisor’s standards and
specifications outlined in the Manuals.
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7. TRADEMARKS, COPYRIGHTED WORKS AND SYSTEM

A. Franchisor’s Ownership. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that the Marks and
Copyrighted Works are valid and entitled to protection under applicable trademark and copyright laws and
the Marks and the Copyrighted Works are the exclusive property of Franchisor. The parties agree that
nothing in this Agreement grants Franchisee any ownership or other interest in or to the Marks, the goodwill
symbolized by the Marks, or Copyrighted Works, other than a license to use them pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement. The parties agree that any goodwill arising from Franchisee’s use of the Marks inures
solely to Franchisor’s benefit. Franchisee shall not contest Franchisor’s ownership or validity of the Marks,
or its ownership of the Copyrighted Works, and shall neither do nor permit to be done anything in
derogation of Franchisor’s rights therein.

B. Modification. If Franchisor, in its sole discretion, decides to modify or discontinue the use
of any Mark or Copyrighted Work and/or to adopt or use one or more additional or substituted Marks or
Copyrighted Works, whether in one market or region or systemwide, Franchisee shall, at its sole expense,
promptly conform its use as directed. Franchisee waives any claims arising from or relating to any such
change, modification or substitution.

C. Franchisee’s Use. Franchisee shall use only the authorized trade name DREAMMAKER
BATH & KITCHEN in all advertising and public presentations, including but not limited to business cards,
letterheads and invoices. Franchisee may not use the Marks or Copyrighted Works or association therewith
for the benefit of any business other than the Franchised Business. Franchisee acknowledges that
Franchisor’s prior written consent is required for the use of any of the Marks or Copyrighted Works, except
as granted herein. Franchisee shall permit Franchisor to conduct reasonable inspections of the Franchised
Business to monitor Franchisee’s use of the Marks and Franchisee shall supply Franchisor with specimens
of all uses of the Marks upon Franchisor’s request. Franchisee shall use the Marks and/or any trademark,
service mark, trade name or combinations containing the same adopted by Franchisor strictly in accordance
with this Agreement and/or other written instructions received from Franchisor, from time to time,
including the form and manner and appropriate legends as may be prescribed from time to time. Franchisee
shall not use any other trademark, service mark or trade name in combination with any of the Marks without
Franchisor’s prior written consent. Franchisee shall not use the Marks of Franchisor in advertising or any
other form of promotion without the appropriate copyright, trademark or service mark designation. All
promotional materials or other items which bear the Marks shall be in the form, color, location and manner
prescribed by Franchisor. Franchisee shall not include any of the Marks in the name of any legal entity. If
a trade name or fictitious name filing with any state, county or other local authority is required, Franchisee
shall register the Franchised Business as “DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN of (geographical
designation)”.

Franchisee shall not use any of the Marks or any part or derivative thereof or any of the Copyrighted
Works online or in digital format, unless expressly as permitted in writing. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, Franchisee may not cause or allow all or any recognizable portion of the Marks, or terms
that may suggest an affiliation with Franchisor for use or display as all or part of an e-mail address, Internet
domain name, uniform resource locator (“URL”), hypertext reference (“HREF”), or meta-tag, or in
connection with any Internet home page, web site, or any other Internet-related activity without
Franchisor’s express written consent, and then only in a manner and in accordance with the procedures,
standards, and specifications that Franchisor establishes. This prohibition also includes the use or
registration of the Marks, or any derivative of the Marks, as a part of any user name, account name, or in
any other way that may suggest an affiliation with Franchisor or the franchise system, on any gaming,
blogging, user review, video sharing, or social networking website (such as FACEBOOK, INSTAGRAM,
or X (formerly known as Twitter)), whether or not such social media platform is used for commercial gain,
or as a part of any unauthorized email address. Franchisee also may not display on any website (including
commercial, gaming, blogging, user review, video sharing, and social networking websites) Franchisor’s
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Copyrighted Works, which include, but are in no way limited to, the design portion of its Marks and
collateral merchandise identified by the Marks.

D. Legal Protection. If Franchisee learns of any claim, suit or demand against Franchisee
based on Franchisee’s use of the Marks or Copyrighted Works, or if Franchisee becomes aware of any
infringement or misuse of the Marks or Copyrighted Works, Franchisee shall promptly notify Franchisor,
in writing. Franchisor may, but is not obligated to, take such action, if any, as Franchisor, in its sole
discretion, deems necessary or appropriate. Franchisor shall have the sole right to defend, compromise or
settle any such claim at Franchisor’s sole cost and expense, using attorneys of its own choosing. Franchisee
shall cooperate fully with Franchisor in connection with the defense of any such claim and hereby
irrevocably appoints Franchisor as its agent to defend or settle all of such claims, demands or suits.
Franchisee may participate at its own expense in such defense or settlement, but Franchisor’s decisions
shall be final and binding upon Franchisee. Franchisee shall not settle or compromise any such claim
without the prior written consent of Franchisor. Franchisor agrees to indemnify and hold Franchisee
harmless against any claim or demand arising from Franchisee’s authorized use of the Marks and
Copyrighted Works provided Franchisee has notified Franchisor of any claim or demand as required by this
Section.

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

A. This Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between Franchisee and
Franchisor. Franchisee is an independent contractor, and nothing in this Agreement is intended to constitute
either party an agent, legal representative, subsidiary, joint venturer, partner, employee, or servant of the
other for any purpose whatsoever. Franchisee is not authorized to incur any debt or other obligation in
Franchisor’s name nor to make any contract or agreement on Franchisor’s behalf.

B. During the term of this Agreement and any extension hereof, Franchisee shall hold itself
out to the public as an independent contractor operating the Franchised Business pursuant to a franchise
agreement with Franchisor. Franchisee shall conspicuously post notices to that effect in such locations and
by such means determined reasonably necessary by Franchisor to inform the public, customers, suppliers
and other third parties. Franchisor specifically reserves the right to specify the content of such notices as
well as where the notices shall be posted.

9. INDEMNIFICATION

A. Franchisee shall be fully responsible for any damage, loss or other claims arising out of its
operations hereunder, whether conducted by Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees, subcontractors, agents
or representatives. Franchisee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Franchisor and its affiliates and
their respective governing persons, agents, and employees, and all other franchisees of Franchisor, against
all fines, proceedings, claims, demands, debts, obligations, liabilities, judgments, damages or actions of any
kind or nature arising out of or related to (a) any act or omission by Franchisee or any of Franchisee’s
employees, subcontractors, agents or representatives, and (b) any claim that Franchisor is the employer, or
is a joint employer with Franchisee, of any of Franchisee’s employees. Franchisee’s indemnification applies
regardless of any fault on Franchisor’s part. This provision survives termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

B. Franchisor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Franchisee and its governing
persons, agents and employees against all fines, proceedings, claims, demands, debts, obligations,
liabilities, judgments, damages or actions of any kind or nature arising out of or related to Franchisee’s use
of the Marks in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. This provision survives termination or
expiration of this Agreement.
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10. CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND NONCOMPETITION

A. Manuals. Franchisor shall loan Franchisee one copy of Franchisor’s confidential manuals
(the “Manuals™) containing mandatory and suggested standards, specifications, operating procedures,
policies, rules and guidelines prescribed by Franchisor. Franchisee acknowledges that all Manuals are
confidential and Franchisee does not acquire any right, title or interest in the Manuals. The Manuals, and
the information contained in them, shall remain the property of Franchisor. Franchisee shall, at all times,
treat the Manuals and the information contained therein as confidential and shall use all reasonable efforts
to maintain such information as secret and confidential. Franchisee acknowledges that the Manuals are
confidential and will not at any time contest the confidentiality of the information in them or Franchisor’s
sole ownership of the Manuals or Franchisor’s ownership of the information contained in the Manuals.
Franchisee shall not, at any time, duplicate, copy, record or otherwise reproduce the Manuals, in whole or
in part, nor otherwise make the Manuals available to any unauthorized person. Franchisee shall conduct the
operation of the Franchised Business in accordance with the systems, procedures, policies, methods and
requirements contained in the Manuals. Franchisor may make additions to, deletions from or revisions of
the Manuals as Franchisor deems necessary, and such additions, deletions and modifications shall become
part of the Manuals and shall be binding upon Franchisee immediately after Franchisee’s actual or deemed
receipt of such additions, deletions or modifications; provided, however, that such additions to, deletions
from or revisions of the Manuals shall not alter Franchisee’s status and rights under this Agreement.
Franchisee shall, at all times, ensure that its copy of the Manuals is current and up to date. In the event of
any dispute as to Franchisee’s compliance with the provisions of the Manuals, the Manuals maintained by
Franchisor at Franchisor’s home office shall be controlling. Upon the expiration or other termination of this
Agreement for any reason, Franchisee shall return all Manuals.

B. Confidential Information; Customer Information. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees
Franchisor owns all Confidential Information associated with the System. During the term of this
Agreement or any time thereafter, Franchisee shall not (except as otherwise contemplated by this
Agreement) communicate, divulge or use for itself or for the benefit of any other person or entity any
Confidential Information concerning the System. For avoidance of doubt, “Confidential Information”
includes, without limitation, all information concerning customers of the Franchised Business (including
customer lists, customer personal identifying information, and information concerning services performed
for and prices charged to the customer), all of which is exclusively owned by Franchisor. Franchisee shall
divulge such Confidential Information only to those of Franchisee’s employees who must have access to it
in order to participate in the operation of the Franchised Business. When an employee’s employment with
Franchisee is terminated or otherwise comes to an end, Franchisee shall collect all Manuals and other
materials containing Confidential Information that is in the employee’s possession. When Franchisor
directs, Franchisee shall also cause its employees and, if Franchisee is a corporation or other legal entity,
its owners and governing persons, to sign an agreement to safeguard the Confidential Information, which
agreement must be in form approved in writing, in advance by Franchisor.

C. In-Term_and Post-Term Covenants. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that, as
between Franchisee and Franchisor, all goodwill symbolized by the Proprietary Marks belongs exclusively
to Franchisor. Franchisee further acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor has a legitimate business interest
in protecting its Proprietary Marks, its proprietary business format and system, and the integrity of its
franchise network and the free exchange of ideas and information among its franchisees. Recognizing that
all goodwill associated with the Franchised Business constitutes commercial goodwill, and not personal
goodwill, and further recognizing that Franchisor would be unable to protect its trade secrets against
unauthorized use or disclosure and would be unable to encourage a free exchange of ideas and information
among its franchisees if its franchisees were permitted to hold interests in any Competitive Business and
acknowledging that, pursuant to this Agreement, Franchisee will receive valuable specialized training and
Confidential Information, including, without limitation, information concerning the operational and
marketing methods and techniques of Franchisor and Franchisor’s System, Franchisee therefore covenants
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and agrees that, except for any interest which Franchisee has in a Competitive Business identified on Exhibit
B-1 hereof, to which Franchisor consents, Franchisee shall not, directly or indirectly, as a proprietor,
partner, investor, shareholder, member, director, officer, employer, employee, principal, agent, adviser,
franchisor, franchisee or in any other individual or representative capacity or otherwise:

1. during the term of this Agreement and any extensions thereof:

(a) engage in or participate in or derive any benefit from a Competitive Business without
Franchisor’s prior written consent. If Franchisor grants permission for Franchisee to engage in the operation
of a Competitive Business other than as set forth above, Franchisee shall pay Franchisor a Royalty Fee in
accordance with this Agreement in addition to any other sums owed to Franchisor unless specifically
waived in writing by Franchisor;

(b) employ, seek to employ or otherwise induce any person who is employed by Franchisor or
any other franchisee to leave his employment;

(©) interfere or attempt to interfere with any of the business relationships and/or advantages of
Franchisor or any other franchisee;

(d) use any Confidential Information whatsoever in any manner which is or is intended to be
damaging or derogatory or hinder the relationship of Franchisor with its other franchisees, customers,
suppliers or other third parties, or the relationship of any other franchisee with its customers or suppliers;
or

(e) divert, attempt to divert, solicit, or endeavor to obtain any customer, account or business
from Franchisor or any other franchisee.

2. for a period of two years immediately following the later of the expiration, termination or
non-renewal of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever or the date on which Franchisee actually ceases
operation of the business:

(a) engage in or participate in or derive any benefit from a Competitive Business (other than
as set forth above) in the Territory without Franchisor’s prior written consent. If Franchisor grants
permission for Franchisee to engage in the operation of a Competitive Business in the Territory, Franchisee
shall pay Franchisor a Royalty Fee in accordance with this Agreement in addition to any other sums due
and owing to Franchisor;

(b) employ, seek to employ or otherwise induce any person who is employed by Franchisor or
any other franchisee to leave his employment;

(©) interfere or attempt to interfere with any of the business relationships and/or advantages of
Franchisor or any other franchisee;

(d) use any Confidential Information whatsoever in any manner which is or is intended to be
damaging or derogatory or hinder the relationship of Franchisor with its other franchisees, customers,
suppliers or other third parties, or the relationship of any other franchisee with its customers or suppliers;
or

(e) divert or attempt to divert any customer or business from Franchisor or any other franchisee
or solicit or endeavor to obtain the business of any person who shall have been a customer of Franchisee’s
Franchised Business.

3. Franchisor has right, in its sole discretion, to reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in
Sections 10.C.1 and 10.C.2, or any portion thereof, without Franchisee’s consent, which reduction will
become effective immediately upon delivery of written notice to Franchisee. Franchisee shall comply
forthwith with any covenant as so modified. The Parties expressly agree that the existence of any claims
Franchisee may have against Franchisor, whether or not arising from this Agreement, shall not constitute a
defense to Franchisor’s enforcement of the covenants in this Section 10.C.
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4, Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, a violation of Section
10.C.2 would result in irreparable injury to Franchisor for which no adequate remedy at law may be
available. Specifically, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, a violation of Section 10.C.2
will (a) enable Franchisee to capitalize on customer relationships that were built during the franchise term,
(b) cause customer confusion, (¢) enable Franchisee to use information learned during the franchise
relationship to unfairly compete with franchisees who are operating under a valid franchise agreement with
Franchise, and (d) materially and adversely affect Franchisor’s ability to refranchise Franchisee’s former
Territory.

5. The time period described in Section 10.C.2 shall be tolled during any period of
noncompliance.
D. Liquidated Damages. If Franchisor establishes that Franchisee has violated the material

terms of this Section 10, Franchisor may, as an alternative remedy to seeking equitable relief, require that
franchisee pay to Franchisor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the amounts set forth in this
Section. For each instance of Franchisee’s breach of the confidentiality covenant, or for Franchisee’s breach
of the covenants against competition contained, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a lump sum equal to 104
times the sum of largest weekly Royalty Fee and largest weekly Map Fee paid by Franchisee to Franchisor
during the term of this Agreement. For purposes of this Section, if Franchisee has failed and/or refused to
report Gross Sales, the parties agree that Franchisor may estimate reasonable Royalty Fee and MAP Fee
amounts and Franchisee shall be bound by Franchisor’s estimate. Payment of such sum by Franchisee shall
be due immediately upon demand. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that the liquidated damages amount
established in this Section is reasonable.

E. Independent Covenants. Each of the foregoing covenants shall be construed as
independent of any other covenant or provision of this Agreement. If all or any portion of a covenant is
held unreasonable or unenforceable by a court having valid jurisdiction in an unappealed final decision to
which Franchisor is a party, Franchisee shall be bound by a lesser covenant subsumed within the terms of
such covenant that imposes the maximum duty permitted by law, as if the resulting covenant were
separately stated in and made a part hereof.

11. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER

A. Assignment by Franchisor. Franchisor may assign this Agreement and all or any portion
of its rights and privileges and/or duties hereunder to any other person or legal entity; provided, however,
that in respect to any assignment resulting in the subsequent performance by the assignee of the functions
of Franchisor, the assignee shall, at the time of such assignment be economically capable, in Franchisor’s
reasonable judgment, of performing the obligations of Franchisor hereunder and expressly assume and
agree to perform such obligations.

B. Assignment by Franchisee. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor is
entering into this Agreement in reliance upon and in consideration of Franchisee’s and Franchisee’s
Operating Principal’s business skills, financial capacity and other qualifications. Accordingly, any of the
following types of “Transfer” require Franchisor’s prior written consent: (i) a transfer of any interest in this
Agreement, (ii) the transfer or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchised Business; (iii)
the transfer or assignment of any equity interest in Franchisee, , including but not limited to the offering of
an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). Any actual or intended Transfer made in violation of the
terms of this Section shall be null and void and shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement,
constituting good cause for termination of this Agreement. Franchisor shall not unreasonably withhold its
consent, but may condition its consent on satisfaction of any or all of the following “Transfer Conditions”:

1. the assignee must demonstrate the necessary skills, qualifications and economic resources
necessary, in Franchisor’s reasonable judgment, to operate the Franchised Business and to fulfill the
obligations to Franchisee and Franchisor. If the assignee is a business entity, the assignee must in no part
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be owned through an ESOP or offer an ESOP, and the assignee must in no part be owned by a private equity
firm or fund;

2. the assignee must expressly assume in writing all of the obligations of Franchisee under
this Agreement, or at the option of Franchisor, the assignee shall execute a separate franchise agreement in
the form and on the terms and conditions then being offered by Franchisor to prospective franchisees
similarly situated, except that the assignee shall not be obligated to pay a Franchise Fee to Franchisor. In
any case, no discounts, including reduced fees for roll-ins, or other terms of this Agreement or any other
existing Agreement with Franchisee will transfer to assignee unless Franchisor agrees to those terms in
writing. The execution of a new franchise agreement by an approved assignee shall be deemed to terminate
this Agreement, except for the contractual obligations of Franchisee which by their very nature specifically
survive the termination of this Agreement;

3. If the assignee is a business entity, then each person with a beneficial interest in the
assignee shall sign Franchisor’s standard form of Undertaking and Guaranty;

4. as of the date of an assignment, Franchisee shall have fully complied with all of its
obligations to Franchisor and any parent or affiliate of Franchisor, whether under this Agreement or any
other agreement or understanding with such parties, including all payment obligations;

5. If the Transfer involves a sale of the Franchised Business or a change of control of
Franchisee, (a) Franchisee shall have furnished to Franchisor, prior to its execution, a copy of the contract
conveying the interest, (b) the contract must provide for the assignee’s agreement to timely fulfill all
customer obligations of Franchisee, including all warranty work and service plans, and (c) Franchisor has
determined, in its sole and reasonable discretion, that the terms of the transaction will not materially and
adversely affect the post transfer viability of the Franchised Business;

6. Franchisee and all guarantors shall have executed a general release, in a form satisfactory
to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their
respective officers, directors, sharcholders, employees, successors and assigns, in their corporate and
individual capacities, including, without limitation, claims arising under federal, state and local laws, rules
and ordinances;

7. Except with respect to a Transfer described in Section 11.C. and 11. D. below, a transfer
fee in the amount stated in the Summary Page shall be paid to Franchisor. Franchisee hereby acknowledges
that such sum is reasonably required to reimburse Franchisor for its expenses relating to said assignment;

8. the assignee shall have satisfactorily completed the training then required of all new
franchisees of Franchisor, unless such training is waived by Franchisor in writing by reason of the
assignee’s prior experience or training, and a training fee of $5,000 shall be paid to Franchisor, which sum
Franchisee acknowledges is reasonably required to reimburse Franchisor for its expenses relating to such
training;

9. Franchisor may hold up to 10% of the sales price in escrow for a period of one year from
the date of the sale or assignment or transfer for the purpose of covering any warranty claims by
Franchisee’s customers. The exact percentage to be held in escrow will be determined by the number of
projects completed by Franchisee in the one year period preceding the sale or assignment or transfer. If
there are warranty claims, the escrowed funds shall be charged at Franchisor’s then-current hourly service
rate (minimum of $80 per hour), the cost of materials and supplies, plus a handling fee equal to 10% of the
cost of materials and supplies, plus a $200 administrative handling fee for each claim. At the end of the one
year period, Franchisor will release the remaining escrowed funds to Franchisee. If there are no claims,
Franchisor shall deliver the escrowed funds minus a handling fee of $250 to help defray Franchisor’s
expenses of administration and other costs; and

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
Franchise Agreement | 2025 28



10. Except with respect to transfers of an individual Franchisee’s interest in this Agreement to
a corporation or legal entity formed or controlled by Franchisee, any Transfer shall be subject to
Franchisor’s right of first refusal, as follows:

(a) Within 30 days following the receipt by Franchisor of written notice from Franchisee (or,
if Franchisor requests additional information, within 30 days following receipt of such information),
Franchisor shall either (i) consent to the proposed Transfer; (ii) withhold its consent in accordance with the
provisions of this Section; or (iii) exercise its right of first refusal by purchasing the interest on the same
terms and conditions offered by the third party. If the bona fide offer provides for the exchange of assets
other than cash or cash equivalents, the bona fide offer shall include the fair market value of the assets and
you shall submit with the notice an appraisal prepared by a qualified independent third party evidencing the
fair market value of such assets as of the date of the offer. Any material change in the terms of any offer
prior to closing shall constitute a new offer subject to the same right of first refusal by Franchisor as in the
case of an initial offer. If Franchisor elects to purchase the seller’s interest, closing on such purchase must
occur by the later of: (a) the closing date specified in the third-party offer; or (b) within 60 days from the
date of notice to the seller of Franchisor’s election to purchase. Franchisor’s failure to exercise the option
described in this Section 10(a) shall not constitute a waiver of any of the transfer conditions set forth in this
Article 10.

(b) If Franchisor does not exercise its right of first refusal and consents to the proposed
Transfer, Franchisee shall be free to assign the interest to the assignee on the terms and conditions specified
in the notice at any time within the 30-day period following Franchisor’s consent. Should the Transfer not
be completed within such 30-day period, or should the terms of the Transfer materially change from the
terms described in the notice, Franchisor shall again have the same right of first refusal as in the case of the
initial offer.

C. Transfer Due to Death or Incapacity. The transfer of Franchisee’s interest in this
Agreement in the event of the death, legal incapacity or permanent disability of Franchisee or the Operating
Principal shall require compliance with all of the Transfer Conditions; except that such Transfer shall not
require payment of a transfer fee as long as the person designated by Franchisee’s heirs or personal
representative:

1. meets Franchisor’s standards for new franchisees;

2. agrees and executes a consent to be bound by the terms and conditions of the franchise
agreement then in effect between Franchisor and Franchisee; and

3. satisfactorily completes Franchisor’s then-current training requirements within 180 days
after the death or legal incapacity or permanent disability of Franchisee or the Operating Principal, as
applicable.

D. Transfer to Franchisee’s Business Entity. If an individual Franchisee desires to assign
this Agreement to a corporation or legal entity formed or controlled by Franchisee, the transfer shall require
compliance with all of the Transfer Conditions; except that such transfer shall not require payment of a
transfer fee, provided:

1. Franchisee is, and covenants to remain, the owner of all or the majority of the voting
interests of the legal entity or, if Franchisee is more than one individual, each individual shall have the same
proportionate ownership interest in the legal entity as that individual had in the Franchised Business prior
to the transfer of the Franchised Business;

2. all formation and governing documents and supporting documentation reasonably required
by Franchisor are provided to Franchisor prior to the transfer;

3. Franchisee or another qualified individual is specifically designated “Operating Principal”
in accordance with this Agreement;
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4, Franchisee and Franchisee’s Principals personally guarantee the obligations to be
performed under this Agreement by the assignee entity;

5. Franchisee and all guarantors, if applicable, shall have executed a general release, in a form
satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates,
and their respective officers, directors, shareholders, employees, successors and assigns, in their corporate
and individual capacities, including, without limitation, claims arising under federal, state and local laws,
rules and ordinances;

6. Franchisor shall receive payment of $1,500 as a transfer fee before the transfer occurs; and

7. Franchisee shall maintain the same level of investment in the Franchised Business as
Franchisee had at the time of execution of this Agreement and/or as shown on the Financial Information
Sheet, the terms of which are incorporated herein, or pay in full all loans due to Franchisor and its affiliates.

In the event Franchisee assigns this Agreement to a corporation or legal entity formed or controlled
by Franchisee, or in which Franchisee has an interest, all obligations, including, but not limited to
obligations to obtain insurance and indemnify Franchisor, shall apply the same as if such entity had
originally signed this Agreement.

E. Non-Waiver of Claims. Franchisor’s consent to a transfer shall not constitute a waiver of
any claims it may have against the transferring party, and it will not be deemed a waiver of Franchisor’s
right to demand strict compliance with any of the terms of this Agreement, or any other agreement to which
Franchisor and the assignor or assignee are parties.

12. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

A. By Franchisor, Without Notice. Franchisee shall be deemed to be in default of this
Agreement, and Franchisor may terminate the Agreement, without affording Franchisee an opportunity to
cure the default, effective immediately upon receipt of notice by Franchisee, if:

1. Franchisee becomes insolvent or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors or
proceedings for a composition with creditors under any state or federal law should be instituted by or against
Franchisee or a petition in bankruptcy is filed by Franchisee or if such a petition is filed and not opposed
by Franchisee or Franchisee is adjudicated as bankrupt or insolvent or a bill in equity or other proceeding
for the appointment of a receiver of Franchisee or other custodian for Franchisee’s business or assets is
filed and consented to by Franchisee or a receiver or custodian of Franchisee’s assets or property, or any
part thereof, is appointed by any court;

2. a final judgment related to the Franchised Business remains unsatisfied or of record for 30
days or longer (unless a supersedeas bond is filed) or the Franchised Business is dissolved or execution is
levied against the Franchisee or suit to foreclose any lien or mortgage against the Franchised Business or
its equipment is instituted against Franchisee and not dismissed within 30 days or the real or personal
property of the Franchised Business must be sold after levy thereupon by any sheriff, marshal or constable;

3. Franchisee has made any material misrepresentations to Franchisor on the application for
the Franchised Business, or with respect to the ownership of the Franchised Business;

4, Franchisee abandons the Franchised Business or forfeits the right to transact business or
otherwise ceases to operate the Franchised Business for seven consecutive days (excluding normal
vacations and holidays) when, in Franchisor’s opinion, the ability of Franchisee to resume an effective
operation has been substantially impaired or operations are otherwise not likely to resume;

5. Franchisee is convicted of a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude, or any other crime
or offense that Franchisor believes is reasonably likely to have an adverse effect upon the Franchised
Business, the Marks, or the goodwill associated therewith;
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6. Franchisee discloses the contents of the Manuals or other Confidential Information
provided to Franchisee contrary to the terms of the Agreement;

7. Franchisee knowingly maintains false books or records, or knowingly submits a false or
fraudulent Report, statement or document to Franchisor;

8. Franchisee misuses or makes any unauthorized use of the Marks or any other identifying
characteristics of the System, or Franchisee otherwise materially impairs the goodwill associated therewith
or Franchisor’s rights therein;

9. Franchisee causes or allows to exist a threat or danger to public health or safety from
Franchisee’s maintenance and/or operation of the Franchise;

10. Franchisee fails to provide the audited financial statements as required by this Agreement,
including within the time required;

11. Franchisee defaults under a promissory note with Franchisor or its affiliate or parent,
excluding, specifically, defaults for nonpayment; or

12. Franchisee (a) fails on three or more separate occasions within any 12 consecutive month
period to submit when due reports, records or required information to Franchisor or its affiliates or
substantially comply with any one or more of the obligations of this Agreement, whether or not cured after
notice and whether such failures involve the same or different requirements of this Agreement or (b) fails
on two or more separate occasions within any six consecutive month period to comply with the same
obligation of this Agreement, whether or not cured after notice.

B. By Franchisor, With Notice. Except as otherwise specified above, Franchisee shall have
15 days after receipt of a written Notice of Default from Franchisor within which to remedy any default
under this Agreement and provide evidence thereof to Franchisor; provided, however, that Franchisee may
avoid termination by immediately initiating a remedy to cure such default and curing it to Franchisor’s
satisfaction within the 15-day period (or within such longer period as Franchisor may, at its sole option,
grant), and by promptly providing proof thereof to Franchisor. If any such default is not cured within the
specified time, or such longer period as applicable law may require, this Agreement shall terminate without
further notice to Franchisee, effective immediately upon the expiration of the 15-day period or such longer
period as applicable law may require. Franchisee shall be in default under this Agreement for failure to
comply with any of the requirements imposed by the Agreement, as it may from time to time be reasonably
supplemented by the Manuals, or fails to carry out the terms of this Agreement. Such defaults include, but
are not limited to; if Franchisee:

1. fails, refuses, or neglects to pay promptly any monies owing to Franchisor or its parent or
affiliates when due, regardless of whether such amounts are due under this Agreement, a promissory note,
or otherwise, or Franchisee fails, refuses or neglects to submit the financial or other information required
by Franchisor under this Agreement;

2. fails to comply with any of the standards, specifications or procedures prescribed by
Franchisor in this Agreement, the Manuals, or otherwise in writing;

3. attempts to assign this Agreement and/or transfer the Franchised Business (or the
controlling interest in any corporate franchisee) to a third party without the prior written consent of
Franchisor as required in the Agreement, or if an assignment of the Agreement shall occur by operation of
law, or by reason of judicial process;

4, or Franchisee’s heirs, legatees, personal representative, conservator or guardian, as
applicable, fails to dispose of Franchisee’s interest in the Franchised Business following Franchisee’s death
or permanent disability or legal incapacity;
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5. engages in a Competitive Business without obtaining Franchisor’s prior written consent
and paying fees, or violates the covenant against competition, or markets any service or product under a
name which, in Franchisor’s opinion, is confusingly similar to the Marks, or uses the Marks in an
unauthorized manner;

6. fails to comply with any of the covenants or conditions contained in the Agreement or fails
to obtain execution of the covenants required by the Agreement;

7. refuses to permit Franchisor to inspect the Franchised Business, or the books and records
of the Franchise, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement;

8. fails to keep the records of the Franchised Business and/or a Competitive Business
approved by Franchisor in a manner which permits a determination of Gross Sales;

9. fails to complete construction on the Franchise Location in accordance with this Agreement
or fails to commence operation of the Franchised Business within 12 months after the Effective Date of this
Agreement or fails to acquire a commercial space, whether by lease or purchase, for the Franchise Location
in accordance with this Agreement;

10. receives an excessive amount of customer complaints and an investigation by Franchisor
determines these complaints to be warranted; or

11. fails to acquire, or to continuously maintain the required minimum levels of insurance, fails
to have Franchisor named as an additional insured, or fails to provide a current certificate of insurance as
required under the Agreement.

C. Notice As Required by Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Section, if applicable law limits Franchisor’s rights to terminate or requires longer notice periods than those
set forth above, this Agreement shall be deemed amended to conform to the minimum notice periods or
restrictions upon termination required by such laws and regulations. Franchisor shall not, however, be
precluded from contesting the validity, enforceability or application of such laws or regulations in any
action, arbitration or dispute.

D. Liquidated Damages. If Franchisee abandons the Franchised Business, wrongfully
terminates this Agreement, or if Franchisor terminates this Agreement because of Franchisee’s material
default (which includes, but is in no way limited to Franchisee’s failure to pay any amounts owed to
Franchisor or its parent or affiliates), Franchisee will pay to Franchisor, as liquidated damages and not as a
penalty, damages in an amount equal to the average weekly Royalty Fee paid by Franchisee to Franchisor
during the 52-week period immediately preceding termination, multiplied by the number of weeks
remaining in Franchisee’s current term. For purposes of this Section, if Franchisee has failed and/or refused
to report Gross Sales, the parties agree that Franchisor may estimate a reasonable amount of Royalty Fee
and Franchisee shall be bound by Franchisor’s estimate. If Franchisee has been in operation for less than
52 weeks, the average weekly Royalty Fee to be multiplied by the remaining weeks in Franchisee’s current
term shall be calculated as the average weekly Royalty Fee paid to Franchisor from the beginning of
Franchisee’s current term until the termination of this Agreement. Payment of such sum by Franchisee shall
be due immediately upon demand. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that the liquidated damages amount
established in this Section is reasonable.

E. Cross-Default. Any default under any agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor or
its affiliates, and failure to cure within any applicable cure period, shall be considered a default under this
Agreement and shall provide an independent basis for termination of this Agreement.

13. FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR NON-RENEWAL

A. Franchisee’s Obligations. Immediately upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of
this Agreement, all rights granted to Franchisee shall terminate and Franchisee shall:

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
Franchise Agreement | 2025 32



1. Complete all work in process in accordance with the Brand Standards; notwithstanding
termination or expiration of this Agreement, it remains Franchisee’s obligation to complete all projects
initiated during the franchise term. For purposes of this provision, “work in process” means any project
being performed under a contract signed during the term of this Agreement (a “DREAMMAKER
Contract”). Franchisee may continue to use the System and Marks solely for purposes of completing
projects performed under DREAMMAKER Contracts, and all such projects shall be governed by the terms
of this Agreement, including the obligation to pay Royalty Fees and MAP Fees.

2. Except for purposes of completing Franchisee’s obligations under DREAMMAKER
Contracts, cease to use the System and Marks for any purpose and shall comply with the post-termination
covenants contained in this Agreement.

3. Service and resolve all warranty claims and customer disputes relating to work performed
under the DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN brand. If Franchisee fails to perform these obligations to
Franchisor’s satisfaction, Franchisor may undertake to perform the services and, in such case, Franchisee
shall reimburse Franchisor for the reasonable cost of such services.

3. Except for purposes of completing Franchisee’s obligations under DREAMMAKER
Contracts, cease all use of the Marks and refrain from using any other trademark service mark, logo, slogan,
or color combination, that suggests a current or former affiliation with the DREAMMAKER BATH &
KITCHEN franchise system. Within 30 days following termination or expiration and non-renewal of this
Agreement, Franchisee shall change its corporate name so that they no longer include the words “DREAM,”
“DREAMMAKER,” or similar terms, and shall cancel any assumed name registration involving the Marks.
Franchisee shall refrain from holding itself out as a current or former franchisee, and shall refrain from
publicly representing any current or former affiliation with Franchisor or DREAMMAKER BATH &
KITCHEN brand.

4. Refrain from using and, at Franchisor’s election, either permanently cancel, close, or assign
to Franchisor or its designee (as applicable), all telephone numbers, e-mail addresses, domain names, social
media accounts, social network accounts, online business profiles, and comparable electronic identities,
ever used by Franchisee in connection with the operation of the Franchised Business.

5. Turn over to Franchisor all materials containing Confidential Information (including,
without limitation, all materials and electronically stored information containing customer information, all
of which the parties acknowledge and agree is Franchisor’s sole property); provided that Franchisee may
retain and use copies of such information solely for purposes of performing Franchisee’s tax, legal, and
customer warranty obligations related to the Franchised Business.

6. Promptly pay all sums and debts owing to all third-party creditors of the Franchised
Business as well as to Franchisor and its affiliates, notwithstanding the fact that such sums and debts owing
to Franchisor and its affiliates may not at that time be fully due and payable, such debts being accelerated
automatically without further notice to Franchisee. If Franchisee has failed and/or refused to report Gross
Sales so that the Royalty Fee cannot be determined, Franchisor may calculate the missing Royalty Fee
based on the greater of Franchisee’s actual past performance or the Royalty Fee. If termination is for any
default of Franchisee, sums owing to Franchisor shall include all damages, costs and expenses (including
reasonable attorney’s fees) incurred by Franchisor as a result of the default, which obligation shall give rise
to and remain, until paid in full, a lien in favor of Franchisor against any and all of the vehicles, personal
property, equipment, inventory, fixtures or other assets used in the Franchised Business or any Competitive
Business.

7. Return to Franchisor, at Franchisee’s sole expense, all print and digital copies of materials
furnished to Franchisee, including, without limitation, all Manuals, advertising material, stationery, forms,
instructional materials, and all other materials relating to the operation of the Franchised Business and/or
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bearing the Marks (and retain no copy of the foregoing) or, at Franchisor’s election, dispose of such material
as directed by Franchisor and provide proof of such disposal in a manner directed by Franchisor.

B. Execution of Documents. Franchisee agrees that Franchisor may execute on Franchisee’s
behalf any documents necessary to effect Franchisee’s obligations under this Section and Franchisee hereby
irrevocably appoints Franchisor as Franchisee’s attorney-in-fact to do so.

C. Franchisor’s Rights Not Prejudiced. The expiration or termination of this Agreement
shall be without prejudice to Franchisor’s rights against Franchisee and such expiration or termination shall
not relieve Franchisee of any of its obligations to Franchisor existing at such time, nor will it terminate
those obligations of Franchisee which by their nature specifically survive the expiration, termination or
non-renewal of this Agreement.

D. Independent Obligation to Discontinue Use of Marks, System. Franchisee specifically
acknowledges and agrees that no allegations of wrongful termination of this Agreement shall justify
continued use of the Marks, the System or any other intellectual property of Franchisor and that wrongful
termination shall not be a defense to an infringement action brought by Franchisor.

14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

A. Agreement to Use Procedure. Franchisor and Franchisee have entered into this
Agreement in the belief that it is mutually advantageous to them. It is with the same spirit of cooperation
that they pledge to attempt to amicably resolve any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or the breach thereof, the relationship of Franchisor and Franchisee (or their respective
representatives) or any transaction embodied in this Agreement or related thereto (a “Dispute”). Therefore,
if a Dispute arises, the parties shall utilize the procedures described herein. If a party commences any legal
action, other than as an Emergency Relief Action (as defined below), without having first complied with
all of the provisions of this Section regarding mediation, the other party shall be entitled to a 30-day
abatement of the legal action upon filing the appropriate procedural motion in the legal proceeding and
bringing this provision to the attention of the court or other legal authority having jurisdiction.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee’s failure to pay Royalty Fees or any other amounts due and
owing under this Agreement or any other agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee will not be
considered a “Dispute” (and, therefore, is not subject to mediation), except that any controversy concerning
Franchisee’s legal obligation to pay such amount and/or the amount due and owing will be resolved through
the mediation procedures described below.

1. Initiation of Procedure. Should a Dispute arise, the initiating party shall give written
notice to the other party, describing the exact nature of the Dispute, its claim for relief and identifying one
or more individuals with authority to resolve the Dispute on such party’s behalf. The other party shall have
five business days within which to designate in writing one or more individuals with authority to resolve
the Dispute (“Authorized Individuals™).

2. Direct Negotiations. The Authorized Individuals shall be entitled to investigate the
Dispute as they deem appropriate, but agree to meet promptly, and in no event later than 15 days from the
date of the initiating party’s written notice, to negotiate a resolution of the Dispute. Authorized Individuals
shall meet in person or by telephone at times and places as they may agree. However, if the Dispute has not
been resolved within 15 days from the date of their initial meeting, the parties shall cease direct negotiations
and shall submit the Dispute to mediation in accordance with the procedure described below. In mediation,
each party shall be represented by persons with authority to negotiate a resolution of the Dispute.

3. Selection of Location for Mediation. Within five business days after the parties cease
negotiations, the parties shall make a good faith effort to select a mutually convenient location for
mediation. If the parties cannot timely agree on a mutually convenient location, the location shall be in
Waco, McLennan County, Texas.

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
Franchise Agreement | 2025 34



4. Selection of a Mediator. Within five business days after the parties agree upon a location
for the mediation, or the location is otherwise determined pursuant to this Agreement, the parties shall make
a good faith effort to select a person to mediate the Dispute. If the parties are unable to agree on a mediator,
the Central Texas Chapter of the Association of Attorney-Mediators, 2501 North Lamar, Austin, TX 78705
at 512/476-3400, or such other independent dispute resolution organization as shall be approved by
Franchisor, shall be asked to supply a list of five potential qualified attorney-mediators within 10 business
days. Within five business days after receipt of the list, the parties shall rank the proposed mediators in
numerical order of preference, simultaneously exchange such list, and the individual receiving the highest
combined ranking shall be the mediator. If such individual is not available, the parties shall proceed to
contact the individual who was the next highest in ranking.

5. Exchange of Information; Summary of Views. The parties and the mediator shall
determine a convenient date for the mediation, however, if the parties are unable to agree, the mediator
shall set the date. Both parties shall attempt in good faith to agree on procedures for the expeditious
exchange of information in the possession of the other party which is desired to prepare for the mediation.
Each party will deliver a concise summary of its view on the Dispute to the mediator at least seven days
before the first scheduled mediation session.

6. Conduct of Mediation. The mediator shall determine the format for the mediation and the
mediation session shall be private. The mediator shall keep confidential all information learned in private
caucus with any party unless specifically authorized by such party to make disclosure of the information.
The parties agree that the mediation shall be governed by such rules as the mediator shall prescribe before
the first scheduled session.

7. Termination of Procedure. Both parties agree to participate in the mediation to its
conclusion. The mediation shall be terminated by: (a) the execution of a settlement agreement; (b) a
declaration by the mediator that mediation is terminated; or (¢) a declaration by both parties (and not by
one of the parties unilaterally) that the mediation is terminated at the conclusion of one full day’s session.

8. Fees: Disqualification; Confidentiality. The fees and expenses of the mediator shall be
shared equally by the parties. The mediator shall be disqualified as a witness, expert or counsel for any
party with respect to the Dispute and any related matters. Mediation is a compromise negotiation for
purposes of Federal and Texas Rules of Evidence and constitutes privileged communication under Texas
law. The entire mediation process is confidential, and any statements, offers, views and opinions shall not
be discoverable or admissible in any legal proceeding for any purpose; provided, however, that evidence
which is otherwise discoverable or admissible is not excluded from discovery or admission as a result of
its use in the mediation.

B. Governing Law. The parties agree that the execution of this Agreement and the acceptance
of its terms occurred in Waco, McLennan County, Texas, and Franchisor and Franchisee further agree that
the performance of certain obligations of Franchisee arising under the Agreement, including but not limited
to, the payment of monies due hereunder and the satisfaction of certain training requirements of Franchisor,
shall occur in Waco, McLennan County, Texas. Accordingly, this Agreement, the rights of Franchisor and
Franchisee herein and the relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee shall be governed by the internal
laws of the state of Texas, without regard to its conflicts of laws rules, except to the extent governed by
federal trademark law.

C. Venue. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that any dispute between them shall be resolved
by litigation brought and maintained exclusively in a federal or state court serving the judicial district in
which Franchisor maintains its principal headquarters at the time the action is filed. The parties hereby
irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of said courts and waive any objection they may have to venue.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisor has the right to seek injunctive relief in any court of competent
jurisdiction. Franchisee acknowledges the receipt and sufficiency of additional consideration for its
agreement to this venue provision.
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D. No Class or Consolidated Actions. ALL CLAIMS, CONTROVERSIES AND
DISPUTES MAY ONLY BE BROUGHT BY FRANCHISEE ON AN INDIVIDUAL BASIS AND
MAY NOT BE CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY CLAIM, CONTROVERSY OR DISPUTE FOR OR
ON BEHALF OF ANY OTHER FRANCHISEE OR BE PURSUED AS PART OF A CLASS
ACTION.

F. Limitations Period for Bringing Claims. FRANCHISEE SHALL COMMENCE ALL
CLAIMS, CONTROVERSIES, DISPUTES, AND CAUSES OF ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP CREATED BY THIS
AGREEMENT WITHIN TWO YEARS OF THE DATE SUCH CLAIM, CONTROVERSY,
DISPUTE OR CAUSE OF ACTION AROSE OR WITHIN SUCH SHORTER PERIOD AS
PROVIDED BY ANY APPLICABLE LAW. IF FRANCHISEE DOES NOT COMMENCE ANY
CLAIM, CONTROVERSY, DISPUTE, OR CAUSE OF ACTION WITHIN SUCH PERIOD,
FRANCHISEE SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE WAIVED SUCH CLAIM, CONTROVERSY,
DISPUTE OR CAUSE OF ACTION.

G. Resolution Program. Without limiting any of the foregoing procedures, Franchisor
specifically reserves the right, at any time, to create a dispute resolution program and related specifications,
standards, procedures, and rules for the implementation thereof to be administered by Franchisor or its
designee for the benefit of all franchisees conducting business under the System. The standards,
specifications, procedures and rules for such dispute resolution program shall be made part of the Manuals
and if made part of the Manuals, on either a voluntary or mandatory basis, Franchisee shall comply with all
such standards, specifications, procedures and rules in seeking resolution of any Disputes with or involving
Franchisor or other franchisees, if applicable, under the program. If such dispute resolution program is made
mandatory, then Franchisor and Franchisee agree to submit any Disputes for resolution in accordance with
such dispute resolution program prior to seeking resolution of such Disputes in the manner provided for in
this Section. If such Dispute relates to another franchisee, Franchisee shall participate in the program and
submit any Dispute in accordance with the program’s standards, specifications, procedures and rules, prior
to seeking resolution of such Dispute by any other judicial or legally available means. Franchisee hereby
acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor’s right to bring an Emergency Relief Action as described above
shall not be superseded or affected by this Section.

15. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

A. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties
and may not be altered, amended or added to unless such amendment or addition is in writing and signed
by an authorized officer of each party. This Agreement shall be deemed to cancel and supersede the terms
of all prior written or oral agreements and understandings, if any, between Franchisor and Franchisee
pertaining to this Agreement, the license, the Franchised Business and any other related matter.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement or in any related agreement is intended to
disclaim the representations Franchisor made in the franchise disclosure document.

B. Notices. All notices, agreements, designations and modifications hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been delivered three business days after being placed in the United
States mail, enclosed in a certified, return receipt requested, prepaid envelope, addressed to the respective
parties at the address stated on the Summary Page, or to such changed address as a party may have
designated by proper notice to the other party or upon delivery by email to the email address stated on the
Summary Page, or to such changed email address as a party may have designed by proper notice to the
other party, as evidenced by a delivery confirmation or read receipt.

C. Consent from Franchisor. Whenever this Agreement requires Franchisor’s consent,
Franchisee shall make a timely written request for such consent. Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold
its consent but its consent must be in writing to be valid.
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D. No Warranty. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER
FRANCHISOR NOR ANY AFFILIATE OF FRANCHISOR MAKES ANY EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED WARRANTY WHATSOEVER. FRANCHISOR AND ALL AFFILIATES OF
FRANCHISOR EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. FRANCHISOR
SPECIFICALLY MAKES NO WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMS ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED
WARRANTY RELATING TO ANY SOFTWARE, COMPUTER PROGRAM, DATA, INTRANET,
WEBSITE OR OTHER RELATED ITEMS PROVIDED OR RECOMMENDED BY
FRANCHISOR.

E. Persons Bound. This Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. Each person with a beneficial interest in Franchisee shall execute an Undertaking
and Guaranty in the form attached hereto. Failure to do shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.

F. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original; and it shall not be necessary in making proof of
this Agreement to produce or account for more than one such counterpart. Facsimile and electronic
signatures are binding on the party providing the facsimile or electronic signature.

G. Severability. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the
commission of any act contrary to law. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, whenever there is
any conflict between any provision of this Agreement and any present or future statute, law, ordinance or
regulation contrary to which the parties have no legal right to contract, the latter shall prevail, but in such
event the provision of this Agreement thus affected shall be curtailed and limited only to the extent
necessary to bring it within the requirement of the law. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, in
the event that any part of this Agreement shall be held to be indefinite, invalid or otherwise unenforceable
for any reason, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion, which remaining portion
shall remain in force and effect as if this Agreement had been executed with the invalid portion thereof
eliminated; and it is hereby declared the intention of Franchisor and Franchisee that they would have
executed the remaining portion of this Agreement without including therein any such part which may be
hereafter declared invalid or otherwise unenforceable for any reason.

H. Waiver and Delay. The acceptance by Franchisor of any payment specified to be paid by
Franchisee with knowledge of a breach of any covenant or agreement hereof shall not be, nor be construed
to be, a waiver of any breach of any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement. The failure or delay to
enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of rights or a waiver of any
subsequent enforcement of the provisions of this Agreement. The waiver or remedy of any default or breach
hereunder shall not waive or affect the default remedied or any prior or subsequent default.

L Construction_and Interpretation. Neither this Agreement nor any ambiguity in this
Agreement shall be construed or resolved against the drafter of this Agreement, whether under any rule of
construction or otherwise. If any provision of this Agreement is capable of two constructions, one of which
would render the provision void and the other of which would render the provision valid, then the provision
shall have the meaning which renders it valid. Section headings are descriptive only and shall have no legal
force or effect whatsoever. The term “immediate family” as used in this Agreement means a person’s
spouse, parents, siblings, or natural or adopted children and does not include any other family member. The
term “transfer” as used in the Agreement means and includes the voluntary, involuntary, conditional, direct
or indirect assignment, sale, gift or other transfer by Franchisee (or any of Franchisee’s Principals) of any
interest in or the grant of any security interest in this Agreement, the Franchise, Franchisee or some or all
of the assets of the Franchise. As used herein, a sale, assignment or transfer includes, without limitation,
the transfer of ownership of shares or a partnership interest; merger or consolidation or issuance of
additional securities representing an ownership interest; any sale of voting shares of Franchisee or any
security convertible to voting shares of Franchisee or any agreement granting the right to exercise or control
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the exercise of the voting rights of any holder of an ownership interest; and transfer in a divorce, insolvency,
corporate or partnership dissolution proceeding or, in the event of the death of Franchisee or a Principal, by
will, intestate succession or otherwise by operation of law. In the case of any notice or other communication
required to be provided by Franchisor “in writing” Franchisor’s communication of such item or notice in
electronic form shall satisfy the requirement of “writing.”

J. Rights and Remedies Cumulative. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be
cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law, and said rights and remedies
may be exercised concurrently

K. Reimbursement of Legal Fees. If a Dispute occurs or a legal action at law or equity arises
between Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the breach or enforcement of this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees (including outside counsel and in-house legal
fees/costs), court costs and expenses incurred by the other party in the action.

L. Franchisee Representations. Franchisee represents and warrants to Franchisor the
following:
1. Franchisee has had the opportunity to conduct due diligence regarding the purchase of the

franchise opportunity, including the opportunity to contact existing franchisees and to independently
investigate the franchise and the terms of this Agreement.

2. Franchisee has been encouraged to seek independent legal counsel to assist in the purchase
of the franchise and to understand the terms of this Agreement.

3. No representations, promises, or guarantees were made by Franchisor or anyone acting on
Franchisor’s behalf concerning the quality of the software, advertising, support, operating system, the
viability of the Franchise concept, or the future growth of Franchisor’s System.

4. No representations, promises, or guarantees were made by Franchisor or anyone acting on
Franchisor’s behalf concerning historical or potential income, profit, or earnings, of a Franchise, and
Franchisee did not rely on any such representations, promises, or guarantees in deciding to purchase a
Franchise.

5. All rights, title and interest in and to the Marks, the System and Franchisor’s goodwill and
confidential trade secrets are owned by Franchisor and shall remain solely in Franchisor and are being
revealed to Franchisee solely to enable Franchisee to establish and operate the Franchise.

6. Franchisee has read this Agreement and accepts and agrees to all of the terms hereof.

Nothing in this Section is intended to disclaim, and does not disclaim, any representation made in the
franchise disclosure document delivered to Franchisee in connection with the Franchise purchase.

M. Submission of Agreement. Submission of this Agreement does not constitute an offer and
this Agreement shall become effective only upon the Effective Date. This Agreement, when fully executed,
shall supersede all prior existing agreements between Franchisor and Franchisee concerning the subject
matter of this Agreement.

N. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be under any liability to the other in any way
whatsoever for destruction, damage or delay arising out of circumstances beyond its reasonable control,
including but not limited to, war, acts of terrorism, rebellion, civil commotion, strikes, lock-outs and
industrial disputes, fire, theft, explosion, earthquake, act of God, flood, drought or bad weather.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each party shall use all reasonable endeavors to continue to perform, or
resume performance of] all contractual obligations in this Agreement.

0. Limitation of Liability. The liability of Franchisor, and all affiliates of Franchisor, to
Franchisee, including any potential liability for providing, recommending, or requiring the use of any
software, website, or any other items, is limited to direct damages. In no event will Franchisor or its affiliates
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be liable for incidental, special, indirect, or consequential damages (including lost profits), even if
Franchisor or its affiliates had previously been advised of the possibility of such damages.

P. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended, nor will be deemed,
to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party to this Agreement.

Q. Waiver of Claims, Rights, and Remedies.

1. The parties irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any right to or claim
for any punitive or exemplary damages against the other and agree that in the event of a dispute between
them, each shall be limited to the recovery of any actual damages sustained by the party.

2. WAIVER OF CONSUMER RIGHTS

FRANCHISEE WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE UNDER THE DECEPTIVE TRADE
PRACTICES CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT, SECTION 1741, ET SEQ., BUSINESS AND
COMMERCE CODE, A LAW THAT GIVES CONSUMERS SPECIAL RIGHTS AND
PROTECTIONS.

R. Waiver of Jury Trial THE PARTIES, FULLY AWARE OF THEIR
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY AND HAVING HAD FULL OPPORTUNITY
TO CONSULT WITH COUNSEL AND OTHERWISE EVALUATE WHETHER TO WAIVE
THAT RIGHT, HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION,
PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY.

S. Electronic Form of Written Material. In the case of any notice or other item required
herein to be provided by Franchisor “in writing” Franchisor’s communication of such item or notice in
electronic form shall satisfy the requirement of “writing.” Electronic form of notice, by itself, from
Franchisee to Franchisor shall not satisfy any requirement of Franchisee to provide any notice or other item
“in writing” unless Franchisor has granted prior consent in writing to provide such material in electronic
form.

T. Cooperation; Release and Other Agreements. Franchisee shall execute such other or
further agreements, documents or instruments that may be necessary to carry out the intent of this
Agreement. In the event of a renewal, transfer, purchase of additional territory, or an amendment or change
to this Agreement requested by Franchisee, Franchisee shall execute a general release, in a form satisfactory
to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their
respective governing persons, agents, employees, successors and assigns.

U. Consent for Franchisor to Obtain Credit Reporting and Other Information. In
connection with this Franchise Agreement and any agreements related to it, Franchisee hereby consents to
Franchisor or its agents obtaining or exchanging any personal information about Franchisee from financial
institutions, credit bureaus, credit reporting agencies and also from any other third parties identified by
Franchisor in its policies and procedures, for the purpose of verifying the information Franchisee provided
as part of the application process or to obtain other information which Franchisor considers necessary to
decide whether to grant a franchise, additional territory or an extension of credit, or to make other decisions
with respect to the franchise, including any employment history, relevant criminal convictions, education,
and credit information.

V. Business Judgment. Notwithstanding any contrary provisions contained in this
Agreement, the parties acknowledge and agree that: where this Agreement authorizes Franchisor to take
action in its “sole discretion,” it shall have the absolute and unrestricted contract right to take such action,
and where this Agreement authorizes Franchisor to take action in its “reasonable discretion,” Franchisor
shall use its business judgment in exercising such discretion based on Franchisor’s assessment of
Franchisor’s own interests and balancing those interests against the interests, promotion and benefit of the
System and franchised businesses generally (including Franchisor, and its affiliates and other franchisees),
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and specifically without considering Franchisee’s individual interests or the individual interests of any other
particular franchisee. Examples of items that will promote or benefit the System and franchised businesses
generally include, without limitation, enhancing the value of the Marks and/or the DREAMMAKER BATH
& KITCHEN brand, improving customer service and satisfaction, improving project quality, improving
uniformity, enhancing or encouraging modernization, and improving the competitive position of the
System). Franchisor will have no liability to Franchisee for the exercise of its discretion in this manner.
Even if Franchisor has numerous motives for a particular action or decision, so long as at least one motive
is a reasonable business justification no trier of fact in any legal action shall substitute its judgment for
Franchisor’s judgment so exercised and such action or decision will not be subject to challenge for abuse
of discretion.

FRANCHISEE:

BY:

Name:

Title:

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.,
a Texas corporation
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

BY:
Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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EXHIBIT A TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
UNDERTAKING AND GUARANTY
Each of the undersigned acknowledges and agrees as follows:

1. I have read the terms and conditions of the Franchise Agreement and acknowledge that the
execution of this Undertaking and Guaranty and the undertakings of the principal owners in the Franchise
Agreement are in partial consideration for and a condition to continuing rights under the Franchise
Agreement and that Franchisor would not have permitted such rights without the execution of this
Undertaking and Guaranty and the other undertakings by each of the undersigned;

2. I am a principal owner of the Franchisee;

3. I unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee to Franchisor and its successors and assigns that all of
Franchisee’s obligations under the Franchise Agreement will be punctually paid and performed. Upon
default by Franchisee or upon written notice from Franchisor, I will make each payment and perform each
obligation of Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement. Without affecting the obligations of any of the
undersigned, Franchisor may, without notice to any of the undersigned, waive, renew, extend, modify,
amend, or release any indebtedness or obligation of the franchisee or settle, adjust, or compromise any
claims that Franchisor may have against the Franchisee. [ waive all demands and notices of every kind
with respect to the enforcement of this Undertaking and Guaranty, including notices of presentment,
demand for payment or performance by the Franchisee, any default by the Franchisee or any guarantor, and
any release of any guarantor or other security for this Undertaking and Guaranty or the obligations of the
Franchisee. Franchisor may pursue its rights against me without first exhausting its remedies against the
Franchisee and without joining any other guarantor, and no delay on the part of Franchisor in the exercise
of any right or remedy will operate as a waiver of the right or remedy, and no single or partial exercise by
Franchisor of any right or remedy will preclude the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy.
Upon receipt by Franchisor or notice of the death of any of the undersigned, the estate of the deceased will
be bound by the foregoing Undertaking and Guaranty, but only for defaults and obligations under the
Franchise Agreement existing at the time of death, and in that event, the obligations of the undersigned
who survive such death will continue in full force and effect;

4. I acknowledge and agree that Franchisee and Franchisor may, at any time or times and without my
consent, enter into extensions, renewals, amendments, assignments, or other covenants with respect to the
Franchise Agreement as they may deem appropriate, and I shall not be released from my obligations
hereunder as a result, but shall continue to be fully liable for the payments and performance of all liabilities,
obligations, and duties of Franchisee under this Franchise Agreement as so extended, renewed, amended,
assigned, or otherwise modified,

5. I agree to all of the provisions, covenants, conditions, representations, warranties, and agreements
set forth in the Agreement (including, without limitation, those regarding compliance with the Franchise
Agreement, the indemnification obligations in Section 9, the transfer provisions in Section 11, and the
venue provisions in Section 14), and agree to perform them. I irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of the
federal and state courts and consents to venue in McLennan County, Texas;

6. I agree to comply with all of the provisions contained in Section 10 of the Franchise Agreement
concerning the use of Confidential Information. I will maintain the confidentiality of all Confidential
Information disclosed to me. I agree to use the Confidential Information only for the purposes authorized
under the Franchise Agreement. I further agree not to disclose any of the Confidential Information, except
(a) to the Franchisee’s employees on a need-to-know basis, (b) to the Franchisee’s and my legal and tax
professionals to the extent necessary for me to meet my legal obligations, and (c) as otherwise may be
required by law;
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7. While I own a beneficial interest in the Franchisee and for a two-year period after I cease to own a
beneficial interest in the Franchisee (or two years after termination or expiration (without renewal) of the
Franchise Agreement, whichever occurs first), I will not:

(a) Engage in or participate in or derive any benefit from a Competitive Business (as defined
in the Franchise Agreement) without Franchisor’s prior written consent. If Franchisor grants me permission
to engage in a Competitive Business, I understand that such permission may be conditioned on my paying
a Franchise Service Fee (as defined in the Franchise Agreement). While I own a beneficial interest in the
Franchisee, I understand and agree that this restriction applies throughout the United States and in any
country or territory in which Franchisor has used, registered, or sought to register the Marks (as defined in
the Franchise Agreement). During the two-year period after I cease owning a beneficial interest in the
Franchisee (or the two-year period after termination or expiration (without renewal) of the Franchise
Agreement, | understand and agree that this restriction applies to any Competitive Business operating or
providing services in the Territory.

(b) Employ or seek to employ any person or otherwise induce any person who is employed by
Franchisor or any other franchisee to leave their employment; or

(c) Interfere or attempt to interfere with any of the business relationships and/or advantages of
Franchisor or any other franchisee;

(d) Use any Confidential Information whatsoever in any manner which is or is intended to be
damaging or derogatory or hinder the relationship of Franchisor with its other franchisees, customers,
suppliers or other third parties, or the relationship of any other franchisee with its customers or suppliers;
or

(e) divert or attempt to divert any customer or business from Franchisor or any other franchisee
or solicit or endeavor to obtain the business of any person who shall have been a customer of Franchisee’s
Franchise (as defined in the Franchise Agreement).

This two-year restrictive period described in this paragraph 7 shall be tolled during any period of my
noncompliance.

8. If any action brought to enforce the term of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled
to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, and expenses incurred by the other party in the action.
9. I WAIVE MY RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR

COUNTERCLAIM., WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY., INVOLVING FRANCHISOR, WHICH
ARISES OUT OF OR IS RELATED IN ANY WAY TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, THE
PERFORMANCE OF ANY PARTY UNDER THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, AND/OR THE
OFFER OR GRANT OF THE FRANCHISE.

10. This Agreement is governed by Texas law, without regard to conflicts of law principles.
11. The obligations of each of the undersigned under this Agreement is joint and several.

[The next page is the signature page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ecach of the undersigned, intending to be legally bound, has caused this

Undertaking and Guaranty to be executed and delivered to Franchisor on the date set forth below.
GUARANTOR(S)

Signature
Printed Name:
Date:

Signature
Printed Name:
Date:

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
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EXHIBIT B-1 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

COMPETITIVE BUSINESS

As of the Effective Date, Franchisee or its owners operate the following Competitive Business:

Name of Competitive Business (Section 10.C.):

Services Performed By Competitive Business:

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
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EXHIBIT B-2 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
DOMAIN NAME LICENSE AGREEMENT

(“Domain Name”)

This DOMAIN NAME LICENSE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made pursuant to the terms of

the Franchise Agreement dated (“Franchise Agreement”) by and between
Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER BATH &
KITCHEN (“Franchisor”) and ,a

(“Franchisee”), authorizing Franchisee to use Franchisor’s Marks and System in the operation of a
bathroom and kitchen remodeling and related services business (the “Franchise”) in and for the Territory.

For valuable consideration, Franchisor hereby licenses to Franchisee, in accordance with the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, the Domain Name for use in connection with the Franchise.

1. License. Franchisee shall use the Domain Name and all website content associated with the Domain
Name only in connection with the operation and promotion of the Franchise. Franchisee has no right to
sublicense use of the Domain Name.

2. Term. Unless earlier terminated or suspended in accordance with paragraph 6, the license granted
by this Agreement is coterminous with the Franchise Agreement and shall automatically terminate upon
the termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.

3. Nontransferable. The license granted by this Agreement is nontransferable and non-assignable
without the prior written consent of Franchisor, which Franchisor may grant or withhold in its sole
discretion.

4, Ownership of Domain Name and Website Content. Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor owns
the Domain Name and all website content associated with the Domain Name. Nothing in this Agreement
shall give Franchisee any right, title or interest in or to the Domain Name or the website content associated
with the Domain Name, other than the right to use it in accordance with this Agreement. Franchisee shall
take no action inconsistent with Franchisor’s ownership of the Domain Name or any website content
associated with the Domain Name, or assist any third party in attempting to claim adversely to Franchisor,
with regard to such ownership. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Franchisee specifically
agrees that it will not (a) challenge Franchisor’s ownership of the Domain Name or any website content
associated with the Domain Name; or (b) challenge the validity of this Agreement or any term or condition
of the license granted herein.

5. Use of Domain Name. Franchisee undertakes that its use of the Domain Name and all website
content associated with the Domain Name under this Agreement (a) will comply in all material respects
with the applicable registry’s terms and conditions in force, as they may exist from time to time; (b) will
not breach any applicable law, statute, regulation or legally binding code; (¢) will not infringe the legal
rights of any person in any jurisdiction; (d) will be used only to publish content about the Franchise; (e)
will not breach any provision of the Franchise Agreement; and (f) will comply at all times with Franchisor’s
policies, standards and specifications, as they exist from time to time.

6. Termination and other Remedies. Franchisor, at its sole election and option, may terminate or
suspend the license granted by this Agreement during any period that Franchisee is in breach of this
Agreement, the Franchise Agreement, or any other agreement between Franchisee and Franchisor or its
affiliates. Upon termination or during such suspension, Franchisor may prohibit or restrict Franchisee’s
access to the website content associated with the Domain Name.

7. Expiration or Termination. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, all rights to use the
Domain Name shall revert automatically to Franchisor. Franchisor may take all actions necessary to retain
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control over of the Domain Name including, without limitation, denying Licensee’s access to the website
content associated with the Domain Name.

8. No Waiver. No failure of Franchisor to exercise any power reserved to it by this Agreement, or to
insist upon strict compliance by Franchisee with any obligation or condition hereunder, and no custom or
practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver of Franchisor’s right to
demand exact compliance with any of the terms herein.

9. Indemnification. Franchisee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Franchisor and its directors,
shareholders, managers, members, employees and agents from any and all claims, demands, action,
proceeding, or cause of action, for damage or injury to persons or property, arising out of or connected to
Franchisee’s use of the Domain Name.

10. Construction, Choice of Law, and Forum Selection. Capitalized terms not defined in this
Agreement shall have the definition given to them in the Franchise Agreement. This Agreement shall be
governed by the choice of law and forum selection provisions contained in the Franchise Agreement, the
terms of which are incorporated by reference.

Intending to be legally bound, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement to be effective on
the Effective Date set forth above.

FRANCHISOR FRANCHISEE
WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, ,
INC.,
a Texas corporation, d/b/a DreamMaker Bath &  a
Kitchen
By: By:
Douglas A. Dwyer, President and CSO Name:
Title:
Date: Date:
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EXHIBIT B-3 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

This CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT is entered into on this  day of ,
20, by and among Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as
DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN, having a principal place of business at 4547 Lake Shore Drive,
Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”); ,a (“Franchisee”); and
, individually (“Spouse™).

WHEREAS, Franchisor intends to enter into a Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”)
pursuant to which Franchisor will grant Franchisee a license to use Franchisor’s trademarks, services
marks, logos and other indicia of origin (the “Marks”) and Franchisor’s methods of operation (the
“System”) in connection with the operation of a remodeling and related services business (the “Franchise™)
in and for a geographical area described in the Franchise Agreement;

WHEREAS, Spouse is the spouse of Franchisee, if Franchisee is an individual, or a Principal of
Franchisee, if the Franchisee is a business entity; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor has undertaken, at considerable effort and expense, to create the System
which will be revealed to Franchisee pursuant to the Franchise Agreement and Spouse does not intend to
hold an ownership interest in the Franchise and will not be actively involved in the operation of the
Franchise but through association with Franchisee, will be exposed to and learn many procedures,
techniques and other matters which are identified and treated by Franchisor as confidential, proprietary or
trade secret, including, without limitation, information regarding the operational, sales, and marketing
methods and techniques of Franchisor, which are beyond Spouse’s skills and experience (“Confidential
Information™).

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Acknowledgement of Confidentiality Obligation. Spouse acknowledges that through
association with Franchisee, Spouse will receive valuable Confidential Information which provides a
competitive advantage in the development of the Franchise. Spouse acknowledges and agrees that the
Confidential Information and any Manuals are confidential or proprietary in nature and contain trade secrets
belonging to Franchisor and that all such tangible evidence of Confidential Information is a property right
of great value to Franchisor. Spouse hereby agrees to be bound by the provisions of the Franchise
Agreement related to confidentiality and protection of trade secrets, including but not limited to Sections
10.B. and 10.C. of the Franchise Agreement, the same as if a party to the Franchise Agreement.

2. Non-Use. Spouse agrees not to use Confidential Information without prior written approval
from Franchisor and Spouse shall not divert or attempt to divert any business or customer of the Franchise
to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or perform any other act injurious
to the goodwill associated with the Marks and the System.

3. Non-Disclosure. Spouse agrees not to disclose, communicate or divulge any Confidential
Information for Spouse’s benefit or for the benefit of any other third party, including, without limitation, a
competitor of the Franchise, without prior written approval from Franchisor.

4. Exclusions. Confidential Information does not include and this Agreement does not apply
to (a) information that is previously known by Spouse, (b) information that is or becomes part of the public
domain other than through a wrongful act of Spouse, (c¢) information that is independently developed by
Spouse, (d) information that is otherwise in the hands of Spouse by a means other than breach of this
Agreement, or (e) information that is sought pursuant to a subpoena or written discovery (“Process”)
provided that Franchisor shall be immediately notified of the receipt of the Process, whereupon Franchisor
has the right to request that Franchisee and/or Spouse delete the Confidential Information from the scope
thereof, and if Franchisee or Spouse refuses, then Franchisor may seek any and all available remedies,
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including, without limitation, commencing proceedings to enjoin the disclosure of Confidential Information
or intervening impending proceedings to seek the entry of protective orders or other appropriate relief.
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to interfere with a party’s obligations to comply with lawful
court orders; however, no disclosure of Confidential Information by a party pursuant thereto shall be
deemed to place the Confidential Information in the public domain or to relieve the party from the future
performance of all its confidentiality obligations under this Agreement, absent express orders of the court
to the contrary.

5. Covenant Not to Compete. Except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, during
the term of the Franchise Agreement and for a period of two (2) years, commencing with the earlier of the
termination of the Franchise Agreement or the date on which Spouse ceases to be married to Franchisee (or
the individual who is the principal of a legal entity identified as Franchisee), which period shall be extended
by any period of non-compliance, Spouse shall not, directly or indirectly, through, on behalf of, or in
conjunction with, any other person, partnership, or legal entity, own, maintain, operate, or engage or
participate in, or have any financial interest, either as an officer, agent, employee, principal, partner,
director, shareholder or any other individual or representative capacity, in any corporation, partnership or
legal entity which engages in any business which is the same or similar to the Franchise, or is otherwise in
competition with the business of Franchisor or Franchisor’s franchisees, which engages in the distribution
of similar products, services and equipment within the geographical area specified in Summary Page(s) of
the Franchise Agreement. Spouse further agrees that upon Franchisor’s request Spouse shall make his/her
personal and business records available for inspection by Franchisor to determine Spouse’s compliance this
provision.

6. Choice of Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by the internal laws of
the State of Texas. The parties agree that any litigation or legal action to enforce or relating to this
Agreement shall be filed in Waco, McLennan County, Texas. The parties hereby consent to the jurisdiction
of such Courts and further agree to waive any rights or objections to the jurisdiction or venue of any such
actions when filed in such Courts.

7. Legal Fees and Costs. Any unauthorized disclosure following execution of this Agreement
may be cause for suit for injunctive relief and damages. If a party breaches this Agreement, the defaulting
party shall pay reasonable attorney’s fees and other costs incurred by the other party in enforcing the
provisions of this Agreement. If any legal proceeding is commenced to enforce or interpret any provision
of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees and all costs
and disbursements allowed by law.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and
cannot be changed except by written instrument signed by all parties. There are no representations of any
kind except as contained herein. This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties,
their legal representatives, successors, and assigns.

[The next page is the signature page.]
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FRANCHISEE:

a,

By:

Name:

Title:

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
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Spouse Signature

FRANCHISOR:
WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:

Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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EXHIBIT B-4 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT

This Technology Agreement (“TA”) is entered into on this day of ,20
(“Effective Date”) by and between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with an address of 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202,

Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”), and , a
, having an address of

and its  Guarantors , individually, having an address of

and , individually, having

an address of (collectively, “Franchisee”), and is effective as of the

date accepted by Franchisor below.
The parties agree as follows:

The parties have entered into or, contemporaneously with the execution of this TA, the parties are entering
into, a franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement’) pursuant to which Franchisor is granting to Franchisee
the right to operate a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® franchise and Franchisee agrees to undertake
the obligations of a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® franchisee. One of Franchisee’s obligations
under the Franchise Agreement is to purchase, install, maintain and upgrade such computer hardware,
software, software templates, spreadsheets, and Internet or intranet access as Franchisor may require.

Franchisee is required to use all computer software required by Franchisor from time to time, and may use
such additional computer software as Franchisor may permit in writing from time to time. Appendix B
reflects Franchisor’s computer hardware specifications as of the date of this Agreement.

1. Definitions

1.1. “Confidential Information” means all trade secrets, materials, information, data, knowledge,
techniques and know-how designated or treated by us as confidential and includes any and all Manuals,
computer software or programs including company intranet/DreamConnect, company learning
management system/DreamMaker Learning Center training materials, operational videos, marketing
programs, franchise rosters, franchisee lists, and any other materials designated or treated by us as
confidential.

1.2. “Content” means information, software, and data, including without limitation, any personal
data or information, hypertext markup language files, scripts, programs, recordings, sound, music, graphics,
images, applets, or servlets that are created, provided, uploaded, or transferred by Franchisee or any user
authorized by Franchisee.

1.3. “Documentation” means the standard end user instructions for operating Franchisor’s
Software.

1.4. “Financial System” means financial software which includes a custom template designed for
franchisees to work with a currently-supported release of QuickBooks Online Advanced by Intuit and
customized for use in Franchisor’s franchise system and which may include or be substituted by additional
components or programs.

1.5. “Franchisor’s Software” means current and future software and Documentation that
Franchisor owns or otherwise has a right to license to its Franchisees.

1.6 “Maintenance” means all Updates and Upgrades that provide modifications, enhancements,
corrections, or new Minor version (e.g., upgrading from Ver. 2.1 to Ver. 2.2) to Franchisor’s Software.
Maintenance does not include any hardware maintenance. Maintenance does not include any new Major
version that may be required (e.g., upgrading from Ver. 2.2 to Ver. 3.0).
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1.7. “Customized Management Software” means software which provides and combines contact
management, sales and lead tracking management, job estimating and proposal generation, and which
produces take off list for production and any interfaces, electronic or manual, with our required accounting
software.

1.8. “Minor Version” means all Upgrades denoted by the numerals after the first decimal of the
software version number (e.g., upgrade from Ver. 2.2 to Ver. 2.3).

1.9. “Major Version” means all Upgrades denoted by the first numeral of the software version
number (e.g., upgrade from Ver. 2.2 to 3.0).

1.10. “Support” means all assistance, installation, training, and consultation provided by
Franchisor or its designee that prevents or resolves Franchisee’s technology related issues.

1.11. “Third Party Software” means software that is proprietary to third parties

1.12. “Update” means the release of error corrections, bug fixes, intermediate releases to maintain
conformity with industry standards, and software deliveries not containing increases in functionality.

1.13. “Upgrade” means a new release or version of Franchisor’s Software provided to Franchisees.
2. License

2.1. License Grant. Franchisor grants to Franchisee a personal, limited, non-assignable, non-
transferrable, non-exclusive license to use the machine readable object code form of Franchisor’s Software
(as required under Appendix A) during the Term solely for Franchisee’s internal needs in the operation of
Franchisee’s business as a franchisee of Franchisor and will not directly or indirectly permit third-parties
to use Franchisor’s Software except to the extent and in the manner permitted under Section 2.2.(a) and (f)
below.

2.2. License Restrictions

(a). Limited Right to Copy. Franchisee must not copy or allow copies of the
Franchisor’s Software, except to the extent necessary to exercise the use granted under this TA and for
back-up purposes.

(b). No Customization. Franchisor prohibits Franchisee from customizing or
authorizing customizations of Franchisor’s Software; provided however, Franchisee may request
Franchisor’s permission to customize Franchisor’s Software if Franchisee (i) obtains Franchisor’s prior
written approval of any vendor to be engaged to work on such customization, and such vendor meets all of
Franchisor’s training and other requirements, and obtain a written undertaking from such vendor that vendor
will be responsible to send such customized items to Franchisor; (ii) obtains Franchisor’s prior written
consent to the specific customization to be developed and such terms of the work as Franchisor deems
necessary or desirable; (iii) ensures that all work will be performed solely at the expense of Franchisee; (iv)
ensures that any customization does not interfere with the benchmarking of aggregated data from all of
Franchisor’s system franchisees; (v) agrees that Franchisor owns all rights and title to such customizations;
and (vi) the Franchisor-specified vendor will have agreed in writing, and will be responsible, to send such
customized or modified items to Franchisor. In addition, Franchisee hereby releases Franchisor from any
and all liability with respect to any errors, damages or costs that arise from or result in any way from such
customization.

(c). No Reverse Engineering or Modifications. Franchisee must not itself, or
authorize any third party to, reverse engineer, decompile or disassemble, change, modify or create
derivative works from Franchisor’s Software.

(d). Ownership. Franchisee has no ownership rights in Franchisor’s Software.
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(e). Other Rights. Franchise has no other rights in Franchisor’s Software except those
rights expressly granted by this TA.

. Third-Party Access. Franchisee must not make Franchisor’s Software available
to any third-party unless required by Franchisor at its sole discretion.

(2). Updating to Current Versions. Franchisee must only use current versions of
Franchisor’s Software; provided however, Franchisee may use prior versions if prior versions are necessary
to support the current versions. Current version may include an Upgrade to a Major Version requiring an
additional fee after the effective date of this TA.

(h). Prior Versions. Franchisee will immediately return, without retaining any copies,
any prior version of Franchisor’s Software not being used by Franchisee or discontinue its use, if so
instructed by Franchisor, upon notice by Franchisor.

3. Termination

3.1. Term. Except as otherwise expressly set forth below, the parties intend that the term of this
Agreement will be coextensive with the term of the Franchise Agreement and all renewals and extensions
thereof.

3.2. Automatic Termination. This Agreement will terminate automatically upon the expiration,
nonrenewal or termination of the Franchise Agreement.

3.3 Termination by Franchisor. Franchisor may terminate this Agreement or any right to use any
of the software licensed under this Agreement upon notice to Franchisee with immediate effect in the event
that (i) Franchisee materially breaches any of its obligations under this Agreement or under the Franchise
Agreement, or (ii) Franchisor requires Franchisee to cease using Franchisor’s Software, or any or all
portions of it, as specified by Franchisor.

3.4. Disabling Franchisee’s Access. Franchisee understands that Franchisor may include a
function in Franchisor’s Software that will cause the Franchisor’s Software to automatically cease to
operate in whole or in part in the event that Franchisee materially breaches this TA, the Franchise
Agreement or fails in a timely manner to (i) submit to Franchisor the reports required by Franchisor; (ii)
pay to Franchisor the required monthly Maintenance and Support Fee; or (iii) pay to Franchisor the Royalty
Fee or any other amounts due to Franchisor under the Franchise Agreement. Franchisor will not be liable
to Franchisee for any damages whatsoever that may result directly or indirectly from Franchisor’s disabling
of the functionality of Franchisor’s Software pursuant to this Section.

3.5. Disposition of Copies. Upon termination of the license granted hereby Franchisee must
promptly return to Franchisor, or otherwise dispose of as Franchisor may instruct, all physical copies of
Franchisor’s Software in Franchisee’s possession or under Franchisee’s control and must remove all copies
thereof from Franchisee’s computers and all of Franchisee’s other electronic storage media. Upon
Franchisor’s request, Franchisee will provide Franchisor with written certification of Franchisee’s
compliance with this Section.

3.6. No Refunds. Upon the expiration or termination of the license granted hereby, or if
Franchisor’s Software is disabled as described above, Franchisee will not receive any refund of any
payments made to Franchisor.

4. Third Party Software

4.1. Purchase of Third Party Software Licenses. Franchisee agrees to pay to Franchisor, or its
designee if indicated by Franchisor, any license fee for the purchase of one or more licenses to any software
that is proprietary to a third party, but required by Franchisor for Franchisee to operate the franchise.

4.2. Recurring Fees. If under the terms of use for any Franchisor’s Software Franchisee is required
to pay to any third party a recurring fee, whether as a recurring license fee, training and support fee, or
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otherwise, Franchisor may, in its sole discretion, after notifying Franchisee in writing, elect to act as
intermediary for payment purposes only, without any liability to Franchisor whatsoever, and to pay such
recurring fee from Franchisee’s payment of the monthly Maintenance and Support Fee.

4.3. License and User Agreements. Franchisee further agrees to enter into all license and user
agreements, and any other agreements Franchisor and/or its designee requires, in connection with the
purchase of one or more licenses for, or the use of any of, Franchisor’s Software. Franchisee may be
required to enter into such license or user agreements with Franchisor and/or Franchisor’s designee(s).

5. Training and Support; Accountants & Other Professional Consultants

5.1. Cooperation of Franchisee. Franchisee agrees to cooperate with Franchisor in all matters
relating to the installation and support of Franchisor’s Software and must complete such training of
Franchisee’s personnel with respect to Franchisor’s Software as may be required by Franchisor.

5.2. Training and Support. Franchisor or Franchisor’s designee will provide a limited amount of
training and support to Franchisee which may be by telephone, webinar or any other means at a time
arranged by Franchisor and during Franchisor’s normal business hours, via a written manual, the Internet,
intranet or in any other manner chosen by Franchisor. The type and amount of such training and support
will be determined by Franchisor in its sole discretion.

5.3. Maintenance. Franchisor or its designee may, in its sole discretion, modify, upgrade or create
fixes, service releases and new Minor Versions of Franchisor’s Software from time to time and provide
them to Franchisee. Franchisee must implement all Updates and Upgrades as soon as practicable.
Maintenance does not include Upgrades to Major Versions.

5.4. Remote Access. Franchisee permits Franchisor or its designee unrestricted remote access to
Franchisee’s network and each device containing Franchisor’s Software to install modifications, fixes,
service releases and new versions of Franchisor’s Software, conduct software audits, and to provide training
and support. Franchisee acknowledges and agrees that (i) Franchisee install reasonable security protection
on its network; (ii) remote access may reduce or disable the effectiveness of security protection; and (iii)
neither Franchisor nor any party acting on behalf of Franchisor will be liable for any claims, demands,
damages, costs or expenses that arise or are in any way connected with the remote access to Franchisee’s
network described herein. Franchisee further understands and acknowledges that such remote access allows
Franchisor to have full access to the data generated by Franchisee and to retrieve and use any such data
without limitation.

5.5. Accountants or Other Professional Consultants. Franchisee must engage such third party
providers as specified by Franchisor to assist with set up of Franchisor’s Software and Franchisee must sign
a release in a form acceptable to Franchisor to authorize such provider to provide Franchisor certain
financial and other information to enable set up to be completed to Franchisor’s satisfaction.

5.6. Use of Certified Public Accountant. During the term of this Agreement Franchisee agrees
that all annual financial reports and statements required by Franchisor must be prepared by a Certified
Public Accountant and must be provided both in a form that complies with generally accepted accounting
principles and in any other form deemed necessary by Franchisor or its designee.

6. Fees

6.1. Fees to Franchisor. Franchisor’s performance obligations and Franchisee’s rights to receive
performance under the TA are conditioned upon Franchisee’s payment of the Fees set forth in the Schedule
A of this TA. Franchisee must pay to Franchisor all fees described in Schedule A of this TA. Fees are
exclusive of applicable taxes.

6.2. Software Support Fee. Upon signing this TA, Franchisee will pay Franchisor a Software
Support Fee, which is currently $4,495. Franchisor may increase these fees, and/or modify the services that
are provided by the Franchisor or its designee for these fees, provided Franchisee is notified of any changes
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applicable to Franchisee. This fee is subject to change based on development and enhancement of various
elements of Franchisor’s Software and Franchisor’s required Third Party Software. The Software Support
Fee is described in Schedule A.

6.3. Maintenance and Support Fees. Beginning three months after the Effective Date of the
Franchise Agreement (or beginning with the 1st month of the term of a renewal Franchise Agreement if
applicable) Franchisee must pay to Franchisor a monthly Maintenance and Support Fee via automatic bank
draft. The amount of such fees will be the then-current amount charged for the monthly Maintenance and
Support by Franchisor to franchisees of Franchisor. Monthly fee shall be subject to an increase of 3% each
January. Franchisor may increase monthly fees, or modify the services that are provided for these fees, in
its sole discretion, provided Franchisee is notified of any changes applicable to Franchisee. Maintenance
and Support Fees are detailed in Schedule A.

6.4. Agreements With Other Professional Consultants. Franchisee agrees to engage the services
of other professional consultants from time to time as required or suggested by Franchisor to assist with the
training, implementation, or deployment of hardware, software or other technology.

6.5. Late Payments. Any payment to be made by Franchisee that is not made within 10 days after
such payment is due will bear interest at the rate of 12% per annum, or the highest rate allowed by law,
whichever is less.

7. Confidentiality and Limited Access

7.1. Nondisclosure. Franchisee agrees to maintain Franchisor’s Software, including its
Documentation and the data generated by the use of Franchisor’s Software in confidence by using at least
the same physical and other security measures that Franchisee uses for its own confidential information.
Franchisee further agrees not to allow anyone to access or use Franchisor’s Software or to see its
Documentation or the data it generates other than Franchisee’s employees, agents and representatives who
have a need to have access to or to use Franchisor’s Software in order to support Franchisee’s authorized
use thereof, provided that each such employee, agent and representative must have signed an undertaking
to Franchisee, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, acknowledging that he or she is bound by an obligation
of confidentiality. Specifically, Franchisee’s accountant(s) or other professional consultants must agree in
writing, in a form satisfactory to Franchisor, to maintain confidentiality of Franchisor’s Software, its
documentation and the data generated by the use of Franchisor’s Software and that such accountant(s) must
not use Franchisor’s Software, its documentation or any portion thereof, except as allowed by and in
furtherance of the purposes of this agreement. Franchisee may not, at any time during or after the term of
the Franchise Agreement, disclose, copy or use any Confidential Information except as specifically
authorized by Franchisor

7.2. Notice of Loss. Franchisee must immediately notify Franchisor upon discovering any loss or
theft of any copy of Franchisor’s Software or its documentation or any data generated by its use, or any
unauthorized disclosure thereof by any of Franchisee’s employees, agents or representatives.

8. Representations; Warranties; Limitation of Liability; Indemnification

8.1. Disclaimer of Warranty. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED HEREIN,
NEITHER FRANCHISOR NOR ANY AFFILIATE OF FRANCHISOR MAKES ANY EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED WARRANTY WHATSOEVER. FRANCHISOR AND ALL AFFILIATES OF
FRANCHISOR EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. FRANCHISOR
SPECIFICALLY MAKES NO WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMS ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED
WARRANTY RELATING TO ANY SOFTWARE, COMPUTER PROGRAM, DATA, INTRANET,
WEBSITE OR OTHER RELATED ITEMS PROVIDED OR RECOMMENDED BY
FRANCHISOR. FRANCHISOR DISCLAIMS ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY THAT
FRANCHISOR WILL CORRECT ALL SOFTWARE DEFECTS.
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8.2. Specific Warranty Disclaimers. WITHOUT LIMITING ANY DISCLAIMER OF
WARRANTY IN SECTION 8.1, FRANCHISOR SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY
WARRANTY THAT FRANCHISOR’S SOFTWARE OR DOCUMENTATION:

(a). will meet Franchisees’ requirements;

(b). will adhere to any quality standards;

(c). will be uninterrupted, timely, secure, bug-free or error-free;
(d). will be free from harmful code;

(e). will produce effective, accurate or reliable results;

(f). will meet Franchisees’ expectations; or

(g). will be free from technical or other mistakes, inaccuracies or typographical
errors.

8.3. Limitation of Liability. THE LIABILITY OF FRANCHISOR TO FRANCHISEE WILL
BE LIMITED TO DIRECT DAMAGES NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID BY
FRANCHISEE TO FRANCHISOR IN THE MOST RECENT 12 MONTH PERIOD. INNO EVENT
WILL FRANCHISOR BE LIABLE FOR INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, OR
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING LOST PROFITS), even if Franchisor has previously
been advised of the possibility of such damages. In addition, Franchisor will have no liability for
remotely accessing Franchisees’ network, or any errors or omissions in any way related to work
performed by accountant(s), consultants or other professionals using Franchisor’s software
(including the financial system or customized management software), regardless of any permission,
approval or acceptance of accountants or others by Franchisor.

8.4. Franchisor’s Software and Franchisee’s Right to Indemnification. If a third party claims
that Franchisor’s Software infringes any U.S. patent, copyright, or trade secret, Franchisor will (as long as
Franchisee has fully complied with and is not in default under, this Agreement or any other agreement with
Franchisor or any of Franchisor’s affiliates) defend Franchisee against such claim at Franchisor’s expense
and pay all damages that a court finally awards, provided that Franchisee promptly notifies Franchisor in
writing of the claim, and allows Franchisor to control, and Franchisee cooperates with Franchisor in, the
defense or any related settlement negotiations. If such a claim is made or appears possible, Franchisor may,
at its option, secure for Franchisee the right to continue to use Franchisor’s Software, or modify or replace
Franchisor’s Software so that it is non-infringing. If neither of the foregoing options is available in
Franchisor’s judgment, Franchisor may terminate the license granted by this TA and require Franchisee to
return Franchisor’s Software without compensation. Franchisor has no obligation with respect to any claim
based on a version of Franchisor’s Software that is modified without Franchisor’s authorization or is
combined, operated or used with any product, data, or apparatus not specified or approved by Franchisor.
THIS PARAGRAPH STATES THE ENTIRE OBLIGATION OF FRANCHISOR AND
FRANCHISOR’S AFFILIATES TO FRANCHISEE WITH RESPECT TO ANY CLAIM OF
INFRINGEMENT.

8.5. Franchisor’s Right to Indemnification. Franchisee must indemnify, hold harmless, and
defend Franchisor, its affiliates, and their agents and employees, in accordance with this Section, against
any loss arising from or in connection with, or resulting from, and will be limited to any claim that materials
or Content furnished by Franchisee infringe or misappropriate any third party copyright or trademark rights.

8.6. Tax and Accounting Disclaimer. Franchisee agrees, acknowledges and understands that use
of Franchisor’s Software is for the purposes of assisting Franchisee with maintenance of certain books,
records and reports useful to Franchisee and which may be required pursuant to the Franchise Agreement
between Franchisee and Franchisor. Franchisor’s Software is not intended, and Franchisor specifically
disclaims any representation or warranty regarding use of Franchisor’s Software, to produce records or
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reports that comply with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) or Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) policies and guidelines. It is Franchisee’s sole responsibility to comply with any applicable
requirements of law or otherwise relating to GAAP or IRS policies and requirements.

9. Miscellaneous

9.1. Remedies. Franchisee acknowledges that any breach of the covenants set forth in Sections
2.1.,2.2.(a), (c), (d) or (f) or Section 7 of this TA would cause irreparable damage to Franchisor that would
be incapable of precise measurement and for which no adequate remedy would exist at law. Franchisee
agrees that injunctive relief will be available for any such breach in addition to all other remedies that may
be available.

9.2. Notices. All notices, requests, consents and other communications required or permitted
by this Agreement must be in writing and delivered by hand, overnight delivery service, or registered or
certified first class mail, to then-current address of the recipient known by the sender, to the attention of the
person then holding the title of the person signing this Agreement on behalf of the recipient. Any such
notice, request, consent or other communication will be deemed given and effective upon receipt at such
address.

9.3. Entire Agreement; Amendments. This TA constitutes the entire understanding between
the parties relating to the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior agreements, arrangements and
understandings between the parties relating to its subject matter. This TA may not be amended or changed
in any way unless such changes are in writing signed by the parties hereto.

9.4. Waiver. No delay, omission or failure to exercise any right or remedy provided for herein
will be deemed to be a waiver thereof or acquiescence in the event giving rise to such right or remedy. No
waiver will be binding unless contained in a writing signed by the party waiving its rights. Any waiver is
limited to the specific situation in which it is given and no waiver of any breach or default under this
Agreement will be construed as a waiver of any earlier or succeeding breach or default.

9.5. Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Texas applicable to agreements made and to be performed entirely within the State
of Texas, without regard to Texas’s conflicts of law principles.

9.6. Forum. The parties hereby irrevocably consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the
federal and state courts located in Waco, McLennan County, Texas, in any action for temporary, interim or
provisional equitable remedies. The parties hereby waive, to the full extent permitted by law, defenses
based on jurisdiction, venue and forum non-conveniens. The parties further consent to service of process
by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by any other means permitted by law.

9.7. Costs, Expenses and Attorneys’ Fees. If an action is commenced between the parties to
enforce any provision of this TA, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable costs and expenses,
including attorneys’ fees.

[The next page is the signature page. |
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Intending to be legally bound, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement to be
effective on the Effective Date first set forth above.
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Franchise Agreement | 2025

FRANCHISEE:

Name:
Title:

GUARANTORS:

, individually

, individually

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:
Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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Appendix A

Required Software

Franchisor requires Franchisee to use any or all of software as required by Franchisor.

Franchisor’s required software includes financial related software such as a QuickBooks template that
allows formatting of financial information to coordinate with our systems and industry-specific job
costing capability (the “Financial System”) and software which provides and combines contact
management, sales and lead tracking management, job estimating and proposal generation, and which
produces take-off lists for production and any electronic or manual interfaces with Franchisor’s
required accounting software (“Customized Management Software”).

Franchisor’s required software includes software developed after the effective date of this Agreement.
Franchisor may require an additional fee subsequent to the effective date of this TA for additional
required software products, software services or Upgrades to Major Versions of Franchisor’s required
software.

Franchisor requires that Franchisee use the following Third Party Software:

>
>

YV V V V V

>

Microsoft Windows® 11 or higher or, if using a Macintosh, the current version of macOS
Microsoft® 365 Business Standard subscription

Anti-virus program of your choice, to protect your computer system and data. Windows Defender®
supplied with Windows 11 is acceptable (make sure it is active)

Internet Browser: Microsoft Edge, version 100 or later or Google Chrome, version 100 or later
Adobe Acrobat Portable Document File (PDF) Reader (Adobe Acrobat Pro recommended)
Required design software including Virtual Reality (VR) capabilities

Required construction management software

Online backup and recovery service (OneDrive is included in the Microsoft 365 Business Standard
subscription)

Quickbooks Advanced Online

Required Third Party Software may be amended or added after the effective date of this Agreement.

Franchisee shall enter into an arrangement with a qualified vendor to provide IT support and maintenance;
provided that Franchisor may waive this requirement if Franchisee demonstrates, to Franchisor’s
satisfaction, that Franchisee has adequate in-house IT expertise and resources.
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Appendix B

Hardware Requirements and Specifications

Franchisee must purchase and use a minimum of two computers in connection with the Franchised
Business, and all Required Software must be installed and used as required by Franchisor.

Franchisee’s computers must be equipped with adequate memory, speed and storage to run all Required
Software. Much of the Required Software is accessed via the Internet. If high-speed Internet access is not
available, slower speeds may impact some support available to you and limit the performance of the
required software. For optimum performance, all computers are to be connected via hardwired Ethernet
cabling to a hub, switch or router. Wi-Fi connections may be affected by reduced network speed.

Franchisor is not obligated to provide or assist Franchisee in obtaining computer hardware. Franchisee may
acquire computer hardware from any source. Franchisee may use any brand of computer that will run the
Required Software.

Required Computer Hardware

Desktops and / or laptop with docking station with the following minimum specifications:

Processor / CPU:
o Designer Usage:
= Intel i7 8 cores w/Intel Hyper-Threading or AMD equivalent processor; 16GB
RAM (or higher); 500GB (or higher) solid state hard drive.
o Regular Usage:
= Intel i5 or AMD equivalent processor; 16GB RAM (or higher); 500GB (or higher)
solid state hard drive.
Operating System:
o PC: Microsoft Windows 11 or higher
o Macintosh: Mac OS Ventura, or higher
Two monitors (19” minimum) with a resolution of at least 1680 x 1050.
o Laptops must connect to the two screens as noted above. Docking stations are

recommended.
o Laptop screen must be a 15” with a resolution of at least 1366 x 768.
Graphics Card:

o Designer Usage:
= PC - NVIDIA RTX 3060 or greater, or AMD RX 6600XT or greater.
=  Mac— AMD Radeon Pro 5300.
o Regular Usage:
= PC—-NVIDIA GTX 1060 or greater, or AMD RX 480 or greater.
= Mac— AMD Radeon Pro 5300.
Video Output: Compatible HDMI 1.3 port
USB Ports: 3 x USB 3.0 port + 1 x USB 2.0 port
Internal mic, headset, and webcam.
Compatible peripherals (keyboard mouse; and other typical interface cards and devices).

File Storage — Servers

We recommend a cloud-based file storage solution. (OneDrive is included in Microsoft 365 Business
Standard subscription)

Other Required Equipment

Scanner: high-quality (Fujitsu® iX500 ScanSnap Document Scanner or similar).
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e Printer: high-quality (HP LaserJet Pro M452nw Wireless Color Printer or similar).
e  Or Printer/Scanner: (HP LaserJet Pro M283fdw with Scanner or similar).

You must pay for all maintenance of your computer(s) at your own expense. We do not require you to sign
any hardware maintenance or support contracts with us or any third-party suppliers. We do not guarantee,
warranty, maintain or support any computer hardware in any manner. You should determine for yourself
whether or not any third-party supplier from whom you purchase any component of your computer system
is obligated to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates to any component of your
computer system and determine the additional cost for the services. We will periodically advise you in
writing of any required upgrades to your computer hardware and we will give you a reasonable period of
time in which to comply with any required upgrades.
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Schedule A
Fees
Software Support Fee

Upon signing the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee must pay Franchisor a Software Support Fee in
connection with Franchisee’s use of required software. Franchisor may increase such fee, or modify the
services that are provided by Franchisor or Franchisor’s designee for such fee, but Franchisor will notify
Franchisee of any changes applicable to Franchisee. This fee is subject to change and may increase in the
future. Additional software-related fees may be required under this Agreement if Franchisor requires
additional software in the future, including any Upgrade to a Major Version of Franchisor’s required
software.

Maintenance and Support Fee

Beginning three months after the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement (or beginning with the first
month of the term of your renewal Franchise Agreement if you are presently a franchisee), Franchisee must
pay Franchisor a monthly Maintenance and Support Fee. The amount of such fees will be the then-current
amount Franchisor charges to franchisees for monthly Maintenance and Support fees. Monthly fee shall
be subject to an increase of 3% each January. Franchisor may increase monthly fees, or modify the services
that are provided for such fees, but Franchisor will notify Franchisee of any applicable changes.
Maintenance and Support Fees do not include fees required for an Upgrade to a Major Version of
Franchisor’s Software or Franchisor’s required Third Party Software.

The monthly fee includes Basic Support of the Franchisor’s required software. Franchisor will make its
best effort to respond within 48 hours of the support requires. Up to two calls per month, with a maximum
duration of one hour per call, are included at no additional charge. Call Hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00
p.m. Central Time. For calls exceeding the limit, the following charges apply:

e Phone support during Call Hours will be charged $150 per hour.
e Phone support outside of Call Hours will be charged at $300 per hour.

Software Administrative Enforcement Fee

If, within the time allotted by Franchisor pursuant to written notice, Franchisee does not purchase, install,
or execute agreements governing the terms of Franchisor’s required software, Franchisor may require that
Franchisee pay to Franchisor, a software administrative enforcement fee for each occurrence under this TA.

Late Fee

Any payment not made within 10 days after a payment is due will bear interest at the rate of 1/2% per month
or the maximum interest rate permitted under law, whichever is less.

Type Of Expenditure Amount Method Of When Due
Payment

Software Support Fee $4,495 Cashier’s Check | Upon Signature

Maintenance and Support Fee $515 ACH Draft Monthly

Software Administrative $1,000 ACH Draft Upon Notice

Enforcement Fee

Late Fee 1 %% of Outstanding Over ACH Draft > 10 Days of
Due Amount Any Payment

Due Date
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EXHIBIT B-5 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
RIGHT OF PUBLICITY GENERAL RELEASE

I hereby irrevocably authorize Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business
as DREAMMAKER BATH AND KITCHEN (the “Corporation”), having a principal place of business
at 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710 and its successors and assigns, to use any existing
photographs, videotapes, or other electronic imaging taken by me or in my rightful possession and given to
the Corporation, and to use any existing photographs, videotapes or other electronic imaging of me and/or
take any photographs, videotapes or other electronic imaging of me, along with any testimonial I may give,
together with or without my name, likeness and/or information about me, for use in any way the Corporation
may desire, alone or in conjunction with others, in the marketing, advertising, training, publicity and
promotion, anywhere in the world and through any medium, of the activities of the Corporation, their
successors and assigns, without payment to me.

I understand and agree that I will have no claim against the corporation or any other person, firm or
corporation by reason of any such use of the above-referenced photographs, videotapes or other electronic
imaging whether or not of me, my name, likeness and/or information about me. I further understand and
agree that any images taken of me and/or given by me to the Corporation are the property of the Corporation.

Signature:

Printed Name:

Date:
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EXHIBIT B-6 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF INFORMATION (VENDORS)

The undersigned operates a DREAMMAKER KITCHEN & BATH business (the “Franchised Business™)
pursuant to a franchise agreement with Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN (“DreamMaker”).

[ understand that it is important to the operation of my Franchised Business and to the franchise system for
DreamMaker and its agents and employees to be able to communicate with vendors and suppliers of my
Franchised Business.

Accordingly, I irrevocably authorize DreamMaker, and its agents and employees, to communicate with all
vendors and suppliers of my Franchised Business, and to obtain from my vendors and suppliers information
about my Franchised Business, including purchase history and cost information. I likewise authorize and
direct each of my vendors and suppliers to provide any such information requested by DreamMaker. 1
hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless DreamMaker, its agents and employees, and each of my
vendors and suppliers, who rely on this authorization, from and against all claims and liability arising out
of or related to communications and dissemination of information in reliance on this authorization.

This authorization and indemnity is a continuing one and shall remain in full force and effect throughout
the term of my franchise agreement (including renewals) and for a three-year period following termination
or expiration of my franchise agreement.

The undersigned has read the foregoing in its entirety before signing.

FRANCHISEE:

BY:

Name:

Title:

Date:
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EXHIBIT B-7 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

STATE SPECIFIC AMENDMENTS
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR RESIDENTS OF CALIFORNIA

This ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTS OF CALIFORNIA amends that
certain franchise agreement between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with an address of 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202,
Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and ,a (“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into a Franchise
Agreement (the “Agreement”) and the parties wish to amend the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that for and in consideration
of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the
Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1. California Corporations Code section 31201 makes it unlawful for any person to offer or sell a
franchise in California by means of any unfiled written or oral communication which includes an untrue
statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

2. California Corporations Code sections 31512 provides that any condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the
California Franchise Investment Law or any rule or order thereunder is void.

3. Sections 15L(1) through (4) of the Franchise Agreement and Exhibits B-8 and B-9 (Franchisee
Disclosure Questionnaire) are void.

4, No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee or prospective franchisee
in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as
waiving any claim of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance
on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor, broker or other
person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a franchisee’s investment. This
provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in connection with the
franchise.

5. Sections 15(L)(1-5 and 6) are deleted.

6. California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1) states that
any provision of a franchise agreement or related document requiring the franchisee to waive specific
provisions of the law is contrary to public policy and is void and unenforceable. The law also prohibits a
franchisor from disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees, or its agents make to you, (ii)
your ability to rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any violations of the law.

7. Any interest rate charged to a California franchisee shall comply with the California Constitution.
The interest rate shall not exceed either (a) 10% annually or (b) 5% annually plus the prevailing interest
rate charged to banks by the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco, whichever is higher.

8. All other provisions of this Franchise Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed.

[The next page is the signature page.]
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR RESIDENTS OF ILLINOIS

This ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTS OF ILLINOIS amends that
certain franchise agreement between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with an address of 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202,
Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and ,a (“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into a Franchise
Agreement (the “Agreement”) and the parties wish to amend the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that for and in consideration
of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the
Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office requires that certain provisions contained in franchise
documents be amended to be consistent with Illinois law, including the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act
of 1987 (“Act”), 815 ILCS 705/1-44. To the extent that this Franchise Agreement contains provisions that
are inconsistent with the following, such provisions are hereby amended:

Illinois law governs the Franchise Agreement.

b. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State
of Illinois is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place
outside of Illinois.

c. Franchisee’s rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in Sections 19 and 20
of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

d. In conformance with Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any condition,
stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

2. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

3. Sections 15(L)(1-5 and 6) are deleted.

4. All other provisions of this Franchise Agreement are hereby ratified and confirmed.

[The next page is the signature page.]
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR RESIDENTS OF MARYLAND

This ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTS OF MARYLAND amends that
certain franchise agreement between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with an address of 4547 Lake Shore, Suite 202,
Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and ,a (“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into a Franchise
Agreement (the “Agreement”) and wish to amend certain terms of the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Agreement is amended as follows:

1. Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.161, the general release required as a condition of renewal, sale,
and assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.

2. Any provision requiring Franchisee to bring an action against Franchisor in any state other than
Maryland shall not apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
Franchisee may bring an action in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration
and Disclosure Law.

3. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of
liability are not intended to, nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under
the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

4, Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Franchise Agreement, any claims arising
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within three years after
the grant of the franchise.

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

6. Sections 15(L)(1-5 and 6) are deleted.

7. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Franchise
Agreement, the terms of this Amendment shall prevail.

[The next page is the signature page.]
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR RESIDENTS OF MINNESOTA

This ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTS OF MINNESOTA amends that
certain franchise agreement between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with an address of 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202,
Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and ,a (“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into a Franchise
Agreement (the “Agreement”) and the parties wish to amend the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that for and in consideration of good
and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Agreement is
hereby amended as follows:

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, in the event of a conflict between the
provisions of the Agreement and the provisions of this Addendum, the provisions of this Addendum shall
control. The parties agree that the Agreement remains fully effective in all respects except as specifically
modified herein, and all the respective rights and obligations of Franchisee and Franchisor remain as written
unless modified herein.

2. Franchisor will undertake the defense of any claim of infringement by third parties involving the
mark DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®, and Franchisee will cooperate with the defense in any
reasonable manner required by Franchisor with any direct cost of such cooperation to be borne by
Franchisor.

3. Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination and nonrenewal rights. As of the date
of this Franchise Agreement, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subd. 3, 4 and 5 require, except in certain specified
cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice
for nonrenewal of the franchise agreement.

4, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be
conducted outside Minnesota, requiring a waiver of a jury trial, or requiring you to consent to liquidated
damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure
Document or Franchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce (1) any of your rights as provided for in
Minnesota Statutes 1984, Chapter 80C, or (2) your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for
by the laws of the jurisdiction.

5. Section 3.P. (Dishonored Checks) is amended to provide that any nonsufficient funds charge shall
not exceed $30 per each dishonored check, draft, order of withdrawal, or similar negotiable or
nonnegotiable instrument.

6. Section 14.F. (Limitations Period for Bringing Claims) is amended to provide that any claims
arising under the Minnesota Franchise Act must be brought within three years after the date the cause of
action occurs.

7. Section 15.Q. (Waiver of Claims, Rights, and Remedies) and Section 15.R. (Waiver of Jury Trial)
are hereby deleted.
8. No Section providing for a general release as a condition of renewal or transfer will act as a release

or waiver of any liability incurred under the Minnesota Franchise Act; provided, that this part shall not bar
the voluntary settlement of disputes.

9. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
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made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

10. Sections 15(L)(1-5 and 6) are deleted.

11. Each provision of this Amendment is effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision,
that the jurisdictional requirements of Minnesota Statutes Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22 are met independently
without reference to this addendum.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the date first shown above.

FRANCHISEE:

BY:

Name:

Title:

Date:

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:
Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT,
QUESTIONNAIRE, AND RELATED AGREEMENTS

This ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR RESIDENTS OF WASHINGTON amends that
certain franchise agreement between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing
business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with an address of 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202,
Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and ,a (“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into a Franchise
Agreement (the “Agreement”) and wish to amend certain terms of the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Agreement is amended as follows:

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act,
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may
supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination
and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration
or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In
addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be
enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual
costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee,
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement,
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for
inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with
these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i)
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement
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made by franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

Sections 15(L)(1-5 and 6) are deleted.
The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the date first shown above.

FRANCHISEE:

BY:

Name:

Title:

Date:

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:
Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® Washington Addendum
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EXHIBIT B-8 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE

The following questionnaire is not applicable to franchisees subject to the laws of the states of
California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This Franchisee Acknowledgment is not applicable to and shall not be used as to any franchise offer
and/or sale involving any California resident and/or franchisee as the Franchisee Disclosure
Questionnaires violation California Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1.

You are preparing to enter into a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® Franchise Agreement. The
purpose of this Questionnaire is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that
DreamMaker has not authorized and that may be untrue or misleading.

1. Establishment of New Business. The purchase of a DreamMaker Franchise is primarily the
purchase of a license to establish and operate a business under the DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN
® name and trademark. You must operate the Franchise in accordance with our business format. You
understand and acknowledge that the operation of a new business involves a number of business risks,
which exist in connection with any business.

2. Ability to Operate a DREAMMAKER Franchise. The ability to operate a profitable
Franchise requires some level of business and management skills and the capability of providing good
customer service. Our franchisees must always provide excellence in customer service. How you treat
customers is critical to the Franchise.

3. Importance of Your Effort. Starting a business is a complicated undertaking and will
require both a financial investment and a commitment of personal time to work at and on the business a
substantial number of hours per week. Although we will provide assistance and advice, we cannot guarantee
your success as a franchisee. The earnings and profits that you earn as a franchisee will depend upon your
own individual efforts in operating your Franchise. You understand that the success or failure of your
Franchise may depend primarily on your local marketing efforts and you agree to engage actively and
continuously in local marketing efforts such as door hangers, flyer distribution, placement of advertisements
in local newspapers and magazines, directories, and otherwise as we recommend. Your failure to follow
the DreamMaker System may have a negative effect on the Franchise.

4. Additional Funds and Financial Requirements. In our Franchise Disclosure Document, we
have disclosed an ESTIMATE of the amount of additional funds that you should have available to invest
in the Franchise in the start-up phase. However, no amount of investment can guarantee you will have a
profitable Franchise.

5. Pricing of Products and Services. To the extent that we do not establish maximum,
minimum, or other pricing requirements, as an independent business owner, you must establish your own
pricing for products and services sold by your Franchise. Should you elect to price products and services
too low, you may adversely affect your profit margin. Should you elect to set your prices too high, you may
lose business to your competitors.

6. Training and Support. We produce and distribute various training materials, programs,
manuals and newsletters to our franchisees, and we facilitate the holding of local, regional and/or national
conferences in order to encourage networking and exchange of ideas for the purpose of making your
Franchise more profitable. While we can make recommendations and suggestions on how to improve your
Franchise, it is up to you to avail yourself of and use the information and ideas we provide.

7. Competition. Each of the services you provide are provided by others and new competitors
may appear at any time within your Territory although these competitors are not licensed to use our System

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
Franchise Agreement | 2025 1 Exhibit B-8



or our Marks. It is also possible that another DreamMaker franchise may be located near or adjacent to your
Territory.

8. Taxes, Fees and Governmental Regulations. Your Franchise is a business operation and
will be required to pay all existing and any new taxes and fees imposed on businesses by various
governmental entities. Your Franchise will be subject to a variety of federal, state, and local laws and
governmental regulations, including local licensing requirements, safety matters, environmental matters,
toxic and hazardous materials, compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), OSHA, EEO,
and any new or proposed legislation. You understand that we cannot advise you with regard to all such laws
and it is your responsibility to know and comply with them.

9. Complaints and Litigation. Occasionally, we may receive complaints from or be served
with lawsuits by our franchisees or customers of our franchisees alleging misconduct and/or a violation of
law. Adverse publicity resulting from such allegations may materially affect us and all of our franchisees,
regardless of whether such allegations are true. On occasion, we will file suit against franchisees or former
franchisees to enforce the terms of the franchise agreement. While we believe we have not violated any
franchise laws or misled or defrauded any prospective franchisees, we cannot provide any assurance that
an adverse result may not occur.

10. Liability Insurance. You may, from time to time, receive complaints from or be served with
lawsuits by customers alleging breach of contract or other misconduct resulting from your operation of the
Franchise. Because you are licensed to use our trade name in your operation of the Franchise, we are
occasionally included in these lawsuits. If we are sued because of something you have allegedly done or
failed to do, you must defend us in the lawsuit. As a result, you must carry proper insurance on the Franchise
and you must name us as an additional insured. If you do not carry the proper coverage or if you fail to
defend us, we may cancel your Franchise Agreement.

11. Renewal Option at End of Term. Your Franchise Agreement gives you a license to operate
a Franchise for an initial term of 10 years. At the end of the 10 years, if you have complied with the terms
of the Franchise Agreement, you may renew your Franchise by executing the then-current franchise
agreement and complying with all other requirements for renewal. If we refuse to renew your Franchise
Agreement because you have not complied with the Franchise Agreement or if you choose not to renew
your Franchise Agreement, you may be required to turn your customer list and your telephone numbers and
electric identities, including domain names, over to us and/or you may be prohibited from operating any
similar business which competes with us or our franchisees for a period of two years in your Territory.

12. Use of Independent Professional Advisers. We recommend that you consult with your own
independent advisors in order to satisfy yourself concerning your ability to establish and operate a profitable
business, taking into account the amount of working capital you have available, your anticipated debt
service, your expenses, etc.

Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide responses.

a. Have you received and carefully reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document
provided to you?

Yes No

b. Did you sign a receipt page for the Franchise Disclosure Document indicating
the date you received it?

Yes No
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c. Have you received and carefully reviewed the DreamMaker Franchise
Agreement and each exhibit and schedule attached to the Franchise

Agreement?
Yes No
13. Do you understand that you may not rely on, and we will not be bound by (i) any

representation or statement other than those included in our franchise disclosure document; or (ii) any
promise or obligation that is not specifically set forth in the Franchise Agreement or an exhibit or schedule
attached to the Franchise Agreement?

Yes No
14. Have you been given the opportunity, whether or not you may have done so, to discuss the
risks of operating a DreamMaker Franchise with an attorney, accountant or other professional advisor?

Yes No

a. Do you understand that the purchase of a DreamMaker Franchise is a business
decision that has many of the same risks associated with starting any type of
business and that the success or failure of your DreamMaker Franchise will
depend in large part upon your skills and abilities, the number of hours you
work, your ability to follow and apply the DreamMaker System and methods
of doing business, competition from other businesses providing the same
services, interest rates, inflation, the economy, labor costs, supply costs, and
other economic and business factors?

Yes No
b. Do you understand and acknowledge that DreamMaker cannot guarantee the
success of your DreamMaker Franchise or that it will ever achieve
profitability?

Yes No
c. Do you understand that in all dealings with you, the officers, directors,
employees and agents of DreamMaker act only in a representative capacity
and not in an individual capacity and such dealings are solely between you and

DreamMaker?
Yes No
15. Do you understand that any information concerning the revenue, profits, income or costs

of a DREAMMAKER Franchise that was given to you by one of our franchisees is not information obtained
from our employees or representatives, and we make no representation about the information’s accuracy?

Yes No
a. IF YOU ANSWERED “NO” TO ANY OF QUESTIONS 1 THROUGH 9,
PLEASE INDICATE THE NUMBER(S) OF THE QUESTION(S) AND
PROVIDE A FURTHER EXPLANATION OF YOUR ANSWER(S) IN THE
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SPACE PROVIDED BELOW. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF
NECESSARY. IF YOU ANSWERED “YES” TO ALL OF QUESTIONS 1
THROUGH 9, PLEASE LEAVE THE LINES BLANK.

Question No. Explanation

Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide responses. When answering these
questions, please remember that a DreamMaker franchisee is not a DreamMaker representative for the
purposes of answering these questions.

b. Other than any statements specifically provided in Item 19 of our Franchise
Disclosure Document, have any employee or representative of DreamMaker
made any promise, prediction, guarantee, projection or other statement
concerning the revenues, profits and/or income of a DREAMMAKER
Franchise?

Yes No

c. Have any of our employees or representatives made any promise, prediction,
guarantee, projection or other statement about the amount of money you may
earn or the revenue or profits that you should or might expect to achieve as a
franchisee that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in
our Franchise Disclosure Document?

Yes No
d. Has any employee or representative of DreamMaker made any statement or
promise regarding the costs you may incur in operating a DreamMaker
Franchise; the advertising, marketing, training, support service or assistance
that DreamMaker will furnish to you; or any other statement, promise or
agreement that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in
the Franchise Disclosure Document provided to you?

Yes No
16. Has any employee or representative of DreamMaker made any statement, promise or
agreement concerning the amount or type of national account customers that may be available to you should
you purchase a DreamMaker Franchise?

Yes No

DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
Franchise Agreement | 2025 4 Exhibit B-8



a. IFYOU ANSWERED “YES” TO ANY OF QUESTIONS 11 THROUGH 14,
PLEASE INDICATE THE NUMBER(S) OF THE QUESTION(S) AND
PROVIDE A FURTHER EXPLANATION OF YOUR ANSWER(S) IN THE
SPACE PROVIDED. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IT NECESSARY.
IF YOU ANSWERED “NO” TO ALL OF QUESTIONS 11 THROUGH 14
ABOVE, PLEASE LEAVE THE LINES BLANK.

Question No. Explanation

You understand that your answers are important and that we will rely on them when making our decision
to award you a Franchise. By signing below, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the
above questions and that you FULLY UNDERSTAND AND ACCEPT ALL OF THE BUSINESS RISKS
described above.

The following language applies only to transactions governed by the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law

All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

The following language applies only to transactions governed by the California Franchise
Investment Law

To the extent that the transaction is governed by the California Franchise Investment Law, the Franchise
Disclosure Questionnaire is void.

Date Signature of Franchisee
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EXHIBIT B-9 TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE QUESTIONNAIRE - TRANSFER

The following questionnaire is not applicable to franchisees subject to the laws of the states of
California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This Franchisee Acknowledgment is not applicable to and shall not be used as to any franchise offer
and/or sale involving any California resident and/or franchisee as the Franchisee Disclosure
Questionnaires violation California Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1.

You are preparing to enter into a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN® Franchise Agreement.
The purpose of this Questionnaire is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you
that DreamMaker has not authorized and that may be untrue or misleading.

1. Establishment of New Business. The purchase of a DreamMaker Franchise is primarily the
purchase of a license to establish and operate a business under the DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN®
name and trademark. You must operate the Franchise in accordance with our business format. You
understand and acknowledge that the operation of a new business involves a number of business risks,
which exist in connection with any business.

2. Ability to Operate a DREAMMAKER Franchise. The ability to operate a profitable
Franchise requires some level of business and management skills and the capability of providing good
customer service. Our franchisees must always provide excellence in customer service. How you treat
customers is critical to the Franchise.

3. Importance of Your Effort. Starting a business is a complicated undertaking and will
require both a financial investment and a commitment of personal time to work at and on the business a
substantial number of hours per week. Although we will provide assistance and advice, we cannot guarantee
your success as a franchisee. The earnings and profits that you earn as a franchisee will depend upon your
own individual efforts in operating your Franchise. You understand that the success or failure of your
Franchise may depend primarily on your local marketing efforts and you agree to engage actively and
continuously in local marketing efforts such as door hangers, flyer distribution, placement of advertisements
in local newspapers and magazines, directories, and otherwise as we recommend. Your failure to follow
the DreamMaker System may have a negative effect on the Franchise.

4. Additional Funds and Financial Requirements. In our Franchise Disclosure Document, we
have disclosed an ESTIMATE of the amount of additional funds that you should have available to invest
in the Franchise in the start-up phase. However, no amount of investment can guarantee you will have a
profitable Franchise.

5. Pricing of Products and Services. To the extent that we do not establish maximum,
minimum, or other pricing requirements, as an independent business owner, you must establish your own
pricing for products and services sold by your Franchise. Should you elect to price products and services
too low, you may adversely affect your profit margin. Should you elect to set your prices too high, you may
lose business to your competitors.

6. Training and Support. We produce and distribute various training materials, programs,
manuals and newsletters to our franchisees, and we facilitate the holding of local, regional and/or national
conferences in order to encourage networking and exchange of ideas for the purpose of making your
Franchise more profitable. While we can make recommendations and suggestions on how to improve your
Franchise, it is up to you to avail yourself of and use the information and ideas we provide.

7. Competition. Each of the services you provide are provided by others and new competitors
may appear at any time within your Territory although these competitors are not licensed to use our System
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or our Marks. It is also possible that another DreamMaker franchise may be located near or adjacent to your
Territory.

8. Taxes, Fees and Governmental Regulations. Your Franchise is a business operation and
will be required to pay all existing and any new taxes and fees imposed on businesses by various
governmental entities. Your Franchise will be subject to a variety of federal, state, and local laws and
governmental regulations, including local licensing requirements, safety matters, environmental matters,
toxic and hazardous materials, compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), OSHA, EEO,
and any new or proposed legislation. You understand that we cannot advise you with regard to all such laws
and it is your responsibility to know and comply with them.

9. Complaints and Litigation. Occasionally, we may receive complaints from or be served
with lawsuits by our franchisees or customers of our franchisees alleging misconduct and/or a violation of
law. Adverse publicity resulting from such allegations may materially affect us and all of our franchisees,
regardless of whether such allegations are true. On occasion, we will file suit against franchisees or former
franchisees to enforce the terms of the franchise agreement. While we believe we have not violated any
franchise laws or misled or defrauded any prospective franchisees, we cannot provide any assurance that
an adverse result may not occur.

10. Liability Insurance. You may, from time to time, receive complaints from or be served with
lawsuits by customers alleging breach of contract or other misconduct resulting from your operation of the
Franchise. Because you are licensed to use our trade name in your operation of the Franchise, we are
occasionally included in these lawsuits. If we are sued because of something you have allegedly done or
failed to do, you must defend us in the lawsuit. As a result, you must carry proper insurance on the Franchise
and you must name us as an additional insured. If you do not carry the proper coverage or if you fail to
defend us, we may cancel your Franchise Agreement.

11. Renewal Option at End of Term. Your Franchise Agreement gives you a license to operate
a Franchise for an initial term of 10 years. At the end of the 10 years, if you have complied with the terms
of the Franchise Agreement, you may renew your Franchise by executing the then-current franchise
agreement and complying with all other requirements for renewal. If we refuse to renew your Franchise
Agreement because you have not complied with the Franchise Agreement or if you choose not to renew
your Franchise Agreement, you may be required to turn your customer list and your telephone numbers and
electric identities, including domain names, over to us and/or you may be prohibited from operating any
similar business which competes with us or our franchisees for a period of 2 years in your Territory.

12. Use of Independent Professional Advisers. We recommend that you consult with your own
independent advisors in order to satisfy yourself concerning your ability to establish and operate a profitable
business, taking into account the amount of working capital you have available, your anticipated debt
service, your expenses, etc.

Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide responses.

a. Have you received and carefully reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document
provided to you?

Yes No

b. Did you sign a receipt page for the Franchise Disclosure Document indicating
the date you received it?

Yes No
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Franchise Agreement | 2025 2 Exhibit B-9



c. Have you received and carefully reviewed the DreamMaker Franchise
Agreement and each exhibit and schedule attached to the Franchise

Agreement?
Yes No
13. Do you understand that you may not rely on, and we will not be bound by (i) any

representation or statement other than those included in our franchise disclosure document; or (ii) any
promise or obligation that is not specifically set forth in the Franchise Agreement or an exhibit or schedule
attached to the Franchise Agreement?

Yes No
14. Have you been given the opportunity, whether or not you may have done so, to discuss the
risks of operating a DreamMaker Franchise with an attorney, accountant or other professional advisor?

Yes No

a. Do you understand that the purchase of a DreamMaker Franchise is a business
decision that has many of the same risks associated with starting any type of
business and that the success or failure of your DreamMaker Franchise will
depend in large part upon your skills and abilities, the number of hours you
work, your ability to follow and apply the DreamMaker System and methods
of doing business, competition from other businesses providing the same
services, interest rates, inflation, the economy, labor costs, supply costs, and
other economic and business factors?

Yes No
b. Do you understand and acknowledge that DreamMaker cannot guarantee the
success of your DreamMaker Franchise or that it will ever achieve
profitability?

Yes No
c. Do you understand that in all dealings with you, the officers, directors,
employees and agents of DreamMaker act only in a representative capacity
and not in an individual capacity and such dealings are solely between you and

DreamMaker?
Yes No
15. Do you understand that any information concerning the revenue, profits, income or costs

of a DREAMMAKER Franchise that was given to you by one of our franchisees is not information obtained
from our employees or representatives, and we make no representation about the information’s accuracy?

Yes No
a. IF YOU ANSWERED “NO” TO ANY OF QUESTIONS 1 THROUGH 9,
PLEASE INDICATE THE NUMBER(S) OF THE QUESTION(S) AND
PROVIDE A FURTHER EXPLANATION OF YOUR ANSWER(S) IN THE
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SPACE PROVIDED BELOW. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF
NECESSARY. IF YOU ANSWERED “YES” TO ALL OF QUESTIONS 1
THROUGH 9, PLEASE LEAVE THE LINES BLANK.

Question No. Explanation

Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide responses. When answering these
questions, please remember that a DreamMaker franchisee is not a DreamMaker representative for the
purposes of answering these questions.

b. Other than any statements specifically provided in Item 19 of our Franchise
Disclosure Document, have any employee or representative of DreamMaker
made any promise, prediction, guarantee, projection or other statement
concerning the revenues, profits and/or income of a DREAMMAKER
Franchise?

Yes No
c. Have any of our employees or representatives made any promise, prediction,
guarantee, projection or other statement about the amount of money you may
earn or the revenue or profits that you should or might expect to achieve as a
franchisee that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in
our Franchise Disclosure Document?

Yes No

d. Has any employee or representative of DreamMaker made any statement or
promise regarding the costs you may incur in operating a DreamMaker
Franchise; the advertising, marketing, training, support service or assistance
that DreamMaker will furnish to you; or any other statement, promise or
agreement that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in
the Franchise Disclosure Document provided to you?

Yes No

16. Has any employee or representative of DreamMaker made any statement, promise or
agreement concerning the amount or type of national account customers that may be available to you should
you purchase a DreamMaker Franchise?
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Yes No

a. IF YOU ANSWERED “YES” TO ANY OF QUESTIONS 11 THROUGH 14,
PLEASE INDICATE THE NUMBER(S) OF THE QUESTION(S) AND
PROVIDE A FURTHER EXPLANATION OF YOUR ANSWER(S) IN THE
SPACE PROVIDED. ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS IT NECESSARY.
IF YOU ANSWERED “NO” TO ALL OF QUESTIONS 11 THROUGH 14
ABOVE, PLEASE LEAVE THE LINES BLANK.

Question No. Explanation

You understand that your answers are important and that we will rely on them when making our decision
to award you a Franchise. By signing below, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the
above questions and that you FULLY UNDERSTAND AND ACCEPT ALL OF THE BUSINESS RISKS
described above.

YOU HEREBY REPRESENT AND WARRANT TO US THAT YOU HAVE ENTERED INTO A
BINDING PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF A BUSINESS CURRENTLY
OPERATED BY ONE OF OUR EXISTING FRANCHISEES (THE “SELLER”). YOU
ACKNOWLEDGE AND UNDERSTAND THAT THE SELLER IS AN INDEPENDENT BUSINESS
OWNER AND HAS NO AUTHORITY TO ACT OR SPEAK ON OUR BEHALF. ALL INFORMATION
YOU RECEIVED ABOUT THE EXISTING BUSINESS YOU ARE PURCHASING IS THE SOLE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SELLER AND WE SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ANY
STATEMENTS OR OMISSIONS OF SELLER. YOU FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT WE HAVE
ADVISED YOU TO, AND YOU HAVE HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO, OBTAIN AS MUCH
INFORMATION AS POSSIBLE ABOUT THE BUSINESS YOU ARE PURCHASING AND TO
REVIEW ALL SUCH INFORMATION WITH ADVISORS, LIKE AN ATTORNEY AND AN
ACCOUNTANT, OF YOUR CHOOSING BEFORE ENTERING INTO THE PURCHASE
TRANSACTION WITH SELLER.

The following language applies only to transactions governed by the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law

All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.
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The following language applies only to transactions governed by the California Franchise
Investment Law

To the extent that the transaction is governed by the California Franchise Investment Law, the Franchise
Disclosure Questionnaire is void.

Date Signature of Franchisee
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[ ) PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P.

< ! I 401 West State Highway 6
m‘ Wace, Texas 76710
——- 254.772.4901 | pbhcpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Management of

Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc.
dba DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

Waco, Texas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. dba DreamMaker Bath
& Kitchen (a Texas corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. dba DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen, as of December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. dba DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc.
dba DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued.

OFFICE LOCATIONS

TEXAS | Waco | Temple | Hillsboro | Houston
NEW MEXICO | Albuguergue



Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the
financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. dba DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. dba DreamMaker Bath &
Kitchen'’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the franchise disclosure document. The
other information comprises the federally mandated information but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information,
and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

?wﬂlﬁﬁo,%mwﬂ < HAL, LLf

Waco, Texas
April 28, 2025
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WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
dba DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022

2024 2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,304,322 $ 2,096,891 $ 1,529,098
Certificate of Deposit - 200,000 602,441
Investments 228,893 182,620 115,384
Current portion of notes receivable 34,647 45,455 50,038
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 105,839 179,555 171,611
Total current assets 2,673,701 2,704,521 2,468,572
Non-current assets:
Notes receivable, net of current portion 9,603 8,139 12,181
Property and equipment, net 33,265 65,448 45,250
Right of use - operating - 45,376 90,748
Intangibles, net 49,513 10,011 12,360
Total non-current assets 92,381 128,974 160,539
Total assets $ 2,766,082 $ 2,833,495 $ 2,629,111

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

2024 2023 2022
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade $ 35,209 57,180 $ 53,436
Accrued payroll, bonus, and paid time off 332,357 395,445 327,324
Accrued convention 157,278 152,037 93,050
Accrued education and training 97,628 86,952 109,520
Accrued liabilities 162,070 142,257 158,787
Marketing deposits 158,596 117,243 87,588
Accrued marketing 351,616 338,471 364,713
Deferred income 105,247 192,613 136,141
Franchise and development liability 61,107 55,348 31,365
Current portion of right of use liability - operating - 45,376 45,372
Total current liabilities 1,461,108 1,582,922 1,407,296
Right of use liability - operating, net of current portion - - 45,376
Total liabilities 1,461,108 1,582,922 1,452,672
Shareholder's equity:
Common stock, $10 par value - 2,500 shares authorized,

1,000 shares issued and outstanding 10,000 10,000 10,000
Additional paid-in capital 2,073,341 2,073,341 2,073,341
Accumulated deficit ( 778,367) 832,768) ( 906,902)

Total shareholders' equity 1,304,974 1,250,573 1,176,439
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 2,766,082 $ 2,833,495 $ 2,629,111




WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
dba DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022

2024 2023 2022
FRANCHISING AND OPERATING REVENUES
Royalties $ 2,417,075 $ 2,267,978 $ 2,264,083
Franchise fees 164,863 171,792 158,041
Technology and training fees 264,575 166,120 161,740
Other revenues 532,650 625,359 647,826
Total franchising and operating revenues 3,379,163 3,231,249 3,231,690
FRANCHISING, OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Franchising 715,537 632,450 545,265
Payroll 1,397,250 1,516,839 1,594,450
Franchise marketing and promotion 765,366 747,673 630,109
Facilities 40,605 56,352 101,496
General and administrative 334,125 114,867 163,495
Total franchising, operating and administrative expenses 3,252,883 3,068,181 3,034,815
FRANCHISING AND OPERATING INCOME 126,280 163,068 196,875
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Sublease income - - 9,281
Interest income 77,153 66,408 34,671
Other income - - 20,000
Total other income and (expense), net 77,153 66,408 63,952
NET INCOME BEFORE PROVISIONS FOR INCOME TAXES 203,433 229,476 260,827
Provision for income taxes ( 50,657) ( 59,090) ( 60,704)
NET INCOME BEFORE CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS 152,776 170,386 200,123
Charitable contributions ( 98,375) ( 96,252) ( 121,786)
NET INCOME $ 54,401 $ 74,134 $ 78,337

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
dba DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022

Balance at December 31, 2021
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2022
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2023

Net income

Balance at December 31, 2024

Additional
Common Stock Paid-in Accumulated
Shares Dollars Capital Deficit Total
1,000 $ 10,000 $ 2,073,341 $( 985,239) 1,098,102
- - - 78,337 78,337
1,000 10,000 2,073,341 ( 906,902) 1,176,439
- - - 74,134 74,134
1,000 10,000 2,073,341 ( 832,768) 1,250,573
- - - 54,401 54,401
1,000 $ 10,000 $ 2,073,341 $( 778,367) 1,304,974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
dba DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2032 AND 2022

2024 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 54,401 $ 74,134 $ 78,337
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided (used) by operations:

Depreciation/amortization 40,207 26,501 25,075
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses 73,716 ( 7,944) ( 23,615)
Notes receivable 9,344 8,625 13,863
Deferred income ( 87,366) 56,472 162
Accounts payable ( 21,971) 3,744 ( 38,766)
Accrued marketing 13,145 ( 26,242) 100,678
Accrued liabilities ( 32,599) 29,023 83,539
Advertising and promotion 46,594 88,642 ( 201,311)
Franchise and development liability 5,759 23,983 ( 99,112)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 101,230 276,938 ( 61,150)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment ( 48,206) ( 44,350) ( 31,760)
Proceeds from disposal of Capital Assets 680 - -
Increase in investments and Certificate of Deposits ( 46,273) 335,205 ( 372,195)
Sale/maturity in certificate of deposit 200,000 - -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 106,201 290,855 ( 403,955)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 207,431 567,793 ( 465,105)
Cash at the beginning of the year 2,096,891 1,529,098 1,994,203
Cash at the end of the year $ 2,304,322 $ 2,096,891 $ 1,529,098

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid $ - $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
dba DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. (the "Company”) was incorporated in 1975 under the laws of the
State of Texas to sell franchises for refinishing, repair, and related servicing of porcelain, formica, tile,
and ceramic products. Since June of 1999, the Company has done business under the name of
DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen and provides bathroom, kitchen, and other interior remodeling and related
services.

Under the terms of its franchise agreements, the Company provides initial training, an operations
manual and other initial and continuing services to its franchisees. Franchisees pay an initial franchise
and technology fee as well as continuing royalty fees based on sales. Marketing fees for a national
campaign are charged to franchises. Additional fees are assessed upon renewal or transferring franchise
investments.

The following is a reconciliation of the number of franchises in operation:

2024 2023 2022
Franchises at January 1 42 42 43
New franchises added during the year 5 3 2
Franchises canceled or terminated during the year ( 4) ( 3) ( 3)
Active at December 31 43 42 42

There were 43, 42 and 42 signed franchise agreements as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables and other liabilities in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP”").

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

On January 1, 2022, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (*"FASB”) Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases (Codified as Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
842), which resulted in recording operating lease liabilities and right of use assets in the balance
sheets. The operating and finance lease liabilities and right of use asset balances were $0 and $0 as
of December 31, 2024, respectively. The operating and finance lease liabilities and right of use asset
balances were $45,376 and $45,376 as of December 31, 2023, respectively. The operating and finance
lease liabilities and right of use asset balances were $90,748 and $90,748 as of December 31, 2022,
respectively. The balance is recorded based on the present value of the remaining minimum rental
payments under the leasing standard for existing operating leases. The key estimates for these leases
include the discount rate used to discount the unpaid lease payments to present value. The Company’s
leases generally do not include a readily determinable implicit rate, therefore, using a portfolio
approach, the Company determined the collateralized incremental borrowing rate to discount the lease
payments based on the information available at least commencement.
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Leases include the noncancellable period of the lease plus any additional periods covered by either
an option to extend the lease that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, or an option to
extend the lease controlled by the lessor. The Company has determined it is not reasonably certain
to exercise renewal options, and as a result, the lease’s initial stated term was used in the calculation
of lease liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Key accounting policies that include significant judgments and estimates
include useful lives of property, equipment and intangibles and the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash deposits, certificates of deposit, and money market funds
with original maturities of 3 months or less when purchased.

Revenue Recognition

The initial franchise fees vary per the terms of the franchise contract. As allowed under ASC 606,
initial franchise fees are recognized upon franchise openings, as pre-opening costs incurred to assist
a franchisee to open a new franchise equal or exceeded the franchise fee. Under the terms of its
franchise agreements, the Company provides initial training and continuing business consulting and
marketing support to its franchises. Franchise fees and technology fees are generally payable upon
the execution of the franchise agreement and royalty fees generally commence upon the starting of
the franchisee’s business activities.

The Company also receives royalty fees on a weekly basis from franchisees. Royalty fees are
recognized and charged at a percentage (primarily 3% to 7%) of sales on a weekly basis.

The Company reserves the right to waive all or a portion of the franchise, training and royalty fees.

Accounts Receivable — Related Parties

Accounts receivable - related parties are comprised of accounts receivable from two affiliated
entities. The primary components are comprised of royalty fees, administrative charges and
marketing funds received from franchisees on behalf of the Company. The Company provided an
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable - related parties which totaled $99,890, $66,678 and
$128,220 at December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are comprised of financed initial franchise, royalty and marketing fees, net of
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon the
length of time the receivables are past due, historical payment trends and current economic factors.
The Company generally secures notes with franchisees’ property and equipment. The Company has
$51,854, $90,725 and $124,956 of allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December
31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repair costs are
expensed as incurred. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. The Company’s capitalization
policy is $1,500. The cost of assets sold or retired, as well as any accumulated depreciation, is
removed from the accounts at the time of disposal and any resulting gain or loss is included in the
results of operations.

Depreciation, which is recorded on the straight-line method, is based upon the estimated useful
lives of the respective assets, ranging from 3 to 10 years.



Intangibles

Intangible assets, trademarks and intellectual property, are amortized using the straight-line
method over 3 - 15 years.

Accrued Convention

The Company accrues funds on a monthly basis during the course of the year to pay for their annual
convention. Their annual convention is held each June for their franchisees and a select group of
preferred vendors and is referred to as Reunion. Accrued convention at December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022 was $152,278 $152,037 and $93,050, respectively.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expense is presented as marketing fees expended and relate to activities to promote the
DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen brand to prospective franchisees and are expensed as incurred.
Advertising expense during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, amounted to
$206,723, $171,395 and $139,079, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

All accounts, interest bearing and noninterest bearing, are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) up to $250,000 per depositor at each separately chartered FDIC insured
depository institution. The Company’s cash balances exceeded FDIC coverage at year-end and at
various times during the year. The Company has not experienced and does not anticipate any losses
related to cash held in these accounts.

Marketing Fund

The Company expends marketing fees collected from franchises to pay for expenses related to the
development of marketing materials and processes for use by franchisees and the Company in
national, regional or local advertising, marketing and promotion activities. Marketing fees are charged
at 1% to 2% of net sales.

All assets of the Marketing Funds are contractually restricted for the benefit of the franchisees, and
the Company recognizes an equal and offsetting liability on the Company’s balance sheet for all
amounts received. Additionally, this results in recording an equal and offsetting amount of expenses,
against all revenues such that there is no impact to overall profitability of the Company from these
revenues. In addition, advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under an asset and liability approach that requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized in the Company’s financial statements or tax returns. In estimating future
tax consequences, all expected future events other than enactments of changes in tax law or rates
are considered. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets for ultimate realization and will record
a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax asset if it is more likely than not that some portion,
or all, of these deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company accounts for uncertainty in income taxes under ASC 740-10. ASC 740-10 prescribes
a recognition threshold and measurement methodology to recognize and measure an income tax
position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. The evaluation of a tax position is based on
a two-step approach. The first step requires the entity to evaluate whether the tax position would
“more likely than not” be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authority. The
second step requires the tax position be measured at the largest amount of tax benefit that is
greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. In addition, previously
recognized benefits from tax positions that no longer meet the criteria would be reversed.

The Company’s tax returns are generally no longer subject to examination by the Internal Revenue
Service three years after filing.
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Reclassification
Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform with the current year
presentation. Total stockholder’s equity and net income are unchanged due to these
reclassifications.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consisted of the following:

2024 2023 2022
Trademarks $ 58,062 $ 58,062 $ 58,062
Intellecutal property 54,333 - -

112,395 58,062 58,062
Less: accumulated amortization ( 62,882) (_ 48,051) (_45,702)

$ 49,513 $ 10,011 $ 12,360

Amortization expense was $14,831, $2,349 and $3,284 for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

Future amortization of intangible assets by year is as follows:

Year Ending
2025 $ 14,423
2026 11,549
2027 3,296
2028 3,186
2029 2,859
Thereafter 14,200

$ 49,513

MARKETING DEPOSITS

When the Company enters into a franchise agreement, it collects marketing deposits to perform marketing
and advertising activities for the new franchise sold. The deposits are collected in advance and kept in a
marketing deposit account until expended for the stated purpose. Marketing deposits at December 31,
2024, 2023 and 2022 totaled to $158,596, $117,243 and $87,588, respectively.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences between
the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts based on enacted tax laws
and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect the
taxable income. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted through provisions for income taxes. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. Income tax expense (benefit) is the
tax payable (receivable) for the period, together with the change during the period in deferred tax assets
and liabilities.

The Company has no material temporary differences for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, therefore no deferred taxes were recognized.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2024 2023 2022
Furniture and fixtures $ 26,068 $ 26,068 $ 25,096
Leasehold improvements 13,074 13,074 -
Office computers and equipment 111,749 140,447 110,143

150,891 179,589 135,239
Less: accumulated depreciation (117,626) ((114,141) (__89,989)

$_ 33,265 $_ 65,448 $ 45,250

Depreciation expense was $25,376, $24,152 and $21,791 for the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

LEASES

The Company determines whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of a contract by
determining if the contract conveys the right to control the use of identified property, plant, or equipment
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company leases certain buildings and equipment
for varying periods. The incremental borrowing rate utilized to calculate the lease liabilities is based on
the information available at commencement date, as most of the leases do not provide an implicit
borrowing rate. The operating lease agreements do not contain any material guarantees or restrictive
covenants.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company has one operating lease, no finance leases, and no
sublease activities. Short-term leases, defined as leases with initial terms of 12 months or less, are not
reflected on the balance sheets. For the purposes of calculating lease liabilities, all lease and non-lease
components, if applicable, are combined.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no leases within scope of ASC 842.

During 2024 and 2023, the Company recognized rent expense associated with leases under ASC 842 as
follows:

For the year For the year
ended December ended December
31, 2024 31, 2023
Operating lease cost:
Fixed expense $ 47,641 $ 47,461
Short-term lease cost 52,861 57,834
Total lease cost: $ 100,502 $ 105,295

Supplemental information related to leases is as follows:

As of
December 31,
2023
Supplemental information:
Weighted average remaining lease term:
Operating leases 1 year
Weighted average discount rate:
Operating leases 4.6%
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Defined Contribution Plan

The Company converted to a qualified safe harbor 401(k) plan, effective January 1, 2022, covering
all employees who have attained age 21 and completed 90 days of service. Plan participants may
contribute their annual compensation before taxes for investment in several investment alternatives
up to the limit set by the IRS. Employees are fully vested with respect to their contributions. The
Company matches 100% of employee salary deferrals that do not exceed 3% of eligible pay plus
50% of salary deferrals in excess of the 3% eligible pay. The employer will nhot match more than
5% of the employee’s eligible pay. The Company made contributions of $26,783, $32,985, and
$23,409 to the plan during 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The company also contributed $0
and $5,518 during 2024 and 2023 to true up the safe harbor contribution for the previous year.
The company also made an additional 401(k) profit-sharing contribution of $0, $0 and $2,549,
during 2024, 2023 and 2022, that was required based on the Top-Heavy Plan requirements.

Deferred Compensation Plan

During 2018, the Company established a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for certain key
members of executive management and invested proceeds in money market funds held inside a
special trust called a rabbi trust. A rabbi trust is an arrangement that is used to accumulate assets
that may be used to fund the Company’s obligation to pay benefits under the deferred compensation
plan. To prevent immediate taxation to the key members of executive management who participate
in the deferred compensation plan, the amounts placed in the rabbi trust must remain subject to
the claims of the Company’s creditors.

The plan allows for discretionary employer contributions based on profit goals and actual profits.
The contributions are subject to a tiered vesting schedule based on years of service counted from
2018 forward and employees and therefore contributions are subject to forfeitures based on
provisions in the plan document.

The amount of investment recognized in the balance sheet was $178,893, $132,620, and $65,384
as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The corresponding deferred compensation
liability is reflected in accrued liabilities in the amount of $178,893, $132,620, and $65,384 as of
December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Any income or losses recognized on the
underlying money market fund will be recorded as other income or loss in the income statement.
There was no other income or loss recorded for the year ending December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company earns revenue primarily from franchise transactions. Listed below are the 3 primary
streams of revenue that are earned from each franchise agreement.

Royalties

After operations commence for each franchisee, royalty fees are recognized and charged at a percentage
(primarily 3% to 7%) of sales on a weekly basis.

Initial Franchise Fees

Typically, franchise rights are granted to franchisees for an initial term of 10 years with an option to
renew for $7,500 to the franchisee contingent on various covenants outlined in the contract. In exchange
for initial franchise fees, the Company is obligated by its franchise agreement to provide initial training
and continuing business consulting and marketing support to its franchises.

The initial franchise fees are recognized upon the completion of two performance obligations at 50%
each. The first performance obligation is the completion of the franchisee Foundations Training. The
Foundation Training program is scheduled to be completed in approximately 6 weeks. The second
performance obligation is the Simulation Training. Simulation Training traditionally takes 8 weeks and
starts immediately after the completion of the Foundations Training.
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Marketing fund fees

After operations commence for each franchisee, marketing fees are charged at 1% to 2% of net sales on
a weekly basis.

All revenue streams for the Company discussed above are within the scope of and accounted for under
ASC 606. ASC 606 requires revenue to be recognized when the Company satisfies the related
performance obligations by transferring to the customer a good or service through a 5-step process:

1) Identify the contract with the customer,

2) Identify the associated performance obligations,

3) Determine the transaction price,

4) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations, and

5) Recognize revenue when the performance obligations have been satisfied and the good or
service has been transferred.

Initial franchise fees have performance obligations as discussed above that are satisfied over time and
are recognized upon completion of the performance obligations. Under the terms of its franchise
agreements, the Company provides initial training and continuing business consulting and marketing
support to its franchises. The initial franchise fees and any additional training fees are payable upon the
execution of the franchise agreement.

Royalty fees (which are based on 3% - 7% of sales) and marketing fund fees (which are based on 1%
- 2% of sales) are recognized at a point in time when earned. These fees generally commence upon
the starting of the franchisee’s business activities and are payable weekly.

For all revenue streams, the overall economy will have a direct impact on the Company. If the economy
were impacted negatively, it will result in less disposable income for customers and thus less investment
in non-essential items such as kitchen and bathroom remodeling and franchisee investments. Other
general economic factors that could impact the Company are inflation and interest rates.

The following table disaggregates the Company’s revenue based on the timing of the satisfaction of
performance obligations for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022:

2024 2023 2022
Performance obligations satisifed over time $ 198,475 $ 253,974 $ 241,008
Performance obligations satisfied at a point in time 3,180,688 2,977,275 2,990,681

$_3,379,163 $_3,231,249 $_3,231,689

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the exit price that would be received from
the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability, using assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing an asset or liability. The fair value guidance establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy,
which maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs used in
measuring fair value. The levels within the hierarchy are as follows:
e Level 1 - observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

e Level 2 - significant other observable inputs that are observable either directly or
indirectly; and

e Level 3 - significant unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data,
which requires the Company to develop its own assumptions.
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The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets recorded at fair value.

Equity securities held in rabbi trusts -
Equity securities held in rabbi trusts consist of U.S. common stocks, which are
valued using quoted market prices reported on nationally recognized security
exchanges, and mutual funds, which are classified as level 1 when quoted prices are
available in an active market.

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future values. Furthermore, although the Company believes its valuation methods
are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value
measurement at the reporting date.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’s assets measured
at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Fair Value Measurements at December
31, 2024 using:

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets

Fair Value (Level 1)
Equity securities held in rabbi trusts ~ $ 178,893 $ 178,893
Total investments, at fair value $ 178,893 $ 178,893

Fair Value Measurements at December
31, 2023 using:

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets

Fair Value (Level 1)
Equity securities held in rabbi trusts $ 132,620 $ 132,620
Total investments, at fair value $ 132,620 $ 132,620

Fair Value Measurements at December
31, 2022 using:

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets

Fair Value (Level 1)
Equity securities held in rabbi trusts ~ $ 65,384 $ 65,384
Total investments, at fair value $ 65,384 $ 65,384

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis. These adjustments to fair value usually result from application of lower-of-cost-or-
market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. There were no assets measured at fair value on
a nonrecurring basis in 2024, 2023, or 2022 that were still held at year-end.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 28, 2025, the issuance date of this report. No
events requiring disclosure have been noted.
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LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024
STATE FRANCHISEE ADDRESS PHONE
Ramcat Renovations, Corp 2340 Pansy Street SW
Alabama Brent & Sue Bailey Huntsville, AL 35801 256-270-2211
Baxter & Associates, LLC 6203 Pauline Whitaker, Ste 106
Arkansas B. Scott & Mary Baxter Rogers, AR 72758 479-579-9800
Denney Homes 5880 District Blvd., Suite 9
California Brian Denney' Bakersfield, CA 93313 661-834-4858
JR Home Improvements Inc. 83639 Moroccan Drive 760-625-4959
Jose Reynoso Indio, CA 92203
Pinkerton Home & Garage Door, Inc. | 4425 Date St.
Colorado Michael Pinkerton Colorado Springs, CO 80917 719-636-2444
AMT Ventures Inc. 190 E. Foothills Parkway, Ste 120 970-616-0900
Amy Thomas Ft Collins, CO 80525
. Artistic Trade Services, Inc. 65 Louis Street
Connecticut Paul T. Calafiore Newington, CT 06111 860-665-8094
Gribben Constructlon. Co Inc. 6074 SE Federal Highway 779-788-6255
Florida Joseph & Jennifer Gribben Stuart, FL 34997
Almada Souza Builders LLC 2039 Harrison Street 305-925-5999
Antonio Almada Hollywood, FL 33020
. KB Guys, Inc. 904 W. Moring St
Georgia Eric Anderson Swainsboro, GA 30401 478-419-3600
Top To Bottom Remodeling, Inc. 1941 Wright Blvd.
Matt Mazza? Schaumburg, IL 61093 847-592-3550
o Home Works, Inc. 3730 Wabash Avenue
Tllinois Curtis Allen Trampe Springfield, IL 62711 217-529-9300
Kraftwerks Remodeling, Inc. 15645 S. 71% Court
Glen Borkowski Orland Park, IL 60462 708-429-6670
e L. Black Swan Properties, LLC 2333 E. Stadium Blvd.
Michigan Lee Willwerth Ann Arbor, MI 734-669-4000
. Odin Ventures, Inc. 6801 Wayzata Blvd.
Minnesota Lynn Monson St. Louis, MN 55426 612-417-9999
Dream 360, LLC 1232 L Street
Nebraska Cataldo Leo & Jamie Noltner Omaha, NE 68127 402-614-9400
Golden Dreams, Inc. 740 Del Monte Lane, #8
Nevada Shawn & Dawn Colvin Reno, NV 89511 805-202-9260
Bendixen Holdings, Inc. 1630 Nixon Drive
New Jersey Charles Bendixen Moorestown, NJ 08057 856-252-0055
C4 Construction Grloup LLC 143 Cour.ltry Lake Drive 704-430-1109
Scott & Haley Collins Mooresville, NC 28115
Heidrick Homes, Inc. 5 Westgate Parkway, Ste 125
David Heidrick Asheville, NC 28806 828-378-1300
North Limulus Renovations LLC 7134 Market Street, Suite 2 010-408-4848
Carolina Brad Jacobs Wilmington, NC 28411
Vaughncorp, Inc. 2939 Battleground Ave, Ste A
Chris Penn Greensboro, NC 27408 336-890-8003
Casa Bella Remodeling Services LLC | 4008 Monroe Road, Ste 120 980-301-8800
David & Bibiana Vargas Charlotte, NC 28205 U
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STATE FRANCHISEE ADDRESS PHONE

Bender Industrial Group, Inc. 13227 SW Canyon Rd., Suite D

Oregon Josef Bender Beaverton, OR 97005 503-295-2284
NALI Remodeling Services LLC 244 South Market Street 717-367-9753
Francisco Antonio Arzani Elizabethtown, PA 17022 R

. Gnu Tub of Pittsburg 3401 Saw Mill Run Blvd.

Pennsylvania | | Koval Pittsburgh, PA 15227 412-885-4440
Stewart Custom Builders, Inc. 12 Pottstown Pike
Jack & Rebecca Stewart Chester Springs, PA 19425 484-473-3071
Global Satellite & Sound, Inc. 615 Greenwich Ave, Ste 8

Rhode Istand | 1, i< & Christina Aguiar Warwick, RI 02886 401-741-0385
Foothills Homecrafters LLC 740 Congaree Road
Melody Lane’ Greenville, SC 29607 864-370-2284

S. Carolina
J. D. Norris Construction Co. 28 St. Phillip Road
James Daniel Norris Beach Island, SC 29842 803-592-9191
Casey Contracting & Remodeling LLC | 1020 N Western Street
Brian Casey Amarillo, TX 79106 806-356-8002
7Chapps Remodeling LLC 110 Smirl Drive, Ste 108
Clint & Julie Chappell Heath, TX 75032 469-887-6700
SAL Ventures Ltd. 5720 40% St.

Texas Steven P. Betts Lubbock, TX 79407 806-687-1212
Snyder Family Properties, Inc. 4710 West Waco Dr. 254-523-6699
John Snyder Waco, TX 76710
Well Done Stewards LLC 8000 McBeth Way, Ste 180 2327912442
Jeffery & Ruth Vargo The Woodlands, TX 77382
HIS Renovations, INC 16700 FM 2493, Suite 500
Roger Williams Tyler, TX 75703 903-523-6161
Alliance Group Enterprises, LLC 256 E 12300 S, Ste C

Utah Ramon Campbell Draper, UT 84020 801-410-0909
Csa Enterprises, Inc. 1523 E. Skyline Dr., Suite A 801-476-4222
Nate Coombs Ogden, UT 84405 s
By Design Group, LLC 5131 Main Street

Vireinia Yusuf Atay Williamsburg, VA 23188 757-209-2200

g Everett Enterprises, LLC 23 Commerce Parkway, Suite 108 540-371-3625

Steve Everett Fredericksburg, VA 22406
Rocky Point Remodeling LLC 2236 W. Broadway

Wisconsin Michal Neckar Madison, WI 53713 608-533-5995
JS Design Engineering Corporation 17622 Burlington Rd., Suite 3 262-597-7171
Jay L. Nutting Union Grove, WI 53182

Washington Verl Dyer, Co. 3414 Idaho Ave

D.C. Verl Dyer NW Washington, DC 20016 202-920-1180

Note 1. In 2024, ownership of this franchised outlet transferred from Everett Gray to Brian Denney.

Note 2. In 2024, ownership of this franchised outlet transferred from Mark Mazza to Matt Mazza. Mark
Mazza is located in Schaumburg, Illinois. His last known email address is top2btmrem(@ameritech.net.

Note 3. In 2024, ownership of this franchised outlet transferred from Michael F. Pittman to Mark Cain,
Randall Hornsby and Melody Lane.
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LIST OF FRANCHISEES
WITH FRANCHISE AGREEMENT SIGNED BUT OUTLET NOT OPENED
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

State Franchisee Address Phone

None.

LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO LEFT THE SYSTEM
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

The following is a list of franchisees who had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise
voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the franchise agreement as of December 31, 2024,
or who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this disclosure document.

100% Transfer of Interest:

Franchisee City State | Telephone or E-Mail

Everett Gray & Sons, Inc.

Everett Gray Bakersfield CA 661-978-4183

Carolina Bath & Kitchen, Inc.

Estate of Michael F. Pittman Greenville SC Deceased

Terminations:

Franchisee City State | Telephone or E-Mail
Fred Chapman Walnut Creek CA 925-458-6200

4 .Investments, LLC McKinney TX 469-663-4900
Rick Gurney

Non-Renewals:

Franchisee City State | Telephone or E-Mail

None.

Reacquired by Franchisor:

Franchisee City State | Telephone or E-Mail

None.

Ceased Operations Other:

Franchisee City State | Telephone or E-Mail

None.
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This list includes the names, addresses and telephone numbers of state agencies having responsibility for
franchising disclosure/registration laws, and serving as our agents for service of process (to the extent that
we are registered in their states). This list also includes the names, addresses and telephone numbers of

STATE ADMINISTRATORS/
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

other agencies, companies or entities serving as our agents for service of process.

State State Agency Agent for Service of Process
CALIFORNIA California Department of Financial Department of Financial Protection &
Protection & Innovation Innovation
320 West 4 Street, Suite 750 Commissioner of Financial Protection and
Los Angeles, CA 90013 Innovation
(213) 576-7500 320 W. 4% Street, Suite 750
1-866-275-2677 Los Angeles, California 90013
www.dfpi.ca.gov 1-866-275-2677
ask.dfpi@dfpi.ca.gov www.dfpi.ca.gov
ask.dfpi@dfpi.ca.gov
HAWAII Commissioner of Securities of the
State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and
Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch
335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
(808) 586-2727
ILLINOIS Office of Attorney General Illinois Attorney General
Franchise Division 500 South Second Street
500 South Second Street Springfield, Illinois 62701
Springfield, IL 62701
(217) 782-4465
INDIANA Indiana Secretary of State Indiana Secretary of State
Securities Division 302 West Washington Street
302 West Washington St., Room E-111
Room E-111 Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681
MARYLAND Maryland Division of Securities Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place Division of Securities
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 200 St. Paul Place
(410) 576-6360 Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020
MICHIGAN Michigan Department of Attorney Michigan Department of Attorney General
General Consumer Protection Division
Consumer Protection Division Franchise Section
Attn: Franchise Section 525 W. Ottawa St.
525 W. Ottawa St. G. Mennen Williams Bldg., 1st Floor
G. Mennen Williams Bldg., 1st Floor | Lansing, Michigan 48913
Lansing, Michigan 48913
(517) 335-7622
MINNESOTA Minnesota Department of Commerce Commissioner of Commerce
85 7t Place East, Suite 280 Minnesota Department of Commerce
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 85 7" Place East, Suite 280
(651) 539-1627 St. Paul, Minnesota 55101
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State State Agency Agent for Service of Process
NEW YORK NYS Department of Law Attention: New York Secretary of State
Investor Protection Bureau New York Department of State
28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor One Commerce Plaza
New York, New York 10005 99 Washington Avenue, 6" Floor
(212) 416-8222 Albany, New York 12231-0001
(518) 473-2492
NORTH Office of Securities Commissioner
DAKOTA 600 East Boulevard Avenue
State Capitol, Fifth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
(701) 328-4712
RHODE Department of Business Regulation Director, Department of Business
ISLAND 1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 68-2 Regulation
Cranston, RI 02920 Securities Division
(401) 462-9527 1511 Pontiac Avenue, Bldg. 68-2
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
SOUTH Division of Insurance
DAKOTA Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid Ave., Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501
(605) 773-3563
VIRGINIA State Corporation Commission Clerk, State Corporation Commission
Division of Securities and Retail Tyler Building, 1% Floor
Franchising 1300 Eat Main Street
1300 East Main Street, 9™ Floor Richmond, Virginia 23219
Richmond, VA 23219
(804) 371-9051
WASHINGTON | Director of the Department of Washington Department of Financial
Financial Institutions Institutions
Securities Division — 3™ Floor Securities Division
150 Israel Road, S.W. 150 Israel Road SW
Tumwater, Washington 98501 Tumwater, Washington 98501
(360) 902-8715
WISCONSIN Franchise Administrator Commissioner of Securities of Wisconsin
Division of Securities 345 West Washington Street
345 W. Washington Avenue 4" Floor
Madison, WI 53703 Madison, Wisconsin 53703
(608) 266-8557
OTHER N/A Amy Mosley
STATES 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202
Waco, Texas 76710
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EXHIBIT F-1
ACH Origination Authorization

Royalty Fees, MAP Fees, and all other amounts due
under Franchise Agreement and Technology Agreement

NN

ACH Origination services will not be considered until this application is

FILLED OUT COMPLETELY
Date of Application Business Phone
Name of Company
Contact Person Title
Address
Please complete check with your banking information
Name &
Address 1234
on Account
Pay to the Order of S
Payable through i,
Your Maximum Amount
Institution
W [TTITTTTTTTIT) o COOTT) i CITTIITTITTTIITIT T

A A

Bank Routing No. Check No. (omit) Your Account No.

I hereby authorize WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC., d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen
(“DREAMMAKER?”) and the financial institution named above to initiate entries to my checking/savings
account identified above to pay all fees, charges and any other amounts owed pursuant to the terms of the
Franchise Agreement and Technology Agreement entered into with DREAMMAKER (including, Royalty
Fees, MAP Fees, late fees, interest charges and any other amounts owed) and, if necessary, to initiate
adjustments for any transactions credited in error. This authority will remain in effect until I notify you in
writing to cancel it in such time as to afford the financial institution a reasonable opportunity to act on such
instructions. I can stop payment of any entry by notifying the financial institution at least 3 days before my
account is scheduled to be charged. I can have the amount of an erroneous charge immediately credited to
my account for up to 15 days following issuance of my statement by the financial institution or up to 60 days
after deposit, whichever occurs first.

Signature:

Printed Name & Title: Date:
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EXHIBIT F-2

PROMISSORY NOTE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

DATE:

DEBTOR:

DEBTOR’S MAILING ADDRESS:

SECURED PARTY: WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC., a Texas corporation
d/b/a DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN

SECURED PARTY’S MAILING ADDRESS: 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202
Waco, Texas 76710
PRINCIPAL: AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($ . )
INTEREST: percent ( %) per annum on unmatured, unpaid PRINCIPAL beginning

thirty (30) days before the due date of the first payment and the maximum legal rate of interest on matured,
unpaid amounts from the date of maturity.

PAYMENT TERMS:

The principal and interest of this note shall be payable in monthly installments of
AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($ ) each, beginning on
and continuing on the first day of each month thereafter until when the entire principal
balance and any accrued, unpaid interest is due in full. By execution of the ACH Origination Authorization
attached hereto, DEBTOR authorizes SECURED PARTY and the financial institution named thereon to
make the foregoing payments from DEBTOR’S account until DEBTOR cancels such automatic draft in
accordance with the terms of the Authorization or this note is paid in full.

DEBTOR promises to pay PRINCIPAL and INTEREST according to the PAYMENT TERMS to the order
of SECURED PARTY. This note may be prepaid in any amount at any time before maturity without
penalty. Installments shall continue to be payable regularly after any partial payment unless and until this
note has been fully paid. INTEREST shall be calculated on the unpaid PRINCIPAL to the date of any
payment or prepayment, with that payment or prepayment being credited first to pay the accrued
INTEREST and then to reduce the PRINCIPAL.

IF DEBTOR defaults in the payment of any indebtedness or the performance of any obligations under this
document or any document collateral to it, including, without limitation, the Franchise Agreement by and
between DEBTOR and SECURED PARTY, or DEBTOR sells, assigns or transfers the Franchise or the
Franchise Agreement to a third party, SECURED PARTY may declare the unpaid PRINCIPAL and earned
INTEREST immediately due. DEBTOR and each surety, endorser and guarantor waive all demands for
payment, presentations for payment, notices of intention to accelerate, notices of acceleration, protests and
notices of protest to the extent permitted by law.

If this document or any document collateral to it, including, without limitation, the Franchise Agreement,
is given to an attorney for collection or enforcement, is collected or enforced after suit is brought for that
purpose or is collected or enforced through probate, bankruptcy or other judicial proceeding, DEBTOR
shall pay SECURED PARTY all costs of collection and enforcement (including, without limitation,
reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs) in addition to amounts due. Reasonable attorney’s fees shall be
ten percent (10%) of all amounts due unless plead otherwise.
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Interest on any indebtedness under this document or any document collateral to it shall not exceed the
maximum amount of nonusurious interest that may be contracted for, taken, reserved, charged or received
under law. Any interest in excess of that maximum amount shall be credited on the principal of the
indebtedness or, if that has been paid, refunded. Any such excess resulting from any acceleration or
prepayment shall be canceled automatically or, if already paid, credited on the unpaid principal of the
indebtedness or, if the principal of the indebtedness has been paid, refunded. This provision overrides other
provisions in this and all other instruments.

If any installment of this note is not paid within thirty (30) days of its due date, a late charge in the amount
of FIVE AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($5.00) per payment will be paid by DEBTOR upon demand as
compensation for any expense or inconvenience incurred in collecting that delinquent installment.
DEBTOR is not hereby authorized to be delinquent in paying any installment. Any demand for a late charge
shall not affect any other remedies available.

If any draft or check is returned by DEBTOR’S financial institution for insufficient funds or any other
reason, SECURED PARTY is entitled to reimbursement from DEBTOR in the amount of TWENTY FIVE
AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($25.00). Any demand for reimbursement shall not in any manner affect any other
remedies available.

COLLATERAL:

All present and after-acquired personal property including, without limitation, all fixtures, furniture,
leasehold improvements, furnishings, materials, supplies, equipment, goods, machinery, general
intangibles, money, accounts, inventory, chattel paper, documents, instruments and other personal property
of any kind whatsoever now or hereafter owned, acquired or used by DEBTOR in any manner in connection
with the DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN Franchise or any other business which has provided or is
providing services in any manner related to residential and commercial bathroom, kitchen, closets, and
other interior or exterior remodeling; remodeling alternatives, including, without limitation, cabinet
refacing, installation of tubliner and wall systems, and related repair work and services; and/or selling
related proprietary and non-proprietary products and materials thereto or therefrom.

DEBTOR grants SECURED PARTY a security interest in the COLLATERAL to secure the payment of all
indebtedness owed and the performance of all obligations performable by DEBTOR to or for SECURED
PARTY (including, without limitation, all indebtedness and obligations under this document or any
document collateral to it).

SECURED PARTY’S sole duty with respect to the custody, safekeeping and physical preservation of
COLLATERAL in its possession or under its control will be to use reasonable care in the custody and
preservation of such COLLATERAL. DEBTOR agrees that SECURED PARTY will be deemed to have
used reasonable care in the custody and preservation of COLLATERAL if SECURED PARTY deals with
such COLLATERAL in the same manner as SECURED PARTY deals with similar property for its own
account and, to the extent permitted by applicable law. SECURED PARTY need not take any steps to
preserve rights against any other person or entity. Neither SECURED PARTY nor any of its directors,
officers, employees or agents will be liable for failure to demand, collect or realize upon the
COLLATERAL or will be under any obligation to sell or otherwise dispose of any COLLATERAL.

DEBTOR confirms that value has been given, that DEBTOR has rights in the COLLATERAL, and that
DEBTOR and SECURED PARTY have not agreed to postpone the time for attachment of the security
interest to any of the COLLATERAL. In respect of COLLATERAL which is acquired after the execution
date of this Promissory Note and Security Agreement, the time for attachment will be the time when
DEBTOR acquires such COLLATERAL.
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DEBTOR’S WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS:

DEBTOR warrants and represents that: 1) no financing statement covering the COLLATERAL is filed in
any public office; 2) DEBTOR owns the COLLATERAL and has the authority to grant this security
interest; 3) none of the COLLATERAL is or will be affixed to real estate, an accession to any goods,
commingled with other goods, or a fixture, accession or part of a product or mass with other goods; 4) all
information about DEBTOR’S financial condition provided to SECURED PARTY was accurate when
submitted, as will be any information subsequently provided; 5) DEBTOR will defend the COLLATERAL
against all claims and demands adverse to SECURED PARTY’S interest in it; 6) the COLLATERAL will
remain in DEBTOR’S possession or control at all times; 7) DEBTOR will maintain the COLLATERAL in
good condition and protect it against misuse, abuse, waste and deterioration except for ordinary wear and
tear resulting from its intended use; 8) DEBTOR will insure the COLLATERAL in accordance with
SECURED PARTY’S reasonable requirements regarding choice of carrier, casualties insured against and
amount of coverage; 9) policies will be written in favor of DEBTOR and SECURED PARTY according to
their respective interests or according to SECURED PARTY’S other requirements; 10) all policies shall
provide that the SECURED PARTY will receive at least ten (10) days’ notice before cancellation, and the
policies or certificates evidencing them will be provided to SECURED PARTY when issued; 11) DEBTOR
assumes all risk of loss damage to the COLLATERAL to the extent of any deficiency in insured coverage;
12) DEBTOR irrevocably appoints SECURED PARTY as DEBTOR’S attorney-in-fact to collect on
DEBTOR’S behalf any returned unearned premiums and proceeds of any insurance on the COLLATERAL
and to endorse any draft or check deriving from the policies and made payable to DEBTOR; 13) DEBTOR
will pay all expenses incurred by SECURED PARTY in obtaining, preserving, perfecting, defending and
enforcing this document, any document collateral to it or the COLLATERAL (expenses for which
DEBTOR is liable include, without limitation, taxes, assessments, reasonable attorney’s fees and other legal
expenses, these expenses will bear interest from the dates of payments at the highest legal rate of interest,
and DEBTOR will pay SECURED PARTY this interest on demand at a time and place reasonably specified
by SECURED PARTY); 14) DEBTOR will sign any papers that SECURED PARTY considers necessary
to obtain, maintain and perfect this security interest or to comply with any relevant law; 15) DEBTOR will
immediately notify SECURED PARTY of any material change in the COLLATERAL, of any change in
DEBTOR’S name, address or location, of any change in any matter warranted or represented in this
document or any document collateral to it, of any change that may affect the security interest in the
COLLATERAL and of any event of default; 16) without SECURED PARTY’S prior written consent,
DEBTOR will not sell, transfer or encumber any of the COLLATERAL other than inventory, which may
be sold in the ordinary course of business; 17) DEBTOR will maintain accurate books and records covering
the COLLATERAL; and 18) DEBTOR will furnish SECURED PARTY any requested information related
to the COLLATERAL and DEBTOR will allow SECURED PARTY, at any time and place, to inspect the
COLLATERAL and all records describing or related to the COLLATERAL.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT:

Each of the following conditions is an event of default: 1) if DEBTOR defaults in the timely payment or
performance of any indebtedness, obligation, covenant or liability in this document, in any document
collateral to it, including, without limitation, the Franchise Agreement, or in any other agreement between
DEBTOR and SECURED PARTY; 2) if any warranty, covenant or representation made to SECURED
PARTY by or on behalf of DEBTOR proves to have been false or incomplete in any material respect when
made; 3) if a receiver is appointed for DEBTOR or any of the COLLATERAL or if the COLLATERAL is
assigned for the benefit of creditors or, to the extent permitted by law, if bankruptcy or insolvency
proceedings are commenced against or by DEBTOR, any partnership of which DEBTOR is a general
partner or any maker, drawer, acceptor, endorser, guarantor, surety, accommodation party or other person
liable on or for any part of the indebtedness owed or obligations performable by DEBTOR under this
document or any document collateral to it; 4) if any lien attaches to any of the COLLATERAL,; and 5) if
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any of the COLLATERAL is lost, stolen, damaged or destroyed, unless it is promptly replaced with
collateral of like quality or restored.

REMEDIES OF SECURED PARTY UPON DEFAULT:

Upon any event of default, SECURED PARTY may: 1) declare the unpaid PRINCIPAL and earned
INTEREST immediately due in whole or part; 2) terminate the Franchise Agreement upon notice to
DEBTOR (unless default is for nonpayment, in which case SECURED PARTY may terminate the
Franchise Agreement upon notice to DEBTOR if, fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice, DEBTOR
has not cured the default); and 3) enforce the payment of indebtedness and performance of obligations by
DEBTOR under this document and any document collateral to it and exercise any rights and remedies
granted by this document, any document collateral to it or by the Texas Uniform Commercial Code,
including, without limitation, the following: a) require DEBTOR to deliver to SECURED PARTY all books
and records relating to the COLLATERAL; b) require DEBTOR to assemble the COLLATERAL and make
it available to SECURED PARTY at a place reasonably convenient to both parties; c) take possession of
any of the COLLATERAL and for this purpose enter any premises where it is located; d) sell, lease or
otherwise dispose of any of the COLLATERAL in accord with the rights, remedies and duties of a secured
party under Chapters 2 and 9 of the Texas Uniform Commercial Code after giving notice as required by
those chapters; e) surrender any insurance policies covering the COLLATERAL and receive the unearned
premium; f) apply any proceeds from disposition of the COLLATERAL after default in the manner
specified in Chapter 9 of the Texas Uniform Commercial code, including, without limitation, payment of
SECURED PARTY’S reasonable attorney’s fees and court expenses; and g) if the proceeds from any
disposition are inadequate, collect the deficiency.

GENERAL PROVISIONS:

1. SECURED PARTY’S rights under this document shall inure to the benefit of its successors and
assigns.

2. Neither delay in exercise nor partial exercise of any of SECURED PARTY’S remedies or rights

shall waive further exercise of those remedies or rights. SECURED PARTY’S failure to exercise
remedies or rights does not waive subsequent exercise of those remedies or rights. SECURED
PARTY’S waiver of any default does not waive further default. SECURED PARTY may remedy
any default without waiving the default.

3. If DEBTOR fails to perform any of DEBTOR’S obligations, SECURED PARTY may perform
those obligations and be reimbursed by DEBTOR on demand for any sums so paid (including,
without limitation, attorney’s fees and other legal expenses) plus interest on those sums from the
dates of payment at the maximum legal rate of interest. The sum to be reimbursed shall be secured
by the security interest under this document.

4. No provisions of this document shall be modified or limited except by written agreement.

5. The unenforceability of any provision will not affect the enforceability or validity of any other
provision.

6. This document and the agreement evidenced thereby is to be construed according to Texas laws.
All indebtedness is payable and all obligations are performable in Waco, McLennan County, Texas.

7. A carbon, photographic, electronic or other reproduction of this Promissory Note and Security
Agreement or any financing statement covering the COLLATERAL is sufficient as a financing
statement.

8. If the COLLATERAL is sold after default, recitals in the transfer document will be prima facie

evidence of their truth, and all prerequisites to the sale specified herein and by the Texas UCC will
be presumed satisfied.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

The security interest under this document shall neither affect nor be affected by any other security
for any of the indebtedness owed or obligations performable by DEBTOR under this document or
any document collateral to it. Neither extensions of any of that indebtedness or those obligations
nor releases of any of the COLLATERAL will affect the priority or validity of the security interest
under this document.

Foreclosure of the security interest under this document by suit shall not limit SECURED
PARTY’S remedies, including, without limitation, the right to sell the COLLATERAL. All
remedies of SECURED PARTY may be exercised at the same or different times, and no remedy
shall be a defense to any other. SECURED PARTY’S rights and remedies include all those granted
in this document, by law or otherwise.

DEBTOR’S appointment of SECURED PARTY as DEBTOR’S attorney-in-fact or agent is
coupled with an interest and will specifically survive any death or disability of DEBTOR.

As used in this document and unless the context requires another construction, the masculine,
feminine and neuter gender shall each include the others and the singular and plural case shall each
include the other.

DEBTOR acknowledges receipt of an executed copy of this document. DEBTOR waives the right
to receive any amount that it may now or hereafter be entitled to receive (whether by way of
damages, fine, penalty, or otherwise) by reason of the failure of SECURED PARTY to deliver to
DEBTOR a copy of any financing statement or any statement issued by any entity that confirms
registration of a financing statement.

(Signature)
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EXHIBIT F-3
EXISTING BUSINESS ADDENDUM

This EXISTING BUSINESS ADDENDUM is entered into by and between Worldwide Refinishing
Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN with a
principal place of business at 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and
, a, , having an address of
(“Franchisee™).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into an
agreement pursuant to which Franchisor has granted Franchisee a license and obligation to establish and
operate a Franchise using the Marks and the System in and for the Territory (“Franchise Agreement”);

WHEREAS, Franchisee operates an existing business which is similar, in whole or in part, to the
Franchise to be operated under the Agreement (“Existing Business”);

WHEREAS, in consideration of a “roll-in” from the Existing Business the Franchisor wishes to
make certain concessions with respect to, and to this end amend, select terms and fees under the Franchise
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to Franchisor that the Existing Business
has fully empowered Franchisee to execute this Existing Business Addendum, and that all necessary action
for the execution of this Existing Business Addendum has been taken.

NOW, THEREFORE, that for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as
follows:

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, in the event of a conflict
between the provisions of the Agreement and the provisions of this Addendum, the provisions of this
Addendum shall control. The parties agree that the Agreement remains fully effective in all respects, except
as specifically modified herein, and all the respective rights and obligations of Franchisee and Franchisor
remain as written unless modified specifically herein.

2. Definitions. The following terms shall have the following definitions:

“Roll-In Start Date” means the first Monday after Franchisee’s completion of Simulation Training
or four months after the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement, whichever occurs first.

“Full Roll-In Period” means the period that begins on the Roll-In Start Date and ends on

and is comprised of the First Roll-In Period and the Second Roll-In Period. “First Roll-In Period
means the period that begins on the Roll-In Start Date and ends on . “Second Roll-
In Period means the period that begins on expiration of the First Roll-In Period and ends on expiration of
the Full Roll-In Period.

“Roll-In Amount” means $

b. The Franchise Agreement is supplemented to include the following provision:

Recognizing that the trade name associated with the Existing Business (“Existing Business Trade
Name”) has accumulated goodwill, and that Franchisee’s right to continue such use for a limited period
will assist Franchisee in retaining existing customers, the parties agree that Franchisee shall have the right
to use such trade name in conjunction with the Marks for the Co-Brand Term reflected below:

Existing Business Trade Name Co-Brand Term
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Before beginning operations, Franchisee shall submit to Franchisor, for Franchisor’s written
approval, all advertising that includes the Existing Business Trade Name. Franchisee shall not use any logos
or marks associated with the Existing Business other than the Existing Business Trade Name. Franchisee
shall not alter or modify the Marks to include the Business Trade Name, or create a new logo incorporating
the Existing Business Trade Name. During the Co-Brand Term, Franchisor may allow a reference to
Existing Business Trade Name on Franchisor’s website. Upon expiration of the Co-Brand Term, Franchisee
shall cease all use of the Existing Business Trade Name, and all references thereto shall be removed
immediately from the website and from all forms of advertising, including vehicle wraps.

The parties also both agree and acknowledge that franchisee’s use of the Existing Business Name,
except as expressly authorized by this provision, will serve to dilute the Marks and the goodwill symbolized
by the Marks. Accordingly, if Franchisee violates the terms hereof, Franchisee agrees to pay Franchisor
liquidated damages as follows: for each individual violation of this provision after expiration of the Co-
Brand Term, Franchisee shall pay to Franchisor a lump sum equal to $2,500 and receive a 30-day cure
period to remove the specific reference to the Existing Business Trade Name. Violation of this provision
constitutes a material breach of this Agreement, for which Franchisor may terminate pursuant to Section
12.B. If Franchisee has failed and/or refused to remove the reference identified in the cure notice during
the 30-day cure period, then Franchisee shall pay an amount equal to $500 per day thereafter until the
specific reference is removed. For example, and for avoidance of doubt, if after expiration of the Co-Brand
Term, Franchisee fails to remove the Existing Business Trade Name from its vehicle wrap and from certain
sales literature, two violations have occurred and Franchisee initially shall be responsible for payment of
$5,000 ($2,500 multiplied by two violations). Payment of such sums by Franchisee shall be due
immediately upon demand. Franchisor and Franchisee agree that the liquidated damages amount established
in this provision represents a reasonable estimation of actual damages that Franchisor will sustain as a result
of such violation and is not a penalty.

4. Section 3.A., Initial Franchise Fee, is amended to provide that Franchisor and Franchisee
hereby agree that the initial franchise fee shall be discounted by _ % based on Franchisee’s agreement to
“roll-in” the Roll-In Amount, and such discounted amount is reflected on the Summary Page(s) to the
Agreement.

5. Section 3.G., Royalty Fee, is amended to provide that:

(a) During the First Roll-In Period, Franchisee shall pay $ (the “Roll-In
Royalty Payment”), representing % of the average weekly Roll-In Amount. If the average
weekly Roll-In Amount is less than __, Franchisee’s Roll-In Royalty Payment shall increase to
$250 per week beginning on [insert date that begins the 17" week after the
Roll-In Start Date].

(b) In addition to the Roll-In Royalty Payment, should Franchisee attain a cumulative
Gross Sales amount exceeding $ during the First Roll-In Period (the “Excess Amount”),

Franchisee shall pay the weekly Royalty Fee specified in Section 3.G.(iii) of the Franchise
Agreement on the Excess Amount through the First Roll-In Period.

(©) When the Second Roll-In Period begins, the cumulative Gross Sales calculation
will restart and Franchisee shall, once more, begin the period paying only the Roll-In Royalty
Payment. Should Franchisee attain a cumulative Gross Sales amount exceeding $ during
the Second Roll-In Period (the “Excess Amount”), Franchisee shall pay the weekly Royalty Fee
specified in Section 3.G.(iii) of the Franchise Agreement on the Excess Amount through the Second
Roll-In Period.

6. Section 3.G.(iv), Definition of Gross Sales, is amended to provide that Franchisee hereby
“rolls-in” to the Franchise all Gross Sales generated by the Existing Business for work which constitutes
the core business of the Franchise as described in the Agreement. “Gross Sales” includes all revenue
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collected for projects that begin on or after the Roll-In Start Date, regardless of whether customer deposits
or design fee payments were received prior to the Roll-In Start Date, and regardless of whether deposits or
payments were received by Franchisee or by the Existing Business. The customers that generated these
Existing Business Gross Sales are assigned to the Franchise.

7. Section 3.G.(v)., Minimum Royalty Fee, is amended to provide that, upon expiration of
the Full Roll-In Period, Franchisee shall no longer pay the Roll-In payment but will pay to Franchisor the
Royalty Fee as calculated under Section 3.F. of the Franchise Agreement.

8. Section 3.J., MAP Fee, is amended to provide that:
(a) During the Full Roll-In Period, Franchisee shall pay a weekly Roll-In MAP
Payment of $ , which is one percent (1%) of $ , the weekly Gross Sales being “rolled

in,” unless stated otherwise herein.

(b) In addition to the Roll-In MAP Payment, should Franchisee attain a cumulative
Gross Sales amount exceeding $ during the First Roll-In Period (the “Excess Amount”),
Franchisee shall pay the weekly MAP Fee specified in Section 3.J. of the Franchise Agreement on
the Excess Amount through the First Roll-In Period.

(©) When the Second Roll-In Period begins, the cumulative Gross Sales calculation
will restart and Franchisee shall, once more, begin the period paying only the Roll-In MAP
Payment. Should Franchisee attain a cumulative Gross Sales amount exceeding $ during
the Second Roll-In Period (the “Excess Amount”), Franchisee shall pay the weekly MAP Fee
specified in Section 3.J. of the Franchise Agreement on the Excess Amount through the Second
Roll-In Period.

Upon expiration of the Initial Roll-In Period and through the end of the Term, Franchisee shall no
longer pay a Roll-In MAP Payment. Franchisee shall, however, pay a weekly MAP Fee as calculated under
Section 3.J. of the Franchise Agreement.

9. Section 5.A., Manner of Operation; Best Efforts; Cooperation with Franchisor;
Limitation of Services, is amended to provide that the business and customers which were “rolled-in” from
the Existing Business shall not be excluded from the Agreement.

10. Section 10.C., In-Term and Post-Term Covenants, is amended to state that the business
and customers which were “rolled-in” are considered business and customers of the Franchise for all
purposes.

11. Capitalization. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed
to them in the Franchise Agreement.

[The next page is the signature page.]
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Effective as of
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FRANCHISEE:

BY:
Name:
Title:
Date:

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:

Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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EXHIBIT F-4
LEGAL ENTITY INFORMATION SHEET

Franchisee is a: LI sole proprietorship [ general partnership
LI corporation [ limited liability company

Name of Legal Entity:

L limited partnership

State of Formation: Date of Formation:

Operating Principal (Section 5.A.):

List of Shareholders/Members/Partners:

% Interest Class/General or Limited Partner Name

Conditions:

The legal entity’s activities must be confined exclusively to operating the Franchise, unless otherwise noted

on Exhibit B-1 of the Franchise Agreement.

Each shareholder, member, partner or other beneficial owner must personally guarantee Franchisee’s

performance under the Franchise Agreement.

The legal entity must maintain a current list of all shareholders, member, partners and other beneficial

owners, and furnish an updated list to Franchisor on request.

The legal entity must not in no part be owned through an ESOP or offer an ESOP, and the legal entity must

in no part be owned by a private equity firm or fund.

Already To Be Provided Not

Organizing Documents: Provided Within 30 Days Applicable
Certificate and Articles of Incorporation or Organization O O O
Certificate and Articles of Association or Partnership O O O
By-Laws, Operating Agreement or Partnership Agreement [ O O
Resolution Authorizing Franchise Agreement O O O
Other: O O O
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EXHIBIT F-5
FINANCIAL INFORMATION SHEET

Name of Franchised Business (Legal Entity Name):

Balance sheet for existing business attached [0

Bank Statements/other information provided: (List)

Investment in Franchised Business

Cash and Other Assets $

Cash invested from owner(s):

Fair Market Value of other assets invested (describe/itemize):

Borrowings $

Proposed loan(s) from franchisor

Other loans (describe/ itemize):

Value of assets underlying leases:

Vehicles:

Other (describe):

Total investment (debt and equity) in franchised business

THE UNDERSIGNED WARRANTS AND REPRESENTS THAT ALL OF THE INFORMATION
IN THIS FINANCIAL INFORMATION SHEET AND ANY ATTACHMENTS IS TRUE AND
CORRECT AS OF THIS DATE AND WILL REMAIN TRUE AND CORRECT AS OF THE
EXECUTION OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND/OR CLOSING OF THE LOAN FROM
THE FRANCHISOR OR ITS AFFILIATE, AS THE CASE MAY BE. IN ADDITION, THE
UNDERSIGNED ACKNOWLEDGES AND UNDERSTANDS THAT WORLDWIDE REFINISHING
SYSTEMS, INC. AND ITS AFFILIATES ARE RELYING ON THIS INFORMATION AND ALL
OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE UNDERSIGNED IN MAKING ITS DECISION TO
OFFER A LOAN TO THE UNDERSIGNED; THAT ANY MISREPRESENTATIONS OR OMISSIONS
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IN ANY SUCH INFORMATION SHALL CONSTITUTE A MATERIAL DEFAULT UNDER THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, PROMISSORY NOTE AND/OR RELATED DOCUMENTS; AND THAT,
IN THE EVENT ANY INTEREST IN THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS PROPOSED TO BE
TRANSFERRED, INCLUDING A TRANSFER TO AN ENTITY WHOLLY OWNED BY THE
UNDERSIGNED, THE REQUIRED CONSENT OF THE FRANCHISOR MAY BE
CONDITIONED, AMONG OTHER THINGS ON FULL PAYMENT OF ANY OUTSTANDING
LOANS TO THE FRANCHISOR AND ITS AFFILIATES OR MAINTENANCE OF A LEVEL OF
INVESTMENT IN THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS THAT IS EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN
THE TOTAL INVESTMENT AMOUNT SHOWN ABOVE.

Date:

SIGNATURES:

Name of Franchised
Business/Franchisee:

By:
Print name:
Title:

Shareholders/Owners/Partners (All equity holders must sign):

[FOR WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC. CENTRAL OFFICE USE ONLY]
Total debt and equity:

Total proposed loan amount:

Loan amount as a percentage of total debt and equity:

Accounting Department approval:

Reviewed by:

Date:

Approved Y/N:
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EXHIBIT F-6

OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This OPTION TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT is entered into by and between Worldwide
Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN,
having a principal place of business at 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710
(“Franchisor”) and , a , having an address of
(“Franchisee™).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into a Franchise
Agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which Franchisor granted Franchisee a license to use the Marks
and the System to operate a Franchise in and for a geographical area described as (the
“Territory”’) and Franchisee desires and Franchisor is willing to grant Franchisee an option to acquire

(the “Additional Territory”) in which to operate the Franchise.

NOW, THEREFORE, that for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Franchisor acknowledges and agrees that Franchisee has paid Franchisor the non-
refundable sum of $ , which shall be credited toward the initial franchise fee of
$ for the Additional Territory upon Franchisee’s exercise of this option.

2. Franchisee is hereby granted an option to acquire the rights to the Additional Territory for
a period of [one (1) year or eighteen (18) months in the case of a new “start-up

business] from the effective date hereof (the “Option Period”), provided, however, that Franchisee must be
in substantial compliance with the Agreement in order to exercise its option hereunder. All rights created
hereunder shall terminate should Franchisee at any time be in material breach of the Agreement. So long
as the foregoing conditions are fulfilled:

a. Franchisee may exercise this option at any time during the Option Period by
notifying Franchisor in writing of Franchisee’s intent to purchase the Additional Territory (if
Franchisee does not notify Franchisor of its intent to exercise its option by the end of the Option
Period, this option shall expire and the consideration paid shall be forfeited).

b. Franchisor shall deliver a franchise agreement (or an amendment adding the
Additional Territory to Franchisee’s existing franchise agreement) for the grant of the Additional
Territory within 20 business days after receipt of Franchisee’s notice.

c. Franchisee shall sign and return the franchise agreement (or amendment, as the
case may be) and pay all initial franchise fees due thereunder within 10 business days after receipt
of the franchise agreement; provided, however, that notwithstanding the foregoing, Franchisee shall
always have until the end of the Option Period to execute the franchise agreement and pay all initial
franchise fees due thereunder.

[The next page is the signature page.]
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Effective as of
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FRANCHISEE:

BY:
Name:
Title:
Date:

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:

Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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EXHIBIT F-7
RENEWAL ADDENDUM

This RENEWAL ADDENDUM is entered into by and between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a
Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN, having a principal place of
business at 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710 (“Franchisor”) and

, a , having an address of
(“Franchisee”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have entered into an agreement pursuant to which Franchisor has
granted Franchisee a license, right and obligation to establish and operate a Franchise using the Marks and
the System in and for the Territory (the “Original Franchise Agreement”);

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee have contemporaneously herewith entered into an agreement
pursuant to which Franchisor has granted Franchisee a renewal license, granting Franchisee the right and
obligation to continue operation of a Franchise using the Marks and the System in and for the Territory (the
“Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed to alter the terms stated in the Agreement, as provided herein to reflect
the parties intentions and the terms of renewal stated in the Original Franchise Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, that for and in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, in the event of a conflict between the
provisions of the Agreement and the provisions of this Addendum, the provisions of this Addendum shall
control. The parties agree that the Agreement remains fully effective in all respects except as specifically
modified herein, and all the respective rights and obligations of Franchisee and Franchisor remain as written
unless modified specifically herein.

2. Franchisee hereby represents and warrants to Franchisor that all necessary action for the execution
of this Renewal Addendum has been taken.

3. Section 3.A., Initial Franchise Fee, is amended to provide that no initial franchise fee shall be due.
4. Section 3.B., Franchise Development Package Payment, is amended to provide that Franchisee

is not required to purchase the franchise development package.

5. Section 3.C., Initial Advertising and Promotional Deposit, is amended to provide that Franchisee
is not required to pay to Franchisor an initial advertising and promotional deposit.

6. Section 3.D., Initial Accounting Services Fee, is amended to provide that Franchisee is not
required to pay to Franchisor an initial bookkeeping and accounting services fee.

7. Section 3.E., Initial Education Fee, is amended to provide that Franchisee is not required to pay
to Franchisor an initial education fee.

8. Section 3.F., Design Center Deposit, is amended to provide that Franchisee is not required to pay
to Franchisor a design center deposit.

8. Section 3.G., Royalty Fee, is amended to provide that Franchisee must report and pay a weekly
Royalty Fee beginning the first week of the Agreement at the rate stated in the Agreement.

9. Section 3.G.(v)., Minimum Royalty Fee, is amended to provide that the Royalty Fee begins with
the first week of the term of the Agreement and the Royalty Fee is the greater of the Royalty Fee stated in
the Agreement; or the Royalty Fee in the Original Franchise Agreement.
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10. Section 3.H., Continuing Education Fee, is amended to provide that Franchisee shall pay a
monthly Continuing Education Fee beginning the first month of the Agreement at the rate stated in the

Agreement.

11. Section 3.J., MAP Fee, is amended to provide that Franchisee shall pay a MAP Fee beginning the
first week of the term of the Agreement at the rate or amount set for the MAP Fee as stated in the Agreement.

Effective as of
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FRANCHISEE:

BY:
Name:
Title:
Date:

FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:

Douglas A. Dwyer, President &
Chief Stewarding Officer
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EXHIBIT F-8

LEASE RIDER
THIS LEASE RIDER (“Rider”) is entered into this day of , 20 by and
between Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER
BATH & KITCHEN (“Franchisor”), (“Franchisee” or “Tenant”), and

(“Landlord”).

WHEREAS, Franchisor and Franchisee are parties to a franchise agreement, which is dated
,20__ (the “Franchise Agreement”), for the operation of a DREAMMAKER franchised
business (the “Franchised Business™); and

WHEREAS, Franchisee and Landlord propose to enter into the lease to which this Rider is attached (the
“Lease”), pursuant to  which  Franchisee @ will  occupy  premises located  at
(the “Premises”) for the purpose of constructing and operating
the Franchised Business in accordance with the Franchise Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Franchisor has the right to require Franchisee to agree to the terms contained in this Rider,
and Landlord is willing to agree to the terms contained in this Rider so that Franchisor allows Franchisee
to enter into the Lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Franchisor’s willingness to allow Franchisee to enter the Lease
with Landlord, and in consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments set forth in this Rider and
in the Franchise Agreement, the receipt and sufficiency of all of which the parties acknowledge, the parties
agree as follows:

(a) Landlord acknowledges that Tenant is a franchisee of Franchisor and that the Franchised Business
located at the Premises is operated under the DREAMMAKER franchise system, pursuant to a Franchise
Agreement between Tenant and Franchisor. Landlord consents to Tenant’s use at the Premises of such
marks and signs, decor items, color schemes, and related components of the DREAMMAKER system as
Franchisor may prescribe for the Premises. During the term of the Franchise Agreement, the Premises may
be used only for the operation of a DREAMMAKER Franchised Business and for no other purpose.
Notwithstanding anything in the Lease to the contrary, Landlord consent to Tenant making non-structural
alterations, improvements, and additions to the Premises during the term of the Lease to comply with
Franchisor’s standards.

(b) Landlord agrees to furnish to Franchisor copies of any and all letters and notices sent to Tenant
pertaining to the Lease and the Premises at the same time that such letters and notices are sent to Tenant.
Without limiting the foregoing, in the event of any default by Tenant, Landlord shall give Franchisor written
notice of such default. If Tenant has failed to cure such default at the expiration of the applicable cure
period, Landlord shall give Franchisor further written notice of such failure (“Franchisor Notice”).
Following Franchisor’s receipt of the Franchisor Notice, Franchisor shall have the right (but not the
obligation) to cure Tenant’s default before Landlord shall exercise any of Landlord’s remedies arising as a
consequence of Tenant’s default. Any such cure shall be effected within 15 days following Franchisor’s
receipt of the Franchisor Notice. Such cure by Franchisor shall not be deemed to be an election to assume
the terms, covenants, obligations, and conditions of the Lease.

(c) If Franchisor cures Tenant’s default, or if Franchisor notifies Landlord that the Franchise
Agreement has been terminated (which termination shall constitute a non-curable default pursuant to the
Lease upon Landlord’s receipt of Franchisor’s notice thereof), Landlord agrees, upon Franchisor’s written
request, to assign to Franchisor any and all rights that Landlord may have under the Lease to remove and
evict Tenant from the Premises and shall cooperate with Franchisor in order to pursue such action to a
conclusion.
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d) If Franchisor cures Tenant’s default, or notifies Landlord of the termination of the Franchise
Agreement, Franchisor shall have the right and option, upon written notice to Landlord, to do the following:

1. Undertake to perform the terms, covenants, obligations, and conditions of the Lease on
behalf of the Tenant (notwithstanding any removal or eviction of Tenant) for a period not to exceed six
months from the first date of any cure by Franchisor; or

2. At any time within or at the conclusion of such six-month period, assume the terms,
covenants, obligations, and conditions of the Lease for the remainder of the term, together with any
applicable renewal options. In such event, Landlord and Franchisor shall enter into an agreement to
document such assumption and Landlord agrees not to impose an assignment fee or similar assessment, or
to increase or accelerate rent under the Lease, in connection with such assignment. Franchisor is not a party
to the Lease and shall have no liability under the Lease unless and until said Lease is assigned to, and
assumed by, Franchisor as herein provided.

(e) If, during the six-month period set forth in Section (d)(1) above, or at any time after the assignment
contemplated in Section (d)(2), Franchisor shall notify Landlord that Tenant’s franchise is being granted to
another DREAMMAKER franchisee, Landlord shall permit the assignment of the Lease to said franchisee
without the payment of any assignment fee or similar assessment or other cost requirement, provided that,
said franchisee meets Landlord’s reasonable financial qualifications. Landlord shall not unreasonably
withhold consent to such assignment. Thereafter, Franchisor shall be released from any and all further
liabilities under the Lease. The parties agree to execute any commercially reasonable documents in
furtherance of this section.

)] Tenant will not assign or sublease the Lease or renew or extend the term thereof without the prior
written consent of Franchisor, nor shall Landlord and Tenant amend or otherwise modify the Lease in any
manner that could materially affect any of the foregoing requirements without the prior written consent of
Franchisor.

(2) Franchisor shall have the right to enter the Premises to make any modification or alteration
Franchisor deems necessary to protect the DREAMMAKER system and trademarks (including, without
limitation, remove all signs, advertising materials, displays, fixtures, proprietary equipment and inventory,
and any other items which display the trademarks or are indicative of DREAMMAKER trade dress) or to
cure any default under the Franchise Agreement or under the Lease, without being guilty of trespass or any
other crime or tort. Landlord shall not be responsible for any expenses or damages arising from any such
action by Franchisor. Tenant hereby releases, acquits, and discharges Franchisor and Landlord, their
respective subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, and assigns and the officers, directors, shareholders, partners,
employees, agents, and representatives of each of them, from any and all claims, demands, accounts,
actions, and causes of action, known or unknown, vested or contingent, which any of them may have, ever
had, now has, or may hereafter have by reason of any event, transaction, or circumstance arising out of or
relating to the exercise of Franchisor’s rights pursuant to this Rider.

(h) Landlord shall subordinate any lien in favor of Landlord created by the Lease to Franchisor.
Landlord’s rights to collect on any liens that Landlord files or attaches to Tenant’s property rights shall be
subordinate and inferior to Franchisor’s lien rights against any and all of the personal property, furnishings,
equipment, signs, fixtures, and inventory owned by Tenant and on the premises operated by Tenant under
the Lease.

() Landlord shall not, during the term or any renewal or extension of the Lease, lease space in the
same center as the Premises, or permit an assignment or transfer of space in the same center as the Premises,
to another tenant that will use the premises primarily for the operation of a business that performs
remodeling or restoration services.

G) The provisions of this Rider will supersede and control any conflicting provisions of the Lease.
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k) All notices sent pursuant to this Rider shall be sent in the manner set forth in the Lease, and delivery
of such notices shall be effective as of the times provided for in the Lease. For purposes of notice under the
Lease, Franchisor’s mailing address shall be 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, Texas 76710,
Attention: President, which address may be changed by written notice to Landlord in the manner provided
in the Lease.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Rider as of the date first written above.

FRANCHISEE: LANDLORD:
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:
FRANCHISOR:

WORLDWIDE REFINISHING SYSTEMS, INC.
d/b/a DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen

By:

Amy Mosley, COO
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EXHIBIT F-9

GENERAL RELEASE
This GENERAL RELEASE is made and executed by , individually
(“you™), as of (“Effective Date”).
WHEREAS, you entered into a franchise agreement dated with Worldwide Refinishing Systems,

Inc., a Texas corporation doing business as DREAMMAKER BATH & KITCHEN (“us”), and [describe
facts].

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are acknowledged, you agree as follows:

You, for yourself and each of your past and present heirs, executors, administrators, representatives,
successors and assigns, in their corporate and individual capacities (collectively “Releasor”), hereby release
and forever discharge us and each of our predecessors, successors, affiliates, subsidiaries, assigns, officers,
directors, shareholders, agents and employees, and their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
representatives, successors and assigns, in their corporate and individual capacities (collectively
“Releasees”), from, in respect of and in relation to any and all claims, demands, causes of action, suits,
debts, obligations, sums of money, acts, omissions or refusals to act, damages, judgments and demands, of
any kind whatsoever, joint or several, known or unknown, which, against Releasees, the Releasor ever had,
now has or which Releasors hereinafter can, will or may have, for, upon or by reason of any matter, cause
or thing whatsoever, through the Effective Date.

This General Release does not apply with respect to claims arising under the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.

[If Releasor is domiciled or has his or her principal place of business in the State of California]
Waiver of Section 1542 of the California Civil Code.

(“Releasor”) for myself and on behalf of all persons acting by or through me,
acknowledge that I am familiar with Section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads as follows:

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT
KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE
RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR
HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.

With respect to those claims being released, I acknowledge, for myself and on behalf of all persons acting
by or through me, which I am releasing unknown claims and waive all rights [ have or may have under
Section 1542 of the California Civil Code or any other statute or common law principle of similar effect.
For purposes of this paragraph, I shall be considered to be a creditor of DreamMaker Bath & Kitchen, and
each of them.
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[This Release Agreement will be modified as necessary for consistency with any state law regulating
franchising]

, individually
STATE OF §
COUNTY OF g
I hereby certify that before me, a notary public, personally appeared who

made oath in due form of law that s/he was executing the foregoing General Release for the purposes therein
contained.

As witness, my hand and Notarial Seal on ,202

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

[This General Release will be modified as necessary for consistency with any state law regulating
franchising. |
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered
or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland,
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and
Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, registered,
or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California PENDING
Ilinois PENDING
Indiana PENDING
Maryland PENDING
Michigan PENDING
Minnesota PENDING
New York PENDING
Virginia PENDING
Washington PENDING
Wisconsin PENDING

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those
that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans.
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RECEIPT
(OUR COPY)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to
you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale or sooner if required by applicable state law. New
York, if applicable, requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal
meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan, if applicable, requires that we give you
this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other
agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. If Worldwide Refinishing Systems,
Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a
material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agencies listed in Exhibit E.

The franchisor is Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation, 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite
202, Waco, Texas 76710; phone: 254-523-9575.

Issuance Date: April 28, 2025

The franchise seller for this offering is (please complete):

g}l;fi(plgll; Name Principal Business Address T;lsglg::e
Doug Dwyer 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, TX 76710 254-523-9575
Danny Leahr 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, TX 76710 254-523-9575
John McCue 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, TX 76710 254-523-9575

I received a disclosure document with an issuance date of April 28, 2025 (or the date reflected on the State
Effective Dates Page) with the following exhibits:

A State Appendix E  State Administrators and Agents for Service of
B Franchise Agreement and Exhibits Process
A Undertaking and Guaranty F  Additional Forms and Agreements
B-1 Competitive Business F-1 ACH Authorization
B-2 Domain Name License Agreement F-2 Promissory Note and Security Agreement
B-3 Confidentiality Agreement F-3 Existing Business Addendum (optional)
B-4 Technology Agreement F-4 Legal Entity Information Sheet
B-5 Right of Publicity General Release F-5 Financial Information Sheet
B-6 Authorization for Release of Information F-6 Option to Purchase Agreement
B-7 State Specific Addenda F-7 Renewal Addendum
B-8 Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire F-8 Lease Rider
B-9 Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire — F-9 General Release (sample)
Transfer G  State Effective Dates Page
C Financial Statements H  Receipt
D List of Current Franchisees and Franchisee who
Left the System
Date Signature Printed Name
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RECEIPT
(YOUR COPY)

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information
in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc. offers you a franchise, it must provide this disclosure document to
you 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an
affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale or sooner if required by applicable state law. New
York, if applicable, requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal
meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan, if applicable, requires that we give you
this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise or other
agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. If Worldwide Refinishing Systems,
Inc. does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or a
material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the
Federal Trade Commission, Washington, DC 20580 and the state agencies listed in Exhibit E.

The franchisor is Worldwide Refinishing Systems, Inc., a Texas corporation, 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite
202, Waco, Texas 76710; phone: 254-523-9575.

Issuance Date: April 28, 2025

The franchise seller for this offering is (please complete):

g}l;fi(plgll; Name Principal Business Address T;lsglg::e
Doug Dwyer 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, TX 76710 254-523-9575
Danny Leahr 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, TX 76710 254-523-9575
John McCue 4547 Lake Shore Drive, Suite 202, Waco, TX 76710 254-523-9575

I received a disclosure document with an issuance date of April 28, 2025(or the date reflected on the State
Effective Dates Page) with the following exhibits:

A State Appendix E  State Administrators and Agents for Service of
B Franchise Agreement and Exhibits Process
A Undertaking and Guaranty F  Additional Forms and Agreements
B-1 Competitive Business F-1 ACH Authorization
B-2 Domain Name License Agreement F-2 Promissory Note and Security Agreement
B-3 Confidentiality Agreement F-3 Existing Business Addendum (optional)
B-4 Technology Agreement F-4 Legal Entity Information Sheet
B-5 Right of Publicity General Release F-5 Financial Information Sheet
B-6 Authorization for Release of Information F-6 Option to Purchase Agreement
B-7 State Specific Addenda F-7 Renewal Addendum
B-8 Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire F-8 Lease Rider
B-9 Franchisee Disclosure Questionnaire — F-9 General Release (sample)
Transfer G  State Effective Dates Page
C Financial Statements H  Receipt
D List of Current Franchisees and Franchisee who
Left the System
Date Signature Printed Name
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